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Augu

J
O .anuary

Successful bulk production of a law enforcement
recording equipment customized for mobile operation
designed and manufactured by the Group for a leading
security enterprise in the PRC.

The Group entered into cooperation with a renowned
brand in Taiwan and launched a PDA product targeting
the elderly in the US, the design of its hardware and
functions of which was tailor-made for the elderly, and
the product drew excellent comments from the market.

h

Thanks to the collective efforts of all employees, the
Group overcame the pandemic disruption together and
resumed work and production smoothly, and our results
improved month-to-month thereafter.

The Group launched a multi-mode hand-held
code scanner which can adapt to various harsh
environments. It was widely used in sectors including
medical, logistics, retail and financial industry as well as
public utilities.

st

The Group welcomed new senior management, injected
new energy and called for “New Target, New Journey,
Re-launch Again”, which ushered in a new chapter of
the Group’s development.

September

The Group designed naked eye 3D tablets for a US
high-technology enterprise targeting the US market.
The diffractive lightfield backlighting used enjoyed a
leading position in the industry.

—

The Group devoted to adjusting its development

October
L]
strategies and focusing on its core businesses.

November

Successful bulk production of high-end consumer
handsets designed by the Group for a German brand
which were sold to continental Europe.

Shanghai Simcom and Shanghai Sunrise Simcom
within the Group were both accredited with the title of
national “National High-Tech Enterprise”.

December

The Group launched a live-streaming terminal product
which was favored by customers because of its
outstanding portability and specifications.

\
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Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (“Board”) of directors (“Directors”) of SIM
Technology Group Limited (“Company”), | am presenting the annual
results of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as
the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2020 (“Year”).

For the Year, the Group achieved a loss attributable to owners of
the Company from continuing operations of HK$36.5 million (2019:
HK$58.5 million). The basic loss per share from continuing operations
was HK1.53 cents (2019: HK2.37 cents).

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2020
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Chairman’s Statement
FREME

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend to

shareholders of the Company (“Shareholders”) for the Year.

BUSINESS REVIEW

In 2020, the spread of COVID-19 around the world wreaked havoc
on global economies. Production was unable to resume in the first
quarter due to the pandemic, thereby causing stagnation of the Group’s
business operation. However, business gradually improved in the
second quarter and it managed to deliver the backlog of orders. Due
to the inability of many countries to bring the pandemic under effective
control, this has inflicted a huge adverse impact on the Group’s overseas
business, with some projects delayed or even cancelled. With the tight
supply of core components, such as upstream chips and displays, and
with the delays in the delivery schedule in the second half of the year,
some orders encountered extended cycles of material preparation and
were not delivered during the year, thereby affecting sales revenue for
the Year.
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In 2020, the Group posted revenue of HK$938.3 million from continuing
operations and net loss attributable to the owners of the Company
from continuing operations of HK$36.5 million. Except for the Group’s
electronics manufacturing services (EMS) business and property
management business which recorded a profit, the Group’s remaining
businesses suffered a loss. Centralizing resources for business
development expansion of the handsets and 10T terminals business has
become the Group’s medium and long-term goal. During the Year, the
Group completed the disposal of its 51% equity interest in Shanghai
Jizhi Automation Technology Co., Limited (“Shanghai Jizhi”), which
was a core company within the intelligent manufacturing business.
Subsequent to the reporting period, the Group also entered into an
agreement to dispose of its 98.7% equity interest in Shanghai Yunhao
Trading Limited, a core company within the 10T system and 020
business segment, thus withdrawing entirely from the offline segment of

the 10T system and 020 business after completion of the disposal.

Handsets and 10T terminals business

In 2020, revenue of this business segment amounted to HK$586.1
million, representing a 21.8% decline from the level during the same
period last year. Gross profit was HK$61.6 million, representing a year-
on-year growth of 8.7%. Gross profit margin was 10.5%, representing a
year-on-year increase of 2.9 percent point. As the Group’s total inventory
level significantly reduced this year, the related inventory provision has
been reversed, resulting in an increase in gross profit margin this year.
Revenue was lower than expected as the conclusion of new projects
became impossible due to cessation of international travel to China for
project negotiations amid the severe COVID-19 pandemic across the
world. Another major factor was the non-delivery of a significant portion
of customers’ orders by the end of the year due to rising components
prices as the upstream supply chain was adversely affected by the

pandemic and the supply and demand status.

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2020
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With the new management team and a change in operating philosophy,
centralizing resources for the development of the handsets and |IOT
terminals business in scale and strength has become the Group’s
medium to long-term goal. As for the 10T industry application market,
the Group has further developed various intelligent terminal markets,
including barcode recognition device, mobile point-of-sale (POS)
information system, industrial-grade augmented reality (AR) glasses,
intercom network terminals, tablets and intelligent wearable devices and
other intelligent terminal markets. In addition to capturing huge business
opportunities in the 5G handset market, the Group has also enhanced
its capabilities in research and development (R&D) technology and
supply chain delivery via its handset original design manufacturer (ODM)
business. Looking ahead, the Group will pay close attention to market
opportunities in data communication products, such as Wi-Fi 6 and

customer premise equipment (CPE).

In 2021, the Group will allocate more resources to the handsets and
|OT terminals business and enrich its product portfolio so as to provide
more diversified products and services to existing customers as well as
secure more quality handset and IOT industry customers. The Group
also plans to realize its goal of moving the supply chain operation center
to Southern China within the year. Such move will enhance the Group'’s
supply chain capability, helping it lower material costs and ensure timely

and complete material delivery.

Electronics manufacturing services business

The EMS business segment achieved sales revenue of HK$74.9
million in 2020, representing a year-on-year decrease of 19.4%. Gross
profit also declined by 37.8% year-on-year to HK$2.7 million. As a
result of intense market competition and requests for price reduction
by customers, gross profit margin of the EMS business continued to
decline to 3.6%. The notable decrease in sales revenue was due to
the pandemic which hindered timely production and work resumption
of plants, and weaker demand from key customers which led to a

substantial reduction in orders during the reporting period.

Chairman’s Statement
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The Group’s overall strategy for the EMS business remains unchanged.
In addition to maintaining good relations with its existing EMS clients,
it will also explore new clients and new processing product categories,
as well as step up its investment in the deployment of automation and
intelligence in its production operation so as to lower labor costs and

improve product quality control.

Internet of things system and online-to-offline business

This business segment generated sales revenue of HK$228.0 million
in 2020, a 12.5% decrease compared with the last corresponding
period. Gross profit also declined by 62.0% year-on-year to HK$6.6
million. During the reporting period, the Group continued to streamline
the offline business of its 020 automated vending machine platform
and subsequent to the reporting period, it entered into an agreement to
dispose of 98.7% equity interest in Shanghai Yunhao Trading Limited,
making the complete exit of all of its offline business from this segment
after completion of the disposal. The Group plans to integrate the
Internet of things system business with the 10T terminals business in

|7

order to provide “cloud + terminal” one-stop solutions to customers.
Intelligent manufacturing business

After years of development, the Group has built considerable scale for
its intelligent manufacturing business, as well as a leading advantage
in the automated testing of robots for industrial use. However, the
pace of development remains unsatisfactory as market demand has
become saturated. To invigorate the potential of the management
team of the intelligent manufacturing segment, the Group has invested
new resources in the expansion of other markets. Therefore, during
the reporting period, the Group disposed of its 51% equity interest in
Shanghai Jizhi. After the disposal, the Group no longer has control of
the company but it continues to maintain a 49% equity interest in the
company to generate investment returns. The Group believes such

arrangement will help create greater value.

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2020
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Property development

For the Year, only an insignificant amount of properties remaining
was sold and delivered. Therefore, pursuant to a reorganization of
the Group’s internal reporting structure which resulted in changes
to the composition of its reportable segments, the Group’s property

development segment is no longer a reportable segment.

Property management

For the Year, the revenue of property management was mainly derived
from the leasing of SIM Technology Building Block A and Block B in
Shanghai, factory units in Shanghai and Shenyang and commercial
properties in Shenyang. A total area of approximately 72,000 square
meters was leased out. To utilize our resources more effectively, the
Group is developing the property management business by leasing out

the spare space at factories and other buildings.

The revenue of property management for the Year amounted to
HK$49.3 million (2019: HK$43.1 million) with a gross profit margin of
95.5% (2019: 97.4%).

Prospects

During the reporting period, the management formulated medium
to long-term development strategies by adhering to the operating
philosophies of its core businesses. The Group divested its non-
core business which performed below expectation, and it focused on
developing its core businesses, namely its handset and I0T terminals
businesses. In addition to securing more terminal customers in China,
the Group has strived to develop other major markets, including
Europe, the US and Japan. On the development of overseas markets
at this stage, the Group is exploring business opportunities through
its own sales team and distributor network. While developing the 10T
terminal business, it also seized opportunities in the ODM business of
5G smartphones so as to retain economies of scale and strengthen the

competitiveness of its supply chain.

Chairman’s Statement
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As disclosed in the Company’s announcement date 26 January 2021,
the Group is planning on the construction of production facilities in
Dongguan. The plan has proceeded smoothly, and the technological and
industrial park will become the Group’s supply chain and manufacturing
center in the Greater Bay Area after its completion, and it will help the

Group to achieve its strategic goals.

Faced with an extremely challenging external environment, the
management and staff at all levels share a common and clear goal and
the ambition to start a new chapter of business. We believe the Group is
set to replicate its success and emerge as the leading IOT products and

service provider.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my cordial appreciation
to all members of the management and the employees for their efforts
and dedication throughout the Year. Finally, | would like to thank the
financial institutions, Shareholders and investors for their continuous

support and confidence in us.

Yeung Man Ying

Chairman

Hong Kong, 25 March 2021

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2020
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis
ERE W IO

FINANCIAL REVIEW OF CONTINUING
OPERATIONS

For the Year, the revenue from handsets and IOT terminals business,
EMS business and IOT system and 020 business (“Core Business”)
decreased by 19.4% to HK$889.0 million (2019: HK$1,103.1 million).
The revenue from the sale of residential properties and property
management (together “Non-core Business”) decreased by 5.0%
to HK$49.3 million in 2020 as compared with that in 2019 (2019:
HK$51.9 million). The total revenue of the Group for the Year, including
revenue of Core Business and Non-core Business, amounted to
HK$938.3 million (2019: HK$1,155.0 million).

The gross profit for Core Business of the Group for the Year decreased
by 9.7% year-on-year to HK$70.9 million (2019: HK$78.5 million). The
gross profit margin for Core Business increased to 8.0% (2019: 7.1%)
and the gross profit margin for Non-core Business increased to 95.5%
(2019:84.9%) The overall gross profit margin of the Group for the Year
was 12.6% (2019: 10.6%).

12
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis

EEEIWENT

As a result of the decrease in revenue in 2020, an one-off reversal of
provision in relation to inventory and an absence of an one-off provision
on the entrusted loan receivable in 2020, the Group recorded a loss
attributable to owners of the Company from continuing operations of
HK$36.5 million (2019: HK$58.5 million) for the Year. The basic loss
per share from continuing operations for the Year was HK1.53 cents
(2019: HK2.37 cents).

Research and development expenses from continuing operations

In 2020, the Group mainly focused on the development of handsets and
|OT terminals business. The number of design and development team
members was 226 in 2020 (2019: 540). Total R&D expenses of the
Group, which amounted to HK$66.1 million (2019: HK$56.2 million),
represented 7.0% (2019: 4.9%) of the Group’s revenue.

Selling and distribution costs from continuing operations

The selling and distribution costs of the Group for the Year decreased
by 25.1% to HK$41.9 million (2019: HK$55.9 million). The ratio of the
selling and distribution costs over revenue in 2020 was 4.5% (2019:
4.8%).

Administrative expenses from continuing operations
The Group’s administrative expenses for 2020 increased by 3.4% to
HK$91.8 million (2019: HK$88.8 million), representing 9.8% (2019:

7.7%) of the revenue.
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Management'’s Discussion and Analysis f—
ERE R R AT

Segment results of Core Business EEM%i%H’J ﬁ%i%

Year ended 31 December 2020 Year ended 31 December 2019
BE-Z-BE+-A=t-HLEE HE_T-NET-A=T-HLFE
Gross Gross
Gross profit Gross profit
Revenue profit margin Revenue profit margin
WA E| ElE WA =7 EF=
HK$'M HK$'M % HK$'M HK$'M %
BEET HEER % BEBT BEAR %

Handsets and 10T FE TR RS
terminals business 586.1 61.6 10.5 749.6 56.6 76
EMS business TR RER £ 74.9 2.7 3.6 93.0 44 4.7
IOT system and 020 business VB RGRBLER 228.0 6.6 2.9 260.5 175 6.7
Total fact 889.0 70.9 8.0 1,103.1 78.5 7.1
Handsets and 10T terminals business FHRRYERRIRER

The revenue of this segment decreased year-on-year by 21.8% to ARBINEIBERERINABTEERERAIR
HK$586.1 million (2019: HK$749.6 million) in 2020. The drop in BB HIR B A& - R BN Lt
revenue was due to the cessation of international travel to China for EEIEEMERKEROTE  RHLERK
project negotiations amid the severe COVID-19 pandemic across the B BHEEZTER - BEBEHEE KL
world and the non-delivery of a significant portion of customers’ orders MBI ERBEEFREMN TR - BEZE
by the end of the year due to rising components prices, The upstream BRARD c ZE_TF R DB ZRALRF
supply chain was adversely affected by the COVID-19 pandemic and Y8 21.8% % 586,100,000/ T (ZF— N4 :
the supply and demand status. The overall gross profit margin of this 749,600,000/87T) ° ZEE D EAFRHEEE

business segment increased slightly to 10.5% (2019: 7.6%) for the FR EFHEI05%(ZT—NF :7.6%) - A=
Year. The revenue of ODM business contributed to approximately 91% T ZTF - ODMEBBAG I D ZURALI1%
of the revenue of this segment in 2020 (2019: 89%). (ZZ—NF : 89%) °
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis
ERE W IO

EMS business

Due to the COVID-19 pandemic which hindered the timely production
and work resumption of plants, and weaker demand from key customers
which led to a substantial reduction in orders during the same period,
the revenue of this segment decreased year-on-year by 19.4% to
HK$74.9 million (2019: HK$93.0 million). In addition, due to fierce
competition in the EMS business and requests for price reduction by
customers, gross profit decreased year-on-year to HK$2.7million (2019:
HK$4.4 million).

10T system and 020 business

During the reporting period, the Group continued to streamline the
offline business of its 020 automated vending machine platform. The
revenue of this segment recorded HK$228.0 million (2019: HK$260.5
million) and the gross profit margin decreased to 2.9% (2019: 6.7%).

Disposal of intelligent manufacturing business

During the Year, the Group completed the disposal of 51% equity
interest in Shanghai Jizhi and remained to hold 49% equity interest in
Shanghai Jizhi. A gain on disposal of HK$5.6 million was recorded in
the year. Further information relating to such disosal are set out in the
section headed “Material Acquisition and Disposal of Subsidiaries and

Associates Companies” below.

For the purpose of presenting the consolidated financial statements
of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, the
financial information of the intelligent manufacturing business was

presented as discontinued operations.

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2020
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LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND
CAPITAL STRUCTURE

Liquidity

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had bank balances and cash of
HK$667.9 million (31 December 2019: HK$611.7 million), among
which 69.2% was held in US dollars, 30.7% was held in Renminbi and
the remaining balance was held in Hong Kong dollars, and short-term
deposits of HK$281.6 million (31 December 2019: HK$296.4), among
which 74.4% was held in US dollars and 25.6% was held in Renminbi.
As at 31 December 2020, the Group also had pledged bank deposits of
HK$5.9 million (31 December 2019: HK$31.2 million) in Renminbi for
the purpose of the Group’s Renminbi borrowings. The Group intends
to finance its working capital and capital expenditure plans from such
bank balances. The Group has pledged certain of its assets (including
investment properties, property, plant and equipment, right-of-use
assets and pledge bank deposits) to secure the bank borrowings. The
total bank borrowings of the Group amounted to HK$36.0 million as at
31 December 2020 (31 December 2019: HK$77.9 million), all of which
was denominated in Renminbi. All of the bank borrowings were at

floating interest rates and repayable within one year.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis
ERE W IO

Operating Efficiency
The turnover period of the inventory, trade and notes receivables, trade
and notes payables of the Group for the Core Business are presented

below:

EENE
AEBEXTLEB2FE  BERESERLE
& BRNESEAREENEEH2I0T

2020 2019

—B-FF —FNF

Days Days

X X

(restated)

(&=71)

Inventory turnover period FEEEH 96 95
Trade and notes receivables turnover period JEUWE 5 BR 3 N 22 5 A 8 R 65 65
Trade and notes payables turnover period FE(T B B R R R 5 H 104 75

The inventory turnover period and trade and note receivables turnover

period remained relatively stable in years 2020 and 2019.

As affected by the COVID-19 pandemic, certain creditor’s repayment
schedules had been slowed down during the Year as compared to that
of year 2019. As a result, the trade and notes payables turnover days

increased for the Year as compared to that of year 2019.

As at 31 December 2020, the current ratio, calculated as current assets

over current liabilities, was 3.6 times (31 December 2019: 2.9 times).

The Group reckons that inventory turnover period, trade and notes
receivables turnover period, and trade and notes payables turnover
period help the Group to understand its ability to convert inventory
into cash and sales and cash conversion cycle. Through reviewing the
turnover periods, the Group can improve its operational efficiency. The
current ratio can help the Group to understand its ability to pay short-

term and long-term obligations.
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Treasury Policies

The Group adopts a prudent approach in its treasury policy. The
Group’s surplus funds are mainly held under fixed and savings deposits
in reputable banks to earn interest income.

Certain sales and purchases of inventories of the Group are
denominated in US dollars. Furthermore, certain trade receivables,
trade payables, bank balances and bank borrowings are denominated
in US dollars, therefore exposing the Group to the currency risk of US
dollars. As at 31 December 2020, the Group did not use any financial
instrument for hedging purpose but it will consider entering into non-
deliverable foreign exchange forward contracts to eliminate the foreign
exchange exposures in US dollars when necessary.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE
As at 31 December 2020, the Company had 2,362,546,300 ordinary
shares of HK$0.10 each in issue.

The Company has issued 4,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each upon

exercise of share options of the Company during the Year.

Save as disclosed above, no shares of the Company has been issued
during the Year.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis
ERE W IO

CASH FLOW STATEMENT HIGHLIGHTS REeERERRE

2020 2019
b S 3 —TNE
HK$’million HK$'million
BEET BEAT
Net cash from operating activities RELEITH2ELFE 185.3 480.7
Capital expenditure =N (23.3) (31.8)
Development costs paid [EANEEELID®N (68.4) (104.6)
Net decrease in bank borrowings RITEER D F5E (44.6) (11.7)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME « BEMERETS KA
plant and equipment 1.2 8.4
Bank interest paid SRS (1.8) (2.6)
Dividend paid SR - (25.0)
Cash transferred to non-controlling interestof a A — KB A R A& A
subsidiary upon share reduction in registered (TEEHREEHE) SRS
capital of a subsidiary that does not result in B ARIEERER 2 RS
losing control - (45.4)
Purchase of equity instruments at FVTOCI BERATES AR M2 EE S
ZIRARTH (11.3) (1.1)
Proceeds from disposal of equity instruments at ~ HEZRAFEFAEMEE
FVTOCI Wiz 2 BRA T BFTS K08 - 42.8
Decrease in other liabilities Hih & B> - (29.5)
Repayment of lease liabilities BEHEAE (9.0) (8.3)
Repurchase of shares el (17.8) (27.0)
Net cash inflow on disposal of a subsidiary HE—FHRBARZ
BEMANFEE 2.8 -
Net cash outflow on acquisition of a subsidiary WEE—RMBAREELEZ
IRE i R - (18.4)
Others Hh 3.0 75
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents Be MRS EEIEE L INFE
(including pledged bank deposits and short- (BIEBIRIPIRI TR G HE
term bank deposit) RITIEF) 16.1 234.0
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GEARING RATIO

As at 31 December 2020, the total assets value of the Group was
HK$2,801.6 million (31 December 2019: HK$2,866.9 million) and the
bank borrowings were HK$36.0 million (31 December 2019: HK$77.9
million). The gearing ratio of the Group, calculated as total bank

borrowings over total assets, was 1.3% (31 December 2019: 2.7%).

The Group reviews its gearing ratio on a regular basis. According to
its capital plan for the future, the Group tries to maximise revenue for
shareholders with capital risk awareness in mind. Capital structure
is constantly being adjusted according to changes in the operational

environment.

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL OF
SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATED COMPANIES
On 23 December 2020, H/EREARBEEFEHE B R A F(Shanghai
Sunrise Simcom Limited*) (“Shanghai Sunrise”), an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into the sales and purchase
agreements with LB HETCEEIEA B E (BERAE#) (Shanghai
Bai Ni Enterprise Management Partnership (Limited Partnership)*)
(“Shanghai Bai Ni") and FiSEi MR EREAE X (BREE)
(Shanghai Lianxincheng Enterprise Management Partnership (Limited
Partnership)*) (“Shanghai Lianxincheng”) respectively, pursuant to
which Shanghai Sunrise conditionally agreed to sell and Shanghai
Ba Ni and Shanghai Lianxincheng conditionally agreed to purchase
in aggregate 51% equity interest of /82 BRI BR A 7
(Shanghai Jizhi Automation Technology Co., Limited*) (“Shanghai
Jizhi”) at a total consideration of RMB26,667,900. The disposal was
completed during the year ended 31 December 2020.

Further details of the above mentioned disposal are disclosed in the

announcement of the Company dated 23 December 2020.

Save as disclosed above, during the Year, the Group did not have any

material acquisition or disposal of subsidiaries or associated companies.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis
ERE W IO

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT
As at 31 December 2020, the Group did not have any significant

investment.

EMPLOYEES

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had approximately 1,149 (2019:
1,629) employees from continuing operations. The Group operates
a Mandatory Provident Fund retirement benefits scheme for all of its
employees in Hong Kong, and provides its PRC employees with welfare
schemes as required by the applicable laws and regulations of the
PRC. The Group also offers discretionary bonuses, may grant share
options under the share option scheme and share awards under the
share award scheme of the Company to its employees by reference
to individual performance and the performance of the Group. Total
staff costs incurred by the Group amounted to HK$178.9 million from

continuing operations (2019: HK$226.8 million) during the Year.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set by the
human resources department. The Group seeks to provide remuneration
packages on the basis of merit, qualifications and competence of the

employees.

The emoluments of the Directors and senior management of the
Company are reviewed by the remuneration committee of the Board
(“Remuneration Committee”), having regard to factors including the
Group’s operating results, responsibilities of the Directors and senior

management and comparable market statistics.

The Company adopted a pre-listing share option scheme to recognise
and reward the contribution of certain Directors and employees of
the Group to the growth and development of the Group. After listing,
the Company has adopted another share option scheme and a share
award scheme, the primary purpose of which is to motivate the eligible
persons referred to in the scheme, which include executive Directors
and employees of the Group, to optimise their future contributions to the
Group and to reward them for their efforts. Details of the share option
schemes and the share award scheme of the Company are set out in

notes 38 and 39 to the consolidated financial statements.
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FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENT

As stated in the announcement of the Company dated 26 January
2021, the Group entered into a framework agreement with the People’s
Government of Huangjiang Town, Dongguan, to signify the Group’s
intention to invest an aggregate amount of RMB2,000,000,000 to
develop the Group’s own technological industrial park in Huangjiang
Town, Dongguan, thereby consolidating the Group’s operations and
maximizing its development potential. It is expected that the Group will
invest RMB1,000,000,000 in fixed asset investment and the remaining
RMB1,000,000,000 for operating cashflow.

Save as disclosed above, the Group did not have any plans for material

investment or capital assets during the Year.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
As at 31 December 2020, the Group did not have any material

contingent liabilities.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 23 March 2021, E/SEEYEHBERIEEMR 25 (Shanghai
Yunmao 0T Limited*) (“Shanghai Yunmao”), an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into the sales and purchase
agreement with Cheng Shuchun and Huang Xiaoyan, pursuant to which
Shanghai Yunmao agreed to sell and Cheng Shuchun and Huang
Xiaoyan agreed to purchase 98.7% equity interest in /8= E 5
BPR A7) (Shanghai Yunhao Trading Limited*) at a consideration of
RMB34,180,000.

Further details of the above mentioned disposal are disclosed in the

announcement of the Company dated 23 March 2021.

Save as disclosed above, no significant events of the Group occurred

since the end of the Year.
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Development Concept of SIM Technology

EAB R ERE R

LONG-TERM DEVELOPMENT CONCEPT

We will continue to strive to create long-term value for our customers,
shareholders and employees.

TARGET TO BECOME MARKET LEADER

Our target is to make the Company the market leader in handset and
IOT terminals product solutions and services. All employees of the
Group are fully confident in, and are striving for, achieving the target.

CUSTOMER-ORIENTED WITH CONTINUOUS
INNOVATION

We are customer-oriented. We continue to attend to, in a timely manner,
our customers’ needs through continuous innovation in technology and
management.

BUSINESS FIDELITY AND SUSTAINABLE
OPERATION

Fidelity is the Company’s operating principle and standard, thereby we
have won confidence from our investors, customers, suppliers, as well as
employees.
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MAKING THE WORLD BETTER BECAUSE OF US

With “making the world better because of us” as our corporate vision,
the Group aims to make the world a better place through our continuous
efforts.

Support from the community is vital to any corporate development, thus
giving back is undeniably our corporate responsibility. We are aware of
our limited ability, but as long as we do our best in every detail and take
up our responsibility, the world will be better because of us.

SUNRISE PEOPLE CHARITY FUND

An organisation established and funded by the employees of the Group
for charity purpose. Sunrise People (the employees of the Group)
should not only be satisfied with material wealth but should also enrich
ourselves spiritually. The Group wishes that more Sunrise People can
share and practice our charitable culture so as to create a better and
more harmonious future together.

FOCUSED ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

The Group initiated campaigns such as the “Green in Action” and
started from every detail to contribute to environmental protection.

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2020
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DIRECTORS

Ms Yeung Man Ying (“Mrs Wong”)

aged 76, is the chairman of the Company and an executive
Director and a director of Sunrise Electronic Industry Limited.
Mrs Wong is responsible for developing direction and strategies
of the Group. Mrs Wong together with her spouse, Mr Wong
Cho Tung (“Mr Wong"), an executive Director, were the
founders of the Company. Over the years, Mrs Wong and Mr
Wong had established a number of companies which engaged
in the electronics and telecommunications business including
Shanghai Sunrise Simcom Ltd. (“Shanghai Sunrise Simcom”),
one of the Group’s main operating subsidiary which was
established in November 1993. Mrs Wong has over 20 years
of operational and management experience in the electronics
and telecommunications industry. Mrs Wong lectured at
the Electrical Department of the South China University of
Technology in 1977. Mrs Wong has been a guest professor at
Tongji University since 2003. Mrs Wong graduated in 1968 from
the Beijing University of Aeronautics and Astronautics (currently
known as Beihang University), specialising in electrical
engineering.

Mr Wong Cho Tung (“Mr Wong”)

aged 76, is an executive Director and the president of the
Group. Mr Wong is responsible for participating in formulation
of the direction, strategies and be responsible for the
development plan of the new business of the Group. Mr
Wong is the chairperson of Shanghai SIM Technology Limited
(“Shanghai SIM Technology”), a director of Shanghai Sunrise
Simcom and SIM Technology HK Limited (“SIM Technology
(HK)"). Mr Wong is also the director of Info Dynasty Group
Limited and Intellipower Investments Limited, both of which
are the substantial Shareholders. Mr Wong together with his
spouse, Mrs Wong, an executive Director, was the founder of
the Company. Mr Wong graduated in 1968 from the Beijing
University of Aeronautics and Astronautics (currently known as
Beihang University), specialising in electrical engineering. Mr
Wong has decades of experience in the electrical, electronics
and telecommunications industry.
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Directors and Senior Management Profile

Mr Liu Jun (“Mr Liu”)

aged 48, is an executive Director and the chief technical officer
of the Group. Mr Liu graduated with a bachelor’'s degree in
electronic engineering from&2 X2 (Tianjin University) in 1994
and was awarded a master's degree in information technology
fromEg ;= & 2B (unofficial English translation being
Nanjing Institute of Post and Telecommunications) (currently
known as R #8E KE(Nanjing University of Post and
Telecommunications)) in 1997. Mr Liu has extensive experience
in the field of telecommunication technology and software
programmes development. Prior to joining the Group, Mr Liu
has worked for the mobile research and development centre of
Motorola in Beijing and was responsible for the development
of telecommunication software programmes. Mr Liu has also
worked for China Techfaith Wireless Communication Technology
Limited, a company listed on the NASDAQ of the United States
of America (“US”), from August 2002 to March 2007, in
various positions including as a director, chief operating officer
and executive senior vice president. Mr Liu was appointed as an
executive Director in June 2015.

Mr Zhu Wenhui (“Mr Zhu”)

aged 39, is an executive Director and general manager of the
finance department of the Group’s operations headquarters.
Mr Zhu obtained a bachelor’s degree in economics from Tongji
University in 2004. From 2004 to 2005, he was credit manager
at the Shanghai branch of Bank of Communications where
he was responsible for corporate risk management and credit
assessment. He was responsible for leading the establishment of
a financial management control system that meets the needs of
the Group’s strategic development and improving its financial
system in terms of comprehensive budgeting, accounting
analysis and risk management and control. He also has
extensive experience in capital operations projects, international
settlements, taxation and capital management required for the
operation of PRC companies. He is a Certified Management
Accountant of the Institute of Management Accountants in
the United States of America. Mr Zhu was appointed as an
executive Director in February 2021.
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Mr Liu Hing Hung (“Mr HH Liu”)

aged 58, is an independent non-executive Director, the
chairman of the audit committee of the Board and the chairman
of the remuneration committee of the Board. Mr HH Liu is a
fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the Taxation Institute of Hong Kong and
also a member of the Society of Chinese Accountants and
Auditors. Mr HH Liu now runs a professional accountancy
firm in Hong Kong and has over ten years of experience in
accounting, taxation, auditing and corporate finance. Mr HH
Liu is also an independent non-executive director of Emperor
Watch & Jewellery Limited (stock code: 887), a company
listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (“Stock Exchange”) from May 2017. Mr HH Liu
was appointed as an independent non-executive Director in
September 2008.

Mr Li Minbo (“Mr Li")

aged 50, is an independent non-executive Director. Mr Li
obtained a bachelor’s degree in engineering from Nanjing
University of Aeronauticsand Astronautics in 1991, a master’s
degree in engineering from Beihang University in 1997 and
a doctor’s degree in engineering from Tsinghua University in
2001. He worked as Postdoctoral Fellow at National University
of Singapore from 2001 to 2002. From 1991 to 1994, he
was college teacher at the worker college of Changhe Aircraft
Industries Company* (&1 T# T %2 ). He was a researcher
at Kingdee International Software Group Company Limited, a
company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 00268),
from 2003 to 2004 and has been associate professor of
the School of Computer Science and Technology of Fudan
University since 2007. At present, he is also the director of
the Manufacturing Data Research Office of the Shanghai
Key Laboratory of Data Science and a researcher at the
Zhuhai Fudan Innovation Institute. Mr Li was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director in February 2021.
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Directors and Senior Management Profile

Mr Wu Zhe (previous name Wu Aihu)
(qu Wun)

aged 64, is an independent non-executive Director. Mr Wu
has been the professor at Beihang University in the PRC since
October 1993 and the deputy principal at Dongguan University
of Technology in the PRC since 2015. During the period from
May 1991 to October 1993, Mr Wu was the lecturer and the
associate professor in aircraft design of Beihang University.
From 1997 to 2004, he was the deputy principal of Beihang
University. He obtained a bachelor’s degree in Wuhan Institute
of Construction* (EZ#EM 2F7) (currently known as Wuhan
University of Technology) in 1982, a doctoral degree from
Harbin Institute of Architecture* (Y3 E/EZE T 26T) (currently
known as Harbin Institute of Technology) in 1988 and a
postdoctoral certificate from Northwestern Polytechnical
University in 1991 in the PRC. Mr Wu was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director in April 2017.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr Gao Jun (“Mr Gao”)

aged 50, is the chief executive officer of the Group. Mr Gao
obtained a bachelor’'s degree in computer and applications
from the Department of Building Materials at Tongji University
in 1992 and the degree of executive master of business
administration from Cheung Kong Graduate School of Business
in 2013. He worked for Shenzhen Huawei Technology Co.,
Ltd.* EEARIMARAT]) (“Huawei”) for 18 years. From 1995
to 2003, he worked in various capacities as customer manager
of Huawei’'s Nanjing office, representative of Huawei’s offices
in Tianjin, Yinchuan, Lanzhou, Xian and Wuhan, general
manager of northwest area and director of domestic marketing
planning department where he was responsible for meeting
the sales, marketing and service targets in the regions under
his management, formulating and managing Huawei’s general
marketing strategy. From 2003 to 2005, he was president of
Huawei’'s PRC mobile business where he was responsible for
formulating its mobile business strategy in various aspects,
including but not limited to business planning, personnel
recruitment, training and assessment, retail planning including
the management of sales channels and agents, aftersales
service planning and implementation. He was also responsible
for managing and achieving Huawei’s targets in terms of
sales, profits and customer satisfaction in the PRC market.
From 2005 to 2008, he was president of global sales and
services of Huawei Device Co., Ltd.* (FEA#HAE)) (“Huawei
Device”), one of Huawei’'s subsidiaries. He was responsible for
building the global sales and services team which included 14
regional departments globally, customer group management
department, channel management department, global product
marketing development department, market retail management
department and global after-sales service department. He was
also responsible for setting and managing global strategy and
product matching. From 2008 to 2010, he was chief marketing
officer of Huawei Device. He was in charge of, among other
things, brand planning and brand communication, management
of worldwide stores, sales team and promotion events and
achieving smartphone market share. He was also responsible
for the operation of the company’s intelligence system, analysis
and management of competitors, analysis and recommendation
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Directors and Senior Management Profile

of strategic alliances and opportunities. From 2010 to 2012, he
was president of global product management of Huawei Device
where he was in charge of its product roadmap planning,
product project decision-making, and product life cycle
management. He was also responsible for external cooperation
in product solutions. He was an angel investor from 2012 to
2016. He then worked at TV Plus Holdings (Beijing) Limited*
(%4384 (A ) AR A F)) (“LeTV Group”) for 2 years from
2016 to 2018 in various capacities, namely as president of
group smart devices business and LeTV Group’s Asia-pacific
president. He was chief executive officer of LeEco Hong Kong
Co., Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of LeTV, from 2016
to 2017, and chief operation officer of LeTV Sports Culture
Develop (Hong Kong) Co., Limited (as it was then known) from
2017 to 2018. He then worked as the group vice president of
Kangde Xin Composite Material Group Co.,Ltd.* (BE/S#T1E&
FEBARD AR 2 E)), a company listed on the Shenzhen Stock
Exchange (stock code: 002450), from 2018 to 2019. He was
the loT(Internet of Things) business consultant of Beijing Qihoo
360 Company* (& f236072 7)) during 2018. Mr Gao was
appointed as chief executive officer of the Group in December
2020.

Ms Chan Chi Yin (“Ms Chan”), CPA

aged 42, is the chief financial officer and company secretary
of the Company. Ms Chan joined SIM Technology (HK) on
April 2017 and is responsible for the financial reporting of the
Group. Ms Chan was appointed as the company secretary
of the Company (“Company Secretary”) on 28 June 2017
and appointed as the chief financial officer of the Company
on 29 June 2018. Ms Chan is a member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and has over ten years
of experience in the field of accounting. Ms Chan obtained a
Bachelor of Business Administration degree with majoring in
Accountancy and a Master of Science Programme in Finance
from The Chinese University of Hong Kong.
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The Directors are pleased to present the Group’s annual report and the

audited consolidated financial statements for the Year (“Report”).

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES
The Company is an investment holding company. The activities of
its subsidiaries are set out in note 46 to the consolidated financial

statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the consolidated

statement of profit or loss on page 74.

The Board does not recommend the payment of the final dividend to the

Shareholders for the Year.

There was no arrangement with any Shareholder under which he/she/it

has waived or agreed to waive any dividends.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results of the Group for the past five financial years
ended 31 December 2020 and assets and liabilities of the Group as at
31 December 2016, 2017, 2018, 2019 and 2020 are set out on page
242 of the annual report.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES, PROPERTY, PLANT
AND EQUIPMENT AND LAND USE RIGHTS

Details of the movements in the investment properties, property, plant
and equipment and right-of-use assets of the Group during the Year are
set out in notes 16, 17 and 18 to the consolidated financial statements

respectively.

SHARE CAPITAL

The Company has issued 4,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each upon
exercise of share options of the Company during the Year.

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during the

Year are set out in note 33 to the consolidated financial statements.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

During the 12 months ended 31 December 2020, the Company
repurchased 68,182,000 shares of the Company on the Stock Exchange
and the shares repurchased were cancelled subsequently. Details of the

repurchases are as follows:

Number of

Month of shares
repurchase repurchased
B A5 BEROHE
'000

FB

January 2020 —E-FF—H 8,794
April 2020 ZECEFA 8,338
May 2020 —ZECEFRHA 28,506
June 2020 ZEZTFRA 20,000
October 2020 —E-TF+A 2,544
68,182

Other than the shares repurchased by the Company as disclosed above,
neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or

redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the Year.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The Directors are not aware of any tax relief and exemption available to

the Shareholders by reason of their holding of the Company’s securities.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

The Company’s reserves available for distribution to Shareholders as at
31 December 2020 were approximately HK$331,833,000, being the
contributed surplus of approximately HK$193,848,000 and retained
profit of approximately HK$137,985,000.

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), the
contributed surplus account of the Company is available for distribution.
However, the Company cannot declare or pay a dividend, or make a

distribution out of contributed surplus if:

(a) itis, or would after the payment be, unable to pay its liabilities as

they become due; or

(b)  the realisable value of its assets would thereby be less than the
aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share capital and share

premium account.

DIRECTORS AND SERVICE CONTRACTS

The Directors during the Year and as at the date of this report are:

Executive Directors:

Ms Yeung Man Ying (Chairman)

Mr Wong Cho Tung (President)

Ms Tang Rongrong (resigned with effect from 10 September 2020)

Mr Liu Jun (Chief technical officer)
Mr Zhu Wenhui (appointed with effect from 3 February 2021)

Independent non-executive Directors:

Mr Liu Hing Hung

Mr Wang Tianmiao (resigned as Independent non-executive Director
with effect from 3 February 2021)

Mr Li Minbo (appointed as Independent non-executive Director
with effect from 3 February 2021)

Mr Wu Zhe

None of the Directors has a service contract with the Company or any of
its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Group within one year

without payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

Report of the Directors
EREEWE

Ak
ARBR_BBF+-_A=+—HAHS
TR T AR R 2 G140 4331,833,0004 7T+ )
1 A\ R #44193,848,000/% 7T 71 £ £ FI 49
137,985,000/ 7T, *

REBEBRE-NN—FRRVEGEERD - AR
Bl ZHABBIRAIAEDIRAE o AT - 3
ETHIER » RRRTAEIRIRTE - X
REABRBRELEDIK :

it

(@) MEHIRME Eﬂi Lok AT BE AR BEIAME
TRE| MRS E L EE

I

(b) HEBEEZAZHFEKENLINEEE
REBETRARRDSRERZEE -

EERBBEN
REFERBEARE P2 EEWT -

HITEE -

BXBL L (F/E)

TR (#85)

BERBZ L (R -F_FFAA T HEFFT
)

BERE (BERINE)
RXBERER-F-—F - H=HAZFEN)

BIHHTEF -

BEREAE

THELSER=FE=—F=-A=HFF
BUIHTEE)

FHERER=ZFE=—F=-A=HAZA%
B ITESE)

RELE

BB = EARN D R AT B 2 RIRT LA

AR —FABAKERLLEMBARECEE
RRERIN 2 RIEBH

ERNBEEERAT T THEFR 35



36

Biographical details of the Directors are set out in the “Directors and

Senior Management Profile” section of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITION IN SHARES
As at 31 December 2020, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and chief executives of the Company in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (Cap 571, Laws of Hong Kong) (“SFQ")), as
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant
to section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10
to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange

(“Listing Rules”), were as follows:

Long position in the shares of the Company

Name of director Nature of interest

MR EEME
Mr Wong Cho Tung Corporate interest (note 1)
FHRAEE RNRiER (Mat1)
Personal interest
B A=
Total
FE
Ms Yeung Man Ying Corporate interest (note 2)
BB+ NEER (Hat2)
Personal interest
1B AR
Total
4B
Mr Liu Jun Personal interest
BE k- B A=
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AN LERANEIE:
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(H1723)
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3,098,000 0.13%
1,212,182,000 51.31%
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Notes:

1. Mr Wong Cho Tung (“Mr Wong”) controls more than one-third of the voting
power of Info Dynasty Group Limited (“Info Dynasty”). Mr Wong is therefore
deemed to be interested in all the 734,857,000 shares held by Info Dynasty
in the Company by virtue of Part XV of the SFO. Mr Wong is the sole director
of Intellipower Investments Limited (“Intellipower”) and Simcom Limited
(“Simcom (BVI)") is wholly-owned by Mr Wong. Therefore, Mr Wong is deemed
to be interested in all the 454,227,000 shares and 20,000,000 shares held by
Intellipower and Simcom (BVI) respectively in the Company by virtue of Part XV
of the SFO respectively.

2. Ms Yeung Man Ying (“Mrs Wong"), the spouse of Mr Wong, controls more than
one-third of the voting power of Info Dynasty. Mrs Wong is therefore deemed
to be interested in all the 734,857,000 shares held by Info Dynasty by virtue of
Part XV of the SFO.

3. Calculation of percentage of interest in the Company is based on the issued
share capital of 2,362,546,300 shares of the Company as at 31 December
2020.

As at 31 December 2020, save as disclosed above, none of the
Directors, chief executives of the Company or their associates had any
interests or short positions, whether beneficial or non-beneficial, in the
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations as recorded in the register required to be kept
under section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save as disclosed below, during the Year, the Company did not enter
into any equity-linked agreement (as defined in section 6 of the
Companies (Directors’ Report) Regulation (Chapter 622D of the Laws of
Hong Kong)).

Share option schemes

Particulars of the Company’s share option schemes and details
of movements in the share options are set out in note 38 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Share award scheme

Particulars of the Company’s share award scheme and details of
the share awards are set out in note 39 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Other than the share option schemes disclosed in note 38 and the
share award scheme disclosed in note 39 to the consolidated financial
statements, at no time during the Year nor at the end of the Year was
the Company, its holding company, or any of its subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries, a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures

of, the Company or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTION,
ARRANGEMENT OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

No transaction, arrangement or contract of significance (as defined
in the Listing Rules), to which the Company, its holding company, or
any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party and in which a
Director or an entity connected with a Director had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the Year or at any

time during the Year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS
No contract concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company and the

Group was entered into or existed during the Year.

CONTRACT OF SIGNIFICANCE

No contract of significance was entered into by, and/or subsisted
between the Company or any of its subsidiaries with the controlling
Shareholder or any of its subsidiaries during the Year; and there is
no contract of significance in relation to provision of services by the
Company or any of its subsidiaries by the controlling shareholder or any

of its subsidiaries.

DIRECTORS’ AND CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS'’ INTEREST IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

No Directors nor the controlling Shareholders (as defined in the Listing
Rules) had any interest in a business apart from the Company’s
business, which competes or is likely to compete, either directly or

indirectly, with the business of the Group during the Year.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Board confirms that the related party transactions during the Year
as disclosed in note 40 to the consolidated financial statements did not
fall under the definition of “connected transactions” nor “continuing
connected transactions” (as the case may be) in Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules. The Directors confirm that the Company has, where
applicable, complied with the disclosure requirements in accordance
with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

CONNECTED TRANSACTION

On 23 December 2020, Shanghai Sunrise entered into the sales and
purchase agreements with Shanghai Bai Ni and Shanghai Lianxincheng
respectively, pursuant to which Shanghai Sunrise conditionally agreed
to sell and Shanghai Ba Ni and Shanghai Lianxincheng conditionally
agreed to purchase in aggregate 51% equity interest of Shanghai Jizhi
at a total consideration of RMB26,667,900. The disposal was completed
during the Year.

The owners of Shanghai Bai Ni were director of several subsidiaries of
the Company and were therefore connected persons of the Company at

subsidiary level.

The disposal allowed the Group to exit the long loss-making online and
offline operations of vending machines in order to generate the greatest
return to the Group. Further details of the above mentioned disposal are
disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 23 December
2020.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

During the Year and up to the date of this annual report, permitted
indemnity provision (as defined in section 9 of the Companies (Directors’
Report) Regulation (Chapter 622D of the Laws of Hong Kong) was and is

in force for the benefit of the Directors.

The Company has also arranged for appropriate liability insurance to
indemnify its Directors and officers for their liabilities arising out of

corporate affairs. The insurance coverage is reviewed annually.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ OR OTHERS’
INTERESTS IN THE SECURITIES OF THE
COMPANY

As at 31 December 2020, the interests or short positions of substantial
Shareholders and other persons (other than Directors or chief executives
of the Company) in the shares and underlying shares of the Company as
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to

section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

Name of shareholder Nature of interest

MRER A fEEME

Info Dynasty (note 2) Personal interest

(Hizt2) VNG

Intellipower (note 3) Personal interest

(H1:£3) VNG

Notes:

1. Calculation of percentage of interest in the Company is based on the issued

share capital of 2,362,546,300 shares of the Company as at 31 December
2020.

2. The relationship between Info Dynasty and Mr Wong and the relationship
between Info Dynasty and Mrs Wong is disclosed under the section headed
“Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and Short Position in Shares” above.

3. The relationship between Intellipower and Mr Wong is disclosed under the
section headed “Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and Short Position in
Shares” above.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, there were no
other substantial Shareholders or persons who had any interests or
short positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Company as
recorded in the register required to be kept under section 336 of the
SFO.
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INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-
executive Directors, an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all
of the independent non-executive Directors to be independent.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

Particulars of the retirement benefits schemes of the Group are set out
in note 37 to the consolidated financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Bye-laws or the
laws of Bermuda which would oblige the Company to offer new shares
on a pro rata basis to existing Shareholders.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

At the latest practicable date prior to the issue of this report, based on
information that is publicly available to the Company and to the best
knowledge of the Directors, the Directors confirmed that the Company
has maintained sufficient public float as required under the Listing
Rules.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the Year, the five largest customers accounted for 32.23% of the
Group’s total sales and the largest customer accounted for 8.94% of the
Group’s total sales.

For the Year, the five largest suppliers accounted for less than 30% of
the Group’s total purchases.

At no time during the Year did any Director, any close associate of a
Director or any Shareholder (which to the knowledge of the Directors
owns more than 5% of the Company’s issued shares) had an interest in
any of the Group’s five largest customers.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the Year have been audited by
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu who are due to retire and, being eligible, shall
offer themselves for re-appointment at the Annual General Meeting.

There has been no change of auditors of the Company in any of the
preceding three financial years.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

The fair review, financial key performance indicators and indication of
future development of the Group for the Year is set out in the sections
headed “Chairman’s Statement” and “Management Discussion &
Analysis” in this annual report. That discussion forms part of this Report

of the Directors.

Principal risks and uncertainties
A number of factors may affect the results and business operations of

the Group. Major risks are summarized below.

1. Greater fluctuation of production capacity in upstream supply
chain of terminals amidst the COVID-19 pandemic, expected
price hike of raw materials arising from supply shortage as a result
of the increasing demand for work-from-home related electronic
products, risk of collapse of upstream supply chain companies,
especially peripheral custom-made materials supply companies,

and interruption of supply:

The outbreak of the COVID-19 pandemic in early 2020 led to
instability in production around the world, particularly in countries
and regions severely by hit by the pandemic. In the third quarter of
2020, manufacturers of mobile brands around the globe doubled
their demand for materials to capture market share in view of the
increasing demand for in-home consumer electronics caused
by the concern that the pandemic would continue to spread on
a global scale. The continuous increase in the demand for raw
materials such as wafer, copper, plastic pellet and paper pulp in
the upstream supply chain has led to increase in prices of the full
range of materials, giving rise to a trend of cost increase for the
Group’s downstream OEMSs. Furthermore, small and medium-sized
enterprises in the upstream supply chain, particularly peripheral
custom-made materials supply companies, have comparatively
weaker risk aversion abilities. They may encounter cash flow
problems and thus are more exposed to the collapse of business and
supply interruption if they have no access to upstream resources and
have to shut down and suspend production, thereby also interrupting
the Group’s production. The Group has been identifying additional
secondary suppliers since early 2020 but has not fully eliminated its

exposure in supply and delivery.
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To this end, the Group kept enhancing its supply chain
management and spent considerable effort to monitor the delivery
capabilities and quality of upstream suppliers. To minimize the
risk of delayed delivery, the Group has been actively identifying
additional secondary suppliers and preparing their replacement
certification so that they are able to replace any custom-made

materials suppliers that may expose the Group to any risk.

As the pandemic did not abate in 2020, the Group expects that
inefficient communication with overseas customers and difficulties

in launching new projects will continue into 2021.

Risks related to management of receivables from the Internet of
Things operation service

In year 2020, the Internet of Things vending machine supply
chain business suffered from a nationwide COVID-19 outbreak
in its launch year. Demand for vending machine operation
business fell as the retail market slumped as a result of the
halt in movement of people everywhere, suspension of school,
production and business activities. The growth of business was
sluggish as various enterprises of the entire business chain were
hit hard during the first half of the Year.

In terms of the Internet of Things operation service, the Group is
engaged in the wholesale and logistics services of beverages and
food. Currently, the Group offers credit for payments for goods
to small and medium automated vending machine operators
in general. Due to the outbreak of the pandemic, the Group
may be exposed to the risk that small operators may default on
such credit. While the Group can expect to receive payments as
scheduled when sales are robust during peak seasons, payments
can be delayed when sales are sluggish in off seasons. The Group
has a relatively large number of small and medium operators as

our customers which causes risks related to receivables.
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In respect of managing receivables of the IOT operation, the
Group has adopted a series of mechanisms and risk alert
management systems such as a management system on assessing
customers’ credit and a contract management system, and
requires that accountability in the collection of various receivables
are in place during performance of contracts in order to control

risks to a reasonable level.

Property leasing: Certain tenants may experience insufficient
cash flow amidst the novel coronavirus outbreak and there will
be risk of lease termination

The COVID-19 outbreak in year 2020 has affected various
industries, especially the service industry. Therefore, the
commencement of business of various companies that leased
buildings of the Group was delayed and its results were adversely
impacted. Especially, most of the leased shops on the ground
floor of the Group’s headquarters on Jinzhong Road are restaurant
enterprises and the impact on them is particularly significant. For
small enterprises with weak risk aversion abilities, their cash flow
is prone to shortage and they may go bankrupt. The Group may
therefore lose tenants and rental payments. The Group responded
to the government’s call and reduced rental fees in year 2020 so as
to help small enterprises ride out the storm. Even so, certain small
enterprises decided to terminate the lease, which is a trend that is

expected to continue into 2021 in the opinion of the Group.

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2020

S0 ) B 4D B 2 R R AR AR B R 9
fl AREBRAEPEAIEEEH
E‘éﬁ%ﬁ%?%—@ﬂﬁﬁ&@ﬁ
TEEERES - R ESKEERERT
EWLE¢MME1WMEEﬂ'E@
SITHIESIRBER o

%%ﬁg FRIBHEREFEHE
FHERERATE  BFEHELNE
B
TR EEHERERBEYETRITE
% FRIRIRGE - EREEAKET
B EDRATEE  XEXE - /5l
EHE S ERANEERHORNED T
BEREE  FELLBRE - HREE/N
EENRAREENT REREZHHBEE
18 SR A TR EAK AR N B AR
BER o ARBE T _TFERBITNR
BREEEE  HB/ N OXEBHR -
BERBAD/NARERME - ERRE
—T—FEGSRETE -



Key Relationships
The Group’s success also depends on the support from key relationships

with employees, suppliers and customers.

1. Employees
The Company values every talent and emphasizes that excellent
employees are valuable assets for the Company. The Group
pays attention to self-improvement of staff and gives them a
working environment that is fair, open, sincere, warm and full of
opportunities. The Group’s competitive remuneration system brings
long-term and stable return for its staff and also takes into account
the long-term and stable development of the Company. The Group
determines the remuneration and promotion of its staff based
on their capacity and contribution to the Group. The Company
recognizes staff with outstanding performance who share the same
values as the Company as valuable assets. The Group tries its best
to provide promising career prospects and a platform for them to
display their talents fully. Therefore, the Company not only helps
its employees to improve their knowledge, skills and experience
through performing their own duties, but also creates facilitative
conditions favourable to their development. To facilitate the proper
allocation and development of high caliber talents, the Company
has set up an employee career development system which focuses
on both management and technical skills. Through this system, the
outperforming key members can seize the opportunity to improve
their overall abilities by various ways. The Company aims to create
conducive conditions for talents to shine and grow through career,

and also build a solid team of talents.

2. Suppliers
The Company selects and enters into strategic cooperation
with reputable suppliers in accordance with the principle of a
mutually beneficial cooperation and international standards such
as 1S09001, ISO14001 and OHSAS18001. The Company uses
a strict social responsibility management system to manage
its suppliers, ensuring that the quality of materials provided by
the supplies meets its requirements and that their production
management systems also comply with its requirements on
environment, occupational health and safety management system
as stated in relevant laws and regulations. The Company also
makes cost and delivery plans in advance to meet the delivery

demand.
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&L Customers
The Group establishes complete management systems in compliance

with both national and international standards, as well as well-known
clients’ requirements, which cover product quality, environment,
occupational health and safety, information security and product
safety management. Via the yearly clients’ satisfaction survey
conducted, our clients have expressed positive feedback on quality,
logistics, cost and service. Our clients all over the world, both new
and old well-known clients, supervise and inspect each management
system of the Company every year. Apart from this, our Company
also implements Key Performance Indicator (KPI), internal control
scheme, management appraisal program in every aspect. In order
to continuously enhance management systems of the Company, the
Company has set up a specific department to supervise operation
and pass the results to the management on a regular basis for
review.

Environmental policies

Environmental protection is not only the responsibility of the Group, but of
each of us. The Group initiates and strives to minimize its environmental
impact by using water saving facilities, saving electricity and encouraging
recycling of office supplies and other materials. The Group also operates in
strict compliance with the relevant environmental regulations and rules and
possesses all necessary permission and approval from the PRC regulators.
The Group also has environment policies in place to reduce emission, raise
efficiency use of resources and reduce pollution.

Compliance with laws and regulations

The Group’s operations are carried out by the Company’s subsidiaries
in the PRC while the Company itself is listed on the Stock Exchange. Its
operations are regulated by Hong Kong and PRC laws. During the year
ended 31 December 2020 and up to the date of this report, the Group
has complied with the relevant laws and regulations that have significant
impact to the Group in the PRC and Hong Kong.

In particular, as the Group’s business involves manufacturing, the
Group’s operation is regulated by environmental protection laws
and regulations in the PRC. During the Year have any material non-
compliance with such laws and regulations.

On behalf of the Board

Yeung Man Ying
Chairman
Hong Kong

25 March 2021
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The Company’s goal is to continue to increase its transparency to
the Shareholders and the public and maintain a high standard of
corporate governance. The principles of corporate governance adopted
by the Group emphasise a quality Board with sound internal control,

transparency, accountability and independence.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE CODE

Save as mentioned below, the Company has complied with the code
provisions laid down in the Corporate Governance Code (“Corporate
Governance Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules

during the Year.

In respect of code provisions A.5.1 to A.5.4 of the Corporate Governance
Code, the Company does not have a nomination committee. At present,
the Company does not consider it necessary to have a nomination
committee as the full Board is responsible for reviewing the structure,
size and composition of the Board and the appointment of new Directors
from time to time to ensure that it has a balanced composition of skills
and experience appropriate for the requirements of the businesses
of the Company, and the Board as a whole is also responsible for
assessing the independence of the independent non-executive Directors
and reviewing the succession plan for the Directors, in particular the

chairman of the Board.

According to the code provision E.1.2 of the Corporate Governance
Code, the chairman of the Board shall attend the annual general
meeting of the Company and arrange for the chairmen of the audit,
remuneration and nomination committees (as appropriate) or in the
absence of the chairman of such committees, another member of the
committee or failing this, his duly appointed delegate, to be available to

answer questions at the annual general meeting.
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At the annual general meeting of the Company held on 16 June 2020
(2020 AGM”), Ms Yeung Man Ying, the chairman of the Board, was
unable to attend due to an unexpected business engagement. Mr Liu
Jun, an executive Director and the then chief executive officer of the
Group, chaired the 2020 AGM on behalf of the chairman of the Board
pursuant to the bye-laws of the Company and was available to answer
questions. Mr Wong Cho Tung , the president and an executive Director,
and Mr Liu Hing Hung, an independent non-executive Director and the
chairman of the remuneration committee of the Board and the audit
committee of the Board (“Audit Committee”), were also available at the

2020 AGM to answer questions from Shareholders.

THE BOARD

Board functions

The Board is responsible for the promotion of the success of the
Company by directing and guiding its affairs in an accountable and
effective manner. Board members acknowledge their duty to act in
good faith, with due diligence and care, and in the best interests of the

Company and its Shareholders.

The types of decisions which are to be taken by the Board include:

1. setting the Company’s mission and values;

2. formulating strategic directions of the Company;

3. reviewing and guiding corporate strategy; setting performance
objectives and monitoring implementation and corporate
performance;

4. monitoring and managing potential conflicts of interest of
management, Board members; and

5. ensuring the integrity of the Company’s accounting and financial
reporting systems, including the independent audit, and that
appropriate systems of control are in place, in particular, systems

for monitoring risk, financial control, and compliance with the law.
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Board composition and practices
As at 31 December 2020, the Board comprised three executive
Directors and three independent non-executive Directors.

As at the date of this annual report, the Board comprised four executive
Directors and three independent non-executive Directors, namely:

Executive Directors:

Ms Yeung Man Ying (Chairman)

Mr Wong Cho Tung (President)

Mr Liu Jun (Chief Technical Officer)
Mr Zhu Wenhui

Independent non-executive Directors:
Mr Liu Hing Hung

Mr Li Minbo

Mr Wu Zhe

Biographical details of the Directors and the relationships among them
are set out in the “Directors and Senior Management Profile” section on
pages 27 to 32 of this annual report.

Save as disclosed in this annual report, none of the Directors has any
connection (including financial, business or family relationship) with
each other as required to be disclosed pursuant to Appendix 16 of the
Listing Rules.

During the Year, the roles of the chairman, president and the chief
executive officer were separated in order to reinforce their respective
independence, accountability and responsibility in compliance with the
requirement under Code Provision A.2.1 of the Corporate Governance
Code. During the Year, the role of the chairman was performed by Ms
Yeung Man Ying who was responsible for developing direction and
strategies of the Group. During the Year, the role of the president was
performed by Mr Wong Cho Tung who was responsible for formulating
the direction, strategies and the development plan of the new business
of the Group. Mr Liu Jun resigned from the position of chief executive
officer of the Group and was appointed as chief technical officer of the
Group from 22 December 2020. Mr Gao Jun has been appointed as
chief executive officer since 22 December 2020. During his tenure,
Mr Gao Jun took up the responsibility of the overall management of
the Group’s product and business planning, including management of
product definition, sales, procurement, production and delivery.
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The independent non-executive Directors contribute to the Company
with diversified industry expertise, advise the management on strategy
development and ensure that the Board maintains high standards of
financial and other mandatory reporting as well as provide adequate
checks and balances to safeguard the interests of the Shareholders and

the Company as a whole.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has given a written
confirmation to the Company confirming that he has met the criteria
set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules regarding the guidelines for the

assessment of independence of non-executive Directors.

The Board delegates specific tasks to the Group’s management
including the implementation of strategies and decisions approved by
the Board and the preparation of accounts for approval by the Board

before public reporting.

The Company has arranged for appropriate liability insurance to
indemnify its Directors and officers for their liabilities arising out of

corporate affairs. The insurance coverage is reviewed annually.

Regular Board meetings are scheduled in advance to give all Directors
an opportunity to attend. Directors may attend meetings in person or
through other means of electronic communication in accordance with
the Bye-laws. All Directors are kept informed on a timely basis of major
changes that may affect the Group’s businesses, including relevant rules
and regulations. Directors shall have full access to information on the
Group and are able to obtain independent professional advice whenever
deemed necessary by the Directors. No request was made by any
Director for such independent professional advice during the Year. The
Company Secretary shall prepare minutes and keep records of matters
discussed and decisions resolved at all Board meetings, which will be

available for inspection by Directors upon request.
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The Board held four meetings and the Company held one general
meeting in 2020. The following is the attendance record of each Director
at the Board meetings and the general meeting of the Company for the
Year:

Number of general Number of Board
meeting attended/ meetings attended/

Number of general Number of Board

Name of Director meeting held meetings held
Ms Yeung Man Ying 0/1 4/4
Mr Wong Cho Tung 1/1 4/4
Ms Tang Rongrong

(Resigned with effect from

10 September 2020) 0/1 4/4
Mr Liu Jun 1/1 4/4
Mr Liu Hing Hung 1/1 4/4
Mr Wang Tianmiao

(Resigned with effect from

3 February 2021) 0/1 3/4
Mr Wu Zhe 0/1 4/4

NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS

The Company does not have a nomination committee. The Board is
responsible for nominating appropriate person, either to fill in casual
vacancy or as an addition to the existing Directors for election by

Shareholders at the general meeting of the Company.

In December 2018, the Company adopted a nomination policy which
sets out the selection criteria in assessing the suitability of a proposed
candidate as Director. Such criteria include, but are not limited to
academic background, qualifications, relevant experiences in the
industry, character and integrity of the proposed candidate. Suitable
candidate can be nominated by any Director. The Board should
evaluate the personal profile of the candidate based on the selection
criteria as set out in the nomination policy and undertake adequate due
diligence in respect of each proposed candidate. After a comprehensive
assessment, the nomination committee will then make appropriate
recommendations to the Board for approval. All appointments of
Directors will ultimately be based on merit while taking into account
the measurable objectives with regard to the benefits of diversity on the
Board.
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As and when circumstances require, the Board will meet to discuss the
nomination of new Directors. In considering the suitability of a candidate
for directorship, the Board will adopt an objective criteria, with due
regard to the benefits of diversity, as set out in the board diversity policy
of the Company (“Board Diversity Policy”) as well as the requirements

under the Listing Rules and the nomination policy of the Company.

The re-election procedure set out in the Bye-laws provides that one-third
of the Directors for the time being (or if their number is not a multiple
of three, then the number nearest to but not less than one third) shall
retire from office by rotation provided that every Director shall be subject
to retirement at least once every three years at each annual general
meeting of the Company. A retiring Director shall be eligible for re-
election and shall continue to act as a Director throughout the meeting
at which he retires. The Directors to retire by rotation will be those who
have been longest in office since their last re-election or appointment
but as between persons who become or were last re-elected Directors
on the same day those retire will (unless they otherwise agree among

themselves) be determined by lot.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company continuously seeks to enhance the effectiveness of the
Board and maintain the highest standards of corporate governance,
recognises and embraces the benefits of diversity in the Board.
During the Year, the Board had in place the Board Diversity Policy in

accordance with the Corporate Governance Code.

According to the Board Diversity Policy, the Board takes into account
various elements of diversity including but not limited to age, gender,
cultural and educational background, skills, professional knowledge,
and industry experience in determining the appointment and
reappointment of the Directors and proposed candidates. All Directors’
appointments are based on meritocracy and due regard is given to the
Board’s diversity to ensure the Company can obtain the benefits of such

diversity.
During the Year, the Board was satisfied with the diversity of the

existing Board composition and did not, for the time being, set up any

measurable objective regarding board diversity.
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The composition, experience and balance of skills on the Board are
regularly reviewed to ensure that the Board retains a core of members
with longstanding knowledge of the Group alongside new Director(s)
appointed from time to time who bring fresh perspectives and diverse
experiences to the Board. Board appointments will continue to be made
on a merit basis. The Board will review the Board Diversity Policy on a

regular basis to ensure its continued effectiveness.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is collectively responsible for performing the corporate
governance functions in accordance with code provision D.3.1 of the
Corporate Governance Code. During the Year, the Board reviewed the
policies and practices and compliance by the Company and reviewed
and monitored the training and continuous professional development of

the Directors.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for overseeing the preparation of the
financial statements for each financial period which give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Group and of the results and cash flows
for that period. In preparing the financial statements, the Directors have
selected appropriate accounting policies, applied them consistently,
made judgments and estimation that are prudent, fair and reasonable,
ensured all applicable accounting standards are followed and prepared
the financial statements on a going concern basis. The Directors are also
responsible for ensuring that the Group keeps accounting records which
disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of
the Group and which enable the preparation of financial statements in
accordance with the applicable accounting standards and regulatory
requirements. Further explanation as to how the Company generates
or preserves value over the longer term and the strategy for delivering
the Company’s objectives is set out under “Chairman’s Statement” from

pages 4 to 10 of this annual report.
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CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT
During the Year, the Company provided regular updates to the

Directors on material changes to regulatory requirements applicable
to the Directors and the Company on a timely basis and on the latest
business development of the Company. The Directors confirmed that
they complied with code provision A.6.5 of the Corporate Governance
Code on directors’ training. During the Year, all Directors namely, Ms
Yeung Man Ying, Mr Wong Cho Tung, Ms Tang Rongrong (resigned
on 10 September 2020), Mr Liu Jun, Mr Liu Hing Hung, Mr Wang
Tianmiao (resigned on 3 February 2021) and Mr Wu Zhe, participated
in continuous professional development by attending seminars/in-house
briefing/reading materials to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills in areas related to their roles, functions and duties of Directors
such as corporate governance, regulatory updates and topics related to

telecommunications industry.

During the Year, the Company Secretary fully complied with Rule 3.29
of the Listing Rules by taking no less than 15 hours of professional

training.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as its own code of conduct
for dealing in securities of the Company by Directors. Having made
specific enquiry of all Directors, all Directors have confirmed that they
have complied with the required standard set out in the Model Code for

the Year.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established the Remuneration Committee with written
terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee in compliance with
Rule 3.25 of the Listing Rules and the Corporate Governance Code.
The Remuneration Committee is responsible for assisting the Board
in achieving its goals of providing packages which can attract, retain
and motivate Directors with required qualities for running the Company

successfully.
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The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee include: (i)
making recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy and
structure for all remuneration of Directors and senior management
and on the establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for
developing policies on such remuneration; (ii) determining the terms
of the specific remuneration package of each executive Director and
senior management; (iii) reviewing and approving performance-based
remuneration by reference to corporate goals and objectives resolved by
the Board from time to time. Terms of reference of the Remuneration
Committee which have been adopted by the Board are available on the

respective websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

The Remuneration Committee held two meetings during the Year
and had reviewed the remuneration packages of Directors and senior

management of the Group. The attendance record is as follows:

Number of meetings attended/

Name of Director Number of meetings held

Mr Liu Hing Hung 2/2
Mr Wang Tianmiao 2/2
Mr Wu Zhe 2/2
Mr Wong Cho Tung 2/2

No Director took part in any discussion about his own remuneration.

The Remuneration Committee consists of four members, three of whom
are independent non-executive Directors, being Mr Liu Hing Hung, Mr
Wang Tianmiao (replaced by Mr Li Minbo on 3 February 2021) and Mr
Wu Zhe, and one executive Director being Mr Wong Cho Tung. They
have substantial experience in human resources management. The

Remuneration Committee is chaired by Mr Liu Hing Hung.

Executive Directors, assisted by the Group’s human resources
department, are responsible for reviewing all relevant remuneration
information and obtaining market conditions in addition to considering
the performance of individuals and the profitability of the Group, and
proposing to the Remuneration Committee for consideration and
approval, remuneration packages for Directors and senior management.
Executive Directors, however, do not participate in the determination of

their own remuneration.
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The primary objective of the remuneration policy on executive
remuneration package is to enable the Company to retain and motivate
executives in promoting the success of the Group. The remuneration
package comprises basic salary, and may include discretionary bonus

and/or share options and share awards.

Each of the executive Directors is entitled to a basic salary which is
subject to review by the Remuneration Committee after such executive

Directors have completed 12 months of service.

Subject to the recommendation of the Remuneration Committee, the
Company may, at its sole discretion, grant share options and/or share
awards to executive Directors in accordance with the share option

schemes and share award schemes adopted by the Company.

Each of the executive Directors (except Ms Yeung Man Ying and Mr
Wong Cho Tung) is entitled to a discretionary bonus as determined by
the Remuneration Committee by reference to the performance of the

Group and the Director.

Each of Mr Liu Hing Hung, Mr Wang Tianmiao and Mr Wu Zhe
entered into a letter of appointment with the Company to serve as an
independent non-executive Director for one year commencing on the
date of appointment and subject to the right of the independent non-
executive Director or the Company to terminate the appointment of the
independent non-executive Director at any time by giving at least one

month’s notice in writing.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE
The Company has established the Audit Committee with the written

terms of reference in compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules
and the Corporate Governance Code. The primary duties of the Audit
Committee are to assist the Board to provide an independent review of
the effectiveness of the financial reporting process, internal control and
risk management system of the Group and oversee the audit process

and other duties and responsibilities as assigned by the Board.

The Audit Committee members met three times in 2020 to review with
senior management and the Company’s external auditors the internal
and external audit findings, the accounting principles and practices
adopted by the Group, and Listing Rules and statutory compliance, and
discussed auditing, internal controls, risk management and financial
reporting matters (including the 2019 annual financial statements and
2020 interim financial statements before recommending them to the
Board for approval) and also approved the replacement of Mr Wang

Tianmiao by Mr Li Minbo to act as a member of Audit Committee.

The following is the attendance record of each member at the Audit

Committee meetings during the Year:

Number of meeting attended/

Name of Director Number of meeting held

Mr Liu Hing Hung 3/3
Mr Wang Tianmiao 2/3
Mr Wu Zhe 3/3

The Audit Committee comprises three independent non-executive
Directors, namely, Mr Liu Hing Hung, Mr Wang Tianmiao (replaced by
Mr Li Minbo on 3 February 2021) and Mr Wu Zhe. The Audit Committee
is chaired by Mr Liu Hing Hung who has professional qualifications in

accountancy.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the annual report of the Company
for the year ended 31 December 2020.
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EXTERNAL AUDITORS

The Audit Committee has reviewed a service plan from Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu regarding their independence and objectivity and had a
meeting with Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, the external auditors of the

Company, to discuss the scope of their audit and approve the scope.

The Audit Committee also makes recommendations to the Board on the
appointment and retention of the external auditors. For the Year, the
Company paid Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, the external auditors of the
Company, HK$1.9 million as audit fees and HK$0.4 million as non-audit
fees for reviewing the interim financial report of 2020.

The auditors’ reporting responsibility is set out on pages 65 to 73 of this

annual report.

INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Directors acknowledge that it is their responsibility to maintain
effective risk management and internal control system and to review

them at regular intervals.

The Group’s risk management and internal control system is designed
to reduce risks, safeguard the Group’s assets, prevent and detect fraud
and protect Shareholders’ investment as well as to ensure that proper
accounting records are maintained and applicable legislation and
regulations are complied with. During the year under review, through
discussions with the management and external auditors, the Board
conducted assessments and reviews of the effectiveness of the Group’s
risk management and internal control system in various perspectives,
including, among others, financial control, operational and compliance
controls and risk management. The risk management and internal
control systems are reviewed by the Board annually and each review

covers a whole financial year.

A bottom-up and top-down approach is utilised to ensure a holistic
risk management process. The bottom-up approach is supported by
key business units to identify and prioritise risks while the top down
approach reviews and assesses if risks are comprehensively identified,
prioritised, and properly addressed by key business units to accomplish

the Group’s objectives.
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The internal audit unit of the Company, which is subordinated to the
Board, formulates the internal audit plan of the Group based on the
strategic objectives analysis, business flow analysis, risk assessment
and performance evaluation and the self-inspection mechanism
with comprehensive risk management functions under the authority
of the Board and the guidance of the Audit Committee. It regularly
reports to the Audit Committee and the Board its audit findings and

recommendations on internal control.

During the year under review, the internal audit unit of the Company
continuously optimised job responsibilities and functions of different
departments according to the annual audit plan approved by the Board.
Such audit work covered financial, operation, statutory compliance
and risk management of the Group at all levels and functions, taking
into account of the manpower cost-effectiveness. During the year
under review, the Board reviewed the effectiveness of the Group’s risk
management and material internal controls system and is of the opinion
that the resources for and qualifications of staff of the Company’s
accounting and financial reporting function are adequate and sufficient.
Based on the information furnished to it and its own observations, the
Board is satisfied with the present risk management and internal control
systems of the Group and considers them effective and adequate.
During the year under review and up to the date of this annual report,

nothing has been found which requires substantial improvement.

The Company has formulated policies on information disclosure and
regularly reminded Directors and employees to properly comply with
relevant policies on inside information while notifying the Directors (who
are also the senior management of the Group) and employees of the latest
guidance announced by the regulatory body on such information disclosure

from time to time to keep all of them abreast of the latest information.
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INTERNAL AUDIT

The internal audit department of the Group is responsible for conducting
internal audits of the Group. Internal audits are designed to provide the
Board with reasonable assurance that the internal control systems of
the Group are effective and the risks associated with the achievement of
business objectives are being managed properly. The department also
conducts other projects and investigation work as and when required.
The Directors were satisfied that an effective control system had been
in operation having reviewed the material controls and all other major

components of the internal control system of the Group for the Year.

DIVIDEND POLICY
The Board has adopted a dividend policy (“Dividend Policy”) in

compliance with code provision E.1.5 of the Corporate Governance Code
with effect from 1 January 2019. Declaration and payment of dividend
by the Company is also subject to the laws of Bermuda, the Byelaws

and any applicable laws, rules and regulations.

Under the Dividend Policy, the Company can declare dividends
from time to time. In deciding whether to propose a dividend and in
determining the dividend amount, the Board shall take into account,
inter alia, the financial performance of the Group, the Group’s expected
working capital requirements, capital expenditure requirements and
future expansion plans, retained earnings and distributable reserves
of the Company and each of the members of the Group, the Group’s
liquidity position, the general economic conditions and other internal or
external factors that may have an impact on the business or financial
performance and position of the Group, and any other factors that the

Board deems relevant.

The Dividend Policy will continue to be reviewed from time to time by
the Board and the Dividend Policy shall in no way constitute a legally
binding commitment by the Company that any dividend will be proposed

or declared in any given period.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS AND SHAREHOLDERS’
COMMUNICATIONS

The Group promotes investor relations and communications by setting
up meetings with the investment community. The Group also responds
to requests for information and queries from the investment community

via the investor relations personnel.

The Board is committed to providing clear and full information of the
Group to Shareholders through sending the Shareholders the Company’s
interim and annual reports, circulars, notices, financial reports as and
when appropriate and providing additional information to Shareholders

in the “Investor Relations” section of the Company’s website.

Annual general meeting of the Company (“Annual General Meeting”)
provides a good opportunity for communications between the Board
and Shareholders. Shareholders are encouraged to attend the Annual
General Meeting. Notice of the Annual General Meeting and related
papers are sent to the Shareholders at least 20 clear business days
before the meeting and the said notice is also published on the
respective websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company. The
Chairman and Directors (if applicable), or the duly appointed delegate
will answer questions on the Group’s business at the Annual General

Meeting. External auditors will also attend the Annual General Meeting.

Pursuant to Rule 13.39(4) of the Listing Rules, any vote of Shareholders
at a general meeting must be taken by poll. Therefore, all the resolutions
put to the vote at the Annual General Meeting will be taken by way of

poll.

The poll is conducted by the Company’s share registrar and results
of the poll will be published on the respective websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company. Financial and other information are made
available on the Company’s website and updated regularly. Specific
enquiries and suggestions by Shareholders can be sent in writing to the
Board or the Company Secretary at the Company’s registered office in
Hong Kong at Unit 1206, 12th Floor, Billion Trade Centre, 31 Hung To
Road, Kwun Tong, Hong Kong.
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PROCEDURES FOR SHAREHOLDERS TO
CONVENE A GENERAL MEETING/PUT
FORWARD PROPOSALS

A.
1.

Procedures for Shareholders to convene a general meeting

Shareholder(s) holding at the date of deposit of the requisition
not less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the Company
shall at all times have the right, by written requisition sent to the
Company’s registered office in Hong Kong at Unit 1206, 12th
Floor, Billion Trade Centre, 31 Hung To Road, Kwun Tong, Hong
Kong, for the attention to the Board or the Company Secretary,
to require a special general meeting to be called by the Board for
the transaction of any business specified in such requisition; and
such meeting shall be held within two (2) months after the deposit

of such requisition.

The written requisition must state the purposes of the meeting,
and must be signed by the Shareholder(s) concerned and may
consist of several documents in like form, each signed by one or

more of those Shareholder(s).

The requisition will be verified with the Company’s branch share
registrar and upon their confirmation that the requisition is
proper and in order, the Company Secretary will ask the Board
to convene a special general meeting by serving sufficient notice
in accordance with the statutory requirements and the Listing
Rules to all the registered Shareholders. On the contrary, if the
requisition has been verified as not in order, the Shareholder(s)
concerned will be advised of this outcome and accordingly, a

special general meeting will not be convened as requested.
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The notice period to be given to all the registered Shareholders
for consideration of the proposal raised by the Shareholder(s)
concerned at a special general meeting varies according to the

nature of the proposal as follows:

- at least twenty-one (21) clear days’ and not less than
ten (10) clear business days’ notice in writing if the
proposal constitutes a special resolution of the Company,
which cannot be amended other than to a mere clerical

amendment to correct a patent error; and

- at lease fourteen (14) clear days’ and not less than ten
(10) clear business days’ notice in writing if the proposal

constitutes an ordinary resolution of the Company.

Procedures for Shareholders to make proposals at general
meeting other than a proposal of a person for election as
Director

The Shareholder(s) holding not less than one-twentieth of the
total voting rights of those Shareholders having the right to vote at
such meeting or not less than one hundred Shareholders, at the
expenses of the Shareholder(s) concerned, can submit a written

requisition to move a resolution at a general meeting.

The written requisition must state the resolution, accompanied
by a statement of not more than 1,000 words with respect to the
matter referred to in the proposed resolution, signed by all the
Shareholder(s) concerned and may consist of several documents
in like form (which between them contain the signatures of all the

Shareholder(s) concerned).

The written requisition must be deposited at Unit 1206, 12th
Floor, Billion Trade Centre, 31 Hung To Road, Kwun Tong, Hong
Kong, the registered office of the Company in Hong Kong, for
the attention of the Company Secretary not less than six weeks
before the meeting in the case of a requisition requiring notice of
a resolution and not less than one week in the case of any other

requisition.
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4. The requisition will be verified with the Company’s branch share 4.  AKRERHBFEZRIEBZEERE
AN

registrar and upon their confirmation that the requisition is Ko RERERZBREMIRE®E - 2
Proper and in order, the Company Secretary will ask the Board AMEFEZREETS(OIRREBFRE
to (i) include the resolution in the agenda for the Annual General EERMABBARAZESR - (i) REBE
Meeting; or (i) convene a special general meeting by serving FEMER ETHRANREEELRRED
sufficient notice in accordance with the statutory requirements B - FEABFRREERAS - 48
and the Listing Rules to all the registered Shareholders. On the R imBEERKEZERTERE B
contrary, if the requisition has been verified as not in order, the R EMARER - WAMmG) T
Shareholders concerned will be advised of this outcome and ERRFBFRGHIZPINABBRZR
accordingly, (i) the proposed resolution will not be included in the B RN ERERBRABRERRK
agenda for the Annual General Meeting; or (i) a special general =

meeting will not be convened as requested.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS BENX
During the Year, the Company did not amend its constitutional RAFE - ARBWEEFTEET LM -
documents.
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Deloitte

TO THE MEMBERS OF SIM TECHNOLOGY GROUP LIMITED
EAMERERRAH

(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of SIM
Technology Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 74 to 240
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as
at 31 December 2020, and the consolidated statement of profit or
loss, consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2020, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards
on Auditing (“ISAs”). Our responsibilities under those standards are
further described in the Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the International Ethics
Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.
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LR A S GTE S

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate

FREEITEE
MAREABRIRERMNERHE - BAY
ARG ANBERERNEAZRAERNER - &
LEHETERMEBABBGREMBRRLHBA
BREETREN - WATSHELFHEMR
BEEWER -

opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter
Valuation of inventories

We identified the valuation of inventories
as a key audit matter because of the
significant judgement exercised by

the management in determining the
appropriate levels of allowance.

As disclosed in note 25 to the consolidated
financial statements, the carrying

amount of inventories is approximately
HK$219,575,000 as at 31 December
2020. The management of the Group
reviews an ageing analysis of inventories at
the end of the reporting period and makes
allowance for obsolete and/or slow-moving
inventory items identified that are no longer
suitable for use in production or sale. The
management estimates the net realisable
value for such finished goods and raw
materials primarily based on the latest
selling and purchase prices, respectively
and current market conditions.

How our audit addressed
the key audit matter

Our audit procedures to assess the
valuation of inventories included the
following:

o Obtaining an understanding on
management process and control
in identifying obsolete and/or slow-
moving inventories items and how
the management estimates the
allowance of obsolete and slow-
moving inventories items;

o Obtaining the ageing analysis
of inventories and testing
the accuracy by agreeing its
classification by age, on a sample
basis, to goods receipt notes;

o Evaluating the reasonableness
of allowance for inventories with
reference to historical sales
records, ageing analysis and
subsequent selling and purchase
prices of the inventories; and

o Tracing subsequent sales of
inventories and/or subsequent
purchase of materials, on a sample
basis.
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Key audit matter
Valuation of investment properties

We identified the valuation of investment
properties as a key audit matter because
of the significant judgements required

to determine the fair value of investment
properties.

All of the Group’s investment properties are
stated at fair value on valuations performed
by an independent professional valuer (the
“Valuer”). In estimating the fair value of the
properties, the highest and best use of the
properties is their current use. At the end
of the reporting period, the chief financial
officer of the Group works closely with the
independent qualified professional valuer
to establish and determine the appropriate
valuation techniques and inputs. Where
there is a material change in the fair value
of the assets, the causes of the fluctuations
will be reported to the management of the
Group. Fair value of investment properties
is derived by income capitalisation
approach. As disclosed in note 16 to the
consolidated financial statements, the
Group’s investment properties amounted
to HK$718,572,000 as at 31 December
2020. Loss on changes in fair value of
investment properties of HK$14,914,000
was recognised.

The fair value of the Group’s investment
properties was determined by adopting the
valuation techniques with some key inputs,
including capitalisation rate, market rent
and growth rate, assumptions of market
conditions and judgements based on the
valuation performed by the Valuer. Details
of the valuation techniques and key inputs
used in the valuations are disclosed in note

16 in the consolidated financial statements.

How our audit addressed
the key audit matter

QOur audit procedures to assess the
valuation of investment properties included
the following:

° Obtaining the valuation report from
the Valuer and discussing with the
management and the Valuer to
understand the valuation basis,
methodology used and underlying
assumptions applied;

o Assessing the integrity of
information provided by the
management to the Valuer by
comparing details of rental
to the respective underlying
lease agreement. Evaluating
the management's process in
respect of reviewing the valuation
performed by the Valuer;

o Evaluating the competence,
capabilities and objectivity of the
Valuer;

o Assessing the valuation techniques

and reasonableness of key inputs
adopted based on available market
data; and

o Performing market research and
analysis to assess whether the
changes in fair value of investment
properties resulted from the
valuation was reasonable and
consistent with market trends to
our knowledge.
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Key audit matter

Impairment assessment of trade
receivables

We identified impairment assessment of
trade receivables as a key audit matter

because of the involvement of the

significant judgement and management
estimates required to evaluate credit losses
(“ECL") of the Group's trade receivables at

the end of the reporting period.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s

net trade receivables amounting to

approximately HK$96,980,000 and out of
these trade receivables of approximately

HK$46,724,000 were past due.
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How our audit addressed
the key audit matter

Our procedures in relation to impairment
assessment of trade receivables included:

Understanding key controls on how
the management estimates the loss
allowance for trade receivables;

Testing the integrity of information
used by the management to
develop the provision matrix,
including trade receivables ageing
analysis as at 31 December 2020,
on a sample basis, by comparing
individual items in the analysis
with the probability of default

and recovery rates quoted from
international credit-rating agencies;
and
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Key audit matter
Valuation of trade receivables (continued)

As disclosed in note 27 and 45 to the
financial statements, the management
estimates the ECL of trade receivables
based on an evaluation of the collectability
and age analysis of accounts on every
individual trade debtors with significant
balances and the remaining balances are
grouped based on past due characteristics
and on the management's judgement
including creditworthiness, the past
collection history and forward-looking
information. Estimated loss rates are based
on historical observed default rates over
the expected life of the debtors and are
adjusted for forward-looking information. In
addition, trade receivables that are credit
impaired are assessed for ECL individually.
The loss allowance amount of the credit
impaired trade receivables is measured as
the difference between the asset's carrying
amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows with the consideration of
expected future credit losses.

As disclosed in note 27 and 45 to the
consolidated financial statements, the Group
recognised an impairment allowance for trade
receivables of approximately HK$6,556,000
for the year and the Group’s lifetime ECL on
trade receivables as at 31 December 2020
amounted to approximately HK$26,490,000.

How our audit addressed
the key audit matter

o Challenging the management's
basis and judgement in
determining credit loss allowance
on trade receivables as at 31
December 2020 including
the identification of credit
impaired trade receivables, the
reasonableness of management's
grouping of the remaining trade
debtors into different categories
in the provision matrix, and the
basis of estimated loss rate applied
with reference to the historical
default rates and forward-looking
information.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the annual
report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements and
our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work
we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement
of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND
THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with IFRSs and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as
the directors of the Company determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors of the Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance
with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is
a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted
in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when
it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.
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Independent Auditor's Report

LR A S GTE S

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors of the Company.

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for
our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.
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We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats
or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent
auditor’s report is Chung Chin Cheung.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

25 March 2021
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= AN 18 3%
%/ =) E\ﬁﬁ%
/ear ended 31 December 2020
T _EF+_A=+—HILFE

Continuing operations
Revenue
Cost of sales and services

Gross profit

Other income

Impairment losses under expected credit
loss model, net of reversal

Other gains and losses

Research and development expenses

Selling and distribution costs

Administrative expenses

Share of results of associates

Finance costs

Loss before taxation
Taxation

Loss for the year from continuing operation

Discontinued operations
Loss for the year from discontinued
operations

Loss for the year

Loss attributable to the owners of
the Company
From continuing operations
From discontinued operations

(Loss) profit attributable to non-controlling
interests
From continuing operations
From discontinued operations

Total (loss) profit for the year attributable to:

Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2020

Notes

Hret

FESExR
YA 5
HE MARFERAR

EH

Hipg A 7
BEHEEBEEATZ

RIERE - FRREE 8
Hitp s K EsiR 7
MAKRAZEER
HHE MDA
1T
DIRBERRIEE 23
BERA 9
B A 5 1R
IR 11

SEKEEBNAFEER 13

BRIEE&EK
BRI ETS R
NEEEE 12
AEZEE
RAREER AEGEE

KREFBELEER
KEERIEEERE

IR RS (B 18) & A

PNSEST e 37
KEBRIEREES

ToI AR 4 e (A58)
RF

ADFRE
SErERiE R

2020 2019
—ECEF —E-NEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FH&xT FHT
(restated)

(s E5)

938,333 1,155,018
(820,370) (1,032,508)
117,963 122,510
33,148 32,508
(6,937) (27,326)
9,723 2,507
(66,081) (56,215)
(41,855) (55,886)
(91,815) (88,834)
(497) (2,003)
(4,154) (3,282)
(50,505) (76,021)
7,516 19,393
(42,989) (56,628)
(4,204) (18,233)
(47,193) (74,861)
(36,452) (58,526)
(1,871) (18,412)
(38,323) (76,938)
(6,537) 1,897
(2,333) 180
(8,870) 2,077
(38,323) (76,938)
(8,870) 2,077
(47,193) (74,861)




Notes
Mt
Loss per share (HK cents) SREE (GBL) 15
From continuing and discontinued operations 2R B 5B L% & BRI E L %R
Basic E- 9N
Diluted e
From continuing operations REFHELEER
Basic E- 9N
Diluted e

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

meEBZER

For the year ended 31 December 2020

BE-_T-_TF+_A=+—HULEE
2020 2019

S E L
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
(restated)

(&)
(1.61) (3.11)
(1.61) (3.11)
(1.53) (2.37)
(1.53) (2.37)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020

ﬁzf?IZ ZA=t+—HIFE
2020 2019
s —ZT-NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
(restated)
(s&E7)
Loss for the year AEEE5E (47,193) (74,861)
Other comprehensive income (expense) Hin 2wz (%)
[tems that will not be subsequently HEEBTIeEHHIEE
reclassified to profit or loss AEEEEZEE ¢
during the year:
Surplus on transfer of right-of-use assets, L AEEE Mm% -
property, plant and equipment TR 55 B s DA R 5 R
and properties held for sale HEMEER RN TE
to investment properties at fair value AR Z I E Y 2 Btk 40,642 84,486
Fair value (loss) gain on investment in equity WERNE AT EFAEM
instrument at fair value through other ZHEWRENBRATA
comprehensive income 2 ATHE (E518) s (315) 15,609
Deferred tax relating to items that EAAEHHEEBmMNIER
will not be reclassified to profit or loss B IELERIA (9,329) (25,024)
Exchange difference arising on BMEEE2Y|EMEE
translation to presentation currency ZIERER 69,912 (13,308)
Other comprehensive income Hiv 2 A 100,910 61,763
Total comprehensive income (expense) AEE2ENE (FX) 8%
for the year 53,717 (13,098)
Total comprehensive income (expense) THIZEEL 2R ()
attributable to: HEE
Owners of the Company ViN/NETEZZ =N 59,191 (14,663)
Non-controlling interests VTR (5,474) 1,565
53,717 (13,098)
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

wRE SRR R
At 31 December 2020
N_Z_TFE+_A=+—H
2020 2019
—BoEHF E—NEF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
BisE FET FET
Non-current assets FRBEE
Investment properties wEYZE 16 718,572 608,388
Property, plant and equipment Y% - B R&E 17 234,451 267,712
Right-of-use assets FRAEEE 18 70,019 55,098
Goodwill EES 20 - =
Intangible assets B EE 21 66,455 116,704
Deferred tax assets BIERIA B B 22 54,029 44,092
Finance lease receivables FElmERE 19 - 188
Interests in associates AN 23 32,548 6,647
Equity instruments at fair value through BAFEF AR MEERE
other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”) (A EFAEMEE
Wzsl) 2 RART A 24 12,382 669
Other receivables A e SR IE 27 6,600 7,412
Consideration receivables WA E 3,600 4,043
1,198,656 1,110,953
Current assets REEE
Inventories w8 25 219,575 250,771
Finance lease receivables R ERE 19 - 169
Properties held for sale FEHEE 26 9,601 12,711
Trade and notes receivables EUE SRR =5 27 116,138 282,462
Contract assets BHEE 27 - 11,201
Other receivables, deposits and HE KRR « 2 d
prepayments EEUNE 27 240,232 230,478
Consideration receivables WA E 26,832 1,857
Amount due from an associate U — R B 2 R B FRTE 27 17,161 -
Amounts due from non-controlling FEUSHT B A F)
shareholders of subsidiaries AR AR FRIA 27 4,248 4,496
Financial assets at fair value through BAFEFABRE (EATFE
profit or loss (“FVTPL”) FTAER] ceREE 24 13,784 22,512
Pledged bank deposits EIEFIRITIER 28 5,857 31,226
Short-term bank deposits EHISRITE K 28 281,617 296,380
Bank balances and cash RITHEBRIES 28 667,935 611,714
1,602,980 1,755,977
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

FEMBARRE

At 31 December 2020

\ZE-EF+ A= H

Notes
Kiat

Current liabilities mEAE
Trade and notes payables FERT B SRR R =k 29
Contract liabilities AHEE 30
Deposits from tenants HRIES 29
Other payables, deposits received, HEMEAARR

accruals and deferred income BURIES « BT RIER
B A 29

Bank borrowings RITEE 31
Lease liabilities HEAE 32
Tax payable FETFRIR

Net current assets REBEEFRE

Total assets less current liabilities HEERRBARE

Capital and reserves BEARRHE
Share capital (&N 83
Reserves Bt 34

Equity attributable to owners of the Company N2 & #EA AFE(G RS

Non-controlling interests IR AR 2

Total equity AR

Non-current liabilities ERBERE
Deposits from tenants HRIES 29
Lease liabilities HEAE 32
Deferred tax liabilities FEEFIR A E 22
Deferred income RIEUA 29

The consolidated financial statements on pages 74 to 240 were
approved by the Board of Directors on 25 March 2021 and are
signed on its behalf by:

WONG CHO TUNG
FHE

DIRECTOR

EF

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2020

HNETAAE2408 2 FEMBRKRE T

2020 2019
—ECEF —E—-hF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
199,504 224,322
129,615 202,255
1,348 1,092
36,282 43,315
36,000 77,936
8,764 6,319
36,606 40,224
448,119 595,463
1,154,861 1,160,514
2,353,517 2,271,467
236,254 243,072
1,896,148 1,849,269
2,132,402 2,092,341
15,463 18,330
2,147,865 2,110,671
15,797 9,866
25,075 2,865
126,465 112,413
38,315 35,652
205,652 160,796
2,353,517 2,271,467
AT —4

SAZTHREEFEE  YAUTERRRE

=

LIU JUN
2=
DIRECTOR
EF



Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

E=AN \sslgs\g,%@?%
/Zw\ = & m &

For the year ended 31 December 2020

HE_Z-_ZTF+-_A=+—HIFE
Attributable to owners of the Company
RATREAER
Statutory Sharebased ~ Employee  Properties Rssets  Capital Non-
Share Share — surpls Other ~ payment share  revaluation  revaluation  redemption  Translation  Retained controling
capital ~ premium~ resee resene  reseme tustresene resene resene  resene resene profits Total  inferests Total
e kB BERH H i g 2%

Bh BAEE BRSE  AMBE  ANME  GRBRE  EMRE  EMRE  WEER MR REM &if B &
HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKSO00  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS000  HK$000
T&r Tar Tt Tar TRt Tt TRt TRt TRt TRt TR TR TR TR
(Notea) ~ (Nteh)
(it (sho)

At LJanuary 2019 KE-NE-A-R W05 8u 813 %28 19231 - 135 17184 6212 13279 619414 2159034 83406 22249
(Los) ot frthe year TER(ER)ER - - - - - - - - - - 6%y 6% 2m (M8
Othercompretenshencome. - AEFEf

(ewpense) for e ear 2ENERR) - - - = = - B¥ 1w - (127 - R (V]
Tod compehensieincome. - ZEE2FNE

(exoense) for he year (Fx)48 - - - - - S X S V1 - (121  (6%8) (14663 1565 (130%9)
Shaeopons epsedfoteled ~ BRERD/ 2Rk - - - - () - - - - - €1 - - -

Gai on partal disposa ofequly  SAEERDFER
insfuments at FVTOC) MifeREkE,

RETE 24 = = = = = = - (0 - - %10 - -
Deregstredofanonsholy  ~FA2ENEDT
oined subsiday Mgt - - (%) - - - - - - - % - 0w

Reduction nregisred captelina. ~EF2EHEAT

nonaolyomedsubsiary  SFERED - - - - - - - - - - - B w3

Trnster fostautoy surpus resene BBZERESRE - -1 - - - - - - -1 - -
Repuchase ofordnaryshares R (8%3 (18084 - - - - - - 8933 - B%) ) )
Dividend paid BifRs = = o S = o S = - (A% (u99) - (4%
Dividend pad foroncontoling ~ F-HB AR

shaeodersofa subsiday — RRRRARS - - - - - - - - - - (142 (14
131 December 2019 HE-NE

o w0 y61B 04,20 %2 19041 - R 28 Biey 12008 54303 209234 B30 2110671

Loss for the year it - - - - - - - - - - (833 (833 680 (47,193)
Othercompretenshencome. - AEFEf

(expense) forthe year ANERER) - - - - - - 314 (236) - 66215 - 95 33% 100910
Tod compehensieincome. - ZEE2FE

(expense) for the year (Bt - - - - - - 314 (236) - 66275 (3833 59191 (44 5307
Betcise of share opfons e - 1 - - [ - - - - - - - - -
Share optons psedfoeted B/ 2RA - - - - (436) - - - - - 48 - -
Purchase of sheres under e share 51748518

g schere BERf - - - - - e - - - - - B8 - B
Diesclof sy i - ) - - - - ; SOOI 3w 195 267 45
Repurchese of ordnaryshares SRR (6818)  (11,030) - - - - - B it - 681y (17849 - (188
Tt fosautoy surplus resene BBZ 2 TRHEE - B K - - - - - - (138 - -

4131 December 2020 HoE25E
o 26254 795004 68300 9528 18,554 (3,187 2343% 1945 21983 188183 475598 2132400 15463 2147865
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For the year ended 31 December 2020

(b)

7S —F — T4
T ==

S

HItFE

As stipulated by the relevant laws and regulations of the People’s
Republic of China (“PRC"), before distribution of the net profit each year,
the subsidiaries established in the PRC shall set aside 10% of their net
profit after taxation for the statutory surplus reserve fund (except where
the reserve has reached 50% of the subsidiaries’ registered capital). The
reserve fund can only be used, upon approval by the board of directors
of the relevant subsidiaries and by the relevant authority, to offset
accumulated losses or increase capital.

Other reserve is arisen from the reorganisation in preparation for the
listing of the Company’s shares on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited, and the difference between the considerations
paid and the relevant non-controlling interests upon the acquisition of
additional interests in subsidiaries.

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2020

iz

(a)

(b)

IR E ARFNE ([P E)ERRERRE - AP
B2 B R REFARNIREEAE TR A&
FEMBL0%ERETE B FS (REERNE A BT
BAARBO%IER TR © ZEHEEEER BN EHEREE
BIEMER  HRAESHRBMNEBARESE RERE
ERIBIE -

REBARARMNEBEEH AR SAERATER LD
METEAEE 2 BMHEE - RENREERKENS
RRIMEESMES S AR IR R M E R ER -



OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Loss before taxation
Adjustments for:
Finance costs
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Depreciation of right-of-use assets
Amortisation of intangible assets
(Gain) loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment

Gain arising on early termination of lease contracts

Net gain on deregistration of subsidiaries

Gain on disposal of a subsidiary

Gain on disposal of an associate

Impairment loss on financial assets and other
items under expected credit loss model,
net of reversal

Impairment loss on property,
plant and equipment

Impairment loss on intangible assets

Impairment loss on goodwill

Revalution gain on investment in associate

Share of results of associates

(Reversal) allowance for inventories

Changes in fair values of investment properties

Fair value change on financial assets at
FVTPL

Interest income

Operating cash flows before movements
in working capital

Decrease in inventories

Decrease in properties held for sales

Decrease (increase) in trade and notes receivables

(Increase) decrease in other receivables, deposits
and prepayments

Decrease in contract assets

Decrease in finance lease receivables

Increase in amount due from associate

Increase in amount due from non-controlling
shareholders of subsidiaries

Increase in trade and notes payables

Decrease in contract liabilities

(Decrease) increase in other payables,
deposits received and accruals and
deferred income

Cash generated from operations
Interest received
PRC tax (paid) refund net

NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
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HE—EBE ARz W

BHEEBEEATZ
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W% - BB RERRZRERE

TV AE 2 AIERE
A 2 AERA
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ATELE
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GENERE
HEH D
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For the year ended 31 December 2020

BE—T-—TEt+—B=t—AILEE
2020 2019
—B-%F  _T-NF
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FHET FHIT
(56,652) (91,497)
1,769 2636
40,352 37,468
13,441 11,176
105,313 113,157
(630) 440
(81) (13)
- (1,144)
(5,613) _
- (1,660)
21,618 35,484
- 1,315
19,000 21,072
- 3,706
(2,719) (4,603)
497 2,003
(28,699) 8,075
14,914 (12,779)
(101) (4,234)
(19,064) (17,458)
103,345 103,144
9,234 119,786
3,759 6,798
97,684 (60,148)
(3,824) 195,430
11,301 36,153
- 390
(17,161) _
(4,248) _
29,062 35,627
(58,977) (16,545)
(2,694) 26,310
167,481 446,945
19,064 17,458
(1,290) 16,327
185,255 480,730
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
FEaRenER

Frh yee wer 1 31 December 2020
: F HIEFE

INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Notes

Kzt
REFE

Purchases of property, plant and equipment B E %% - Bz &k &E

Proceeds from disposal of
— financial assets at FVTPL
— equity instruments at FVTOCI

Purchases of
— financial assets at FVTPL
— equity instruments at FVTOCL

Proceeds from disposal of property,
plant and equipment

Net cash inflow on disposal of subsidiaries

Net cash outflow on acquisition of a
subsidiary

Development costs paid

Investment in an associate

Placement of pledged bank deposits

Withdrawal of pledged bank deposits

Placement of short-term bank deposits

Withdrawal of short term bank deposits

Receipt of consideration receivables

NET CASH USED IN
INVESTING ACTIVITIES

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

New bank borrowings raised

Repayment of bank borrowings

Decrease in other liabilities

Interest paid

Dividend paid

Dividend paid to non-controlling
shareholders of a subsidiary

Repurchase of shares

Purchase of shares under Share
award scheme

Cash transfered to non-controlling interest
of a subsidiary upon share reduction in

registered capital of a subsidiary that does

not result in losing control
Repayment of lease liabilities

NET CASH USED IN FINANCING
ACTIVITIES

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
BEGINNING OF THE YEAR

EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATE
CHANGES

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
END OF THE YEAR,
represented by bank balances and cash

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2020
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peck 41
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R—REgE AR 2 %E
FAREBRRITER
R B EIRRITERK
TFARHRITER
REVEHIRITIE
URER FE U (X (B

REFHFTAZHEERE

BEE
FERITIEE

BBIRITIEE
Hh B ER A
EAFLE
SR
B — KT B A R e AR A B
ZHRE

FEBIRR D

RIRA (7 H2Eh 5T 2108 B AR 1D

H— ﬁW% AR AR E AR
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EEEEaE
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RERRESEEBBEMOED)
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FARERREEHEEHR
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FRESRREEEER -
BIsR1TAE R IR &

2020 2019
—E-—%F —niF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FBT FBT
(23,254) (31,847)
111,210 =
- 42,828
(101,970) -
(11,330) (1,142)
1,190 8,387
2,845 =
- (18,412)
(68,377) (104,643)
- (4,576)
(39,987) (52,722)
65,961 78,344
(209,617) (296,380)
229,000 -
1,246 3,372
(43,083) (376,791)
90,640 113,112
(135,280) (124,804)
- (29,484)
(1,769) (2,636)
- (24,993)
- (142)
(17,848) (27,037)
(3,187) =
- (45,354)
(8,973) (8,263)
(76,417) (149,601)
65,755 (45,662)
611,714 647,776
(9,534) 9,600
667,935 611,714
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The Company was incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted
company under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda
(as amended) with limited liability. The addresses of the
registered office and principal place of business of the
Company are disclosed in the corporate information section
of the annual report.

The functional currency of the Company is Renminbi
(“RMB”). The consolidated financial statements are
presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”), as the Directors
consider that it is a more appropriate presentation for a
company listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) and for the convenience of
the shareholders.

The Company is an investment holding company. The
activities of its principal subsidiaries are disclosed in note
46.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO INTERNATIONAL
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“IFRSs")

RRBIREBARE-NN—FREDE(KE
FDRBREZIMKZAERREERAG - K
RAZEMMPER L EBERMIBEFRZIAD
AER —EAEE

ARBZNEEERBARE ([ARK]) « KiR
BUBHRERABT (BT 2 - DEESRR
RER—BBREMARIMERRAA (B
FTDE EmARMTEARBIIR - BFHE@RK
WET2NEREE

AARAE—RREERAT - EXEHBAF
2 ETEA M 461K FE -

V& FAnR] BIRR B A5 s 5 22 Al (B
PREF SR E 2R ) R EHAZET

New and Amendments to IFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year

The Group has applied the following new and amendments
to IFRSs for the first time in the current year:

Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8

BIpR e s R 155 R BB & 5 R B85k 2 85T
Amendments to IFRS 3

BB B 745 i HE RI B 35% 2 A8 ET

Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39 and IFRS 7

BIPR B RS i S M RSB 05 - B &5t 2EBI 58395k M BARR B 7%
HELERIE7H BT

In addition, the Group has early applied the Amendment to
|IFRS 16 Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions.

Except as described below, the application of the
Amendments to References to the Conceptual Framework
in IFRS Standards and the amendments to IFRSs in the
current year had no material impact on the Group’s financial
positions and performance for the current and prior years
and/or on the disclosures set out in these consolidated
financial statements.

RASF IR H 4 Rz i eT BRI 8|S 2R R
HAERT

AEBORAFE ERERATHET BRSNS
WEERIREERT

Definition of Material
BRZESR

Definition of a Business
FBZEE

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform

EE S e

AN - AR E T SRR R R B R B A R R SR
16552/ Covid-19/G8 182 Bt

BRI Xt SN - MAFE R SRS
R 2 SRl B AR IR Z B AT M BIRR B TS R 5
AZETHARERANFE RBEFEZHB
AR RRE R, L% EERERE M B IRR A
B HBEIBREATE -
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO INTERNATIONAL
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“IFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

FE R # =] B RS B 75 3 5 2 Al ([ Bl
BRE RS A ]) R EAERT (&)

New and Amendments to IFRSs that are mandatorily

effective for the current year (conTINUED)

Impact on application of amendment to IFRS 16 Covid-

19-Related Rent Concessions

The Group has applied the amendment for the first time
in the current year. The amendment introduces a new
practical expedient for lessees to elect not to assess whether
a Covid-19-related rent concession is a lease modification.
The practical expedient only applies to rent concessions
occurring as a direct consequence of the Covid-19 that

meets all of the following conditions:

° the change in lease payments results in revised
consideration for the lease that is substantially the
same as, or less than, the consideration for the lease

immediately preceding the change;

° any reduction in lease payments affects only payments

originally due on or before 30 June 2021; and

o there is no substantive change to other terms and

conditions of the lease.

A lessee applying the practical expedient accounts for
changes in lease payments resulting from rent concessions
the same way it would account for the changes applying
IFRS 16 Leases if the changes were not a lease modification.
Forgiveness or waiver of lease payments are accounted for
as variable lease payments. The related lease liabilities are
adjusted to reflect the amounts forgiven or waived with a
corresponding adjustment recognised in the profit or loss in

the period in which the event occurs.

The application of the amendment had no impact to the
opening retained profits at 1 January 2020. The Group has
benefited from one to six months waiver of lease payments
on several leases. The Group has derecognised the part of
lease liability that has been extinguished by the forgiveness
of lease payments using the discount rates originally applied
to these leases respectively, resulting in a decrease in the
lease liabilities of HK$79,000, which has been recognised as
variable lease payments in profit or loss for the current year.
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AMENDMENTS TO INTERNATIONAL
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“IFRSs”) (CONTINUED)
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New and amendments to IFRSs in issue but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to IFRSs that have been issued but are not yet
effective:

IFRS 17

B A B 75 i S HE RSB 17557

Amendments to IFRS 3

B PR B 7 e 5 M R S 355 2 A8 5T

Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 16

BUFR B T ¥ S 22 AR O5K - BIPR & 5T 24ERISE395%
RIS E R E 7R - BRI S R 45% Kk
B R B 7 ¥ 5 AR A B 1658 2 (85T

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28

BBR B 7 ¥R 5 AE R S5 1058 M BIBR @ Rt 2RI FE 285k 2 &R

Amendments to IAS 1

BIFR & RIS 158 2 18R]

Amendments to IAS 1 and IFRS Practice Statement 2

B @ at AR RIS 1 5% M BRR B A e 5 HE R B RS 5 32 257 2 1B R]
Amendments to IAS 8

BUFR & ST HERISE8SR 2 18R]

Amendments to IAS 16

BIFR & ST HERISE 1658 2 & R]
Amendments to IAS 37
BUFR & ST HERISE375R 2 & R]
Amendments to IFRSs

BRI 3RS R Z (ER]

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022.

8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined.

& Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021.

The Directors of the Company anticipate that the application
of all other new and amendments to IFRSs will have no
material impact on the consolidated financial statements in
the foreseeable future.

© BR 5 1B 1ol AR A B2 3T AT R ARME AT Bl R B A 3
HER

AEE AR RA TS BME R RERZ
¥l B RS R R BAEA]

Insurance Contracts and the related Amendments!
REE K RABRERT

Reference to the Conceptual Framework?

R SESR?

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 24

MRS —F —HJ

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and
its Associate or Joint Venture?

BREERENBENRREALEZHNAE L EK
PE=

Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current!

BB ES R RBSGEREN

Disclosure of Accounting Policies!

BRI BUERAIIEE!

Definition of Accounting Estimates!

BrHEETHES!

Property, Plant and Equipment — Proceeds before
Intended Use?

M - B Kk — VERUE RR R 2 PR1S 3RIR?

Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a Contract?

BIEAK - BT &K 2 KA

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2018-2020?
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HIEFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

3. EREFHEE

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with IFRSs issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board. In addition, the consolidated
financial statements include applicable disclosures required
by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for certain properties and
financial instruments that are measured at fair values at the
end of each reporting periods as explained in the accounting
policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into
account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into account
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.
Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in
these consolidated financial statements is determined on
such a basis, except for share-based payment transactions
that are accounted for in accordance with IFRS 16 (since
1 January 2019) or IAS 17 (before application of IFRS 16),
and measurements that have some similarities to fair value
but are not fair value, such as net realisable value in IAS 2
Inventories or value in use in IAS 36 Impairment of Assets.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use by
selling it to another market participant that would use the
asset in its highest and best use.

For financial instruments and investment properties which
are transacted at fair value and a valuation technique that
unobservable inputs is to be used to measure fair value in
subsequent periods, the valuation technique is calibrated
so that at initial recognition the results of the valuation
technique equals the transaction price.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EREFBEE)
(CONTINUED)
In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value AN - SR EMS - AFEF2REAF

measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3
based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which
are described as follows:

° Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity
can access at the measurement date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

° Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities controlled
by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved
when the Company:

° has power over the investee;

° has exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power over the investee to
affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to
one or more of the three elements of control listed above.
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HIEFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

3.

EXRSETER(E

Basis of consolidation (coNTINUED)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss from
the date the Group gains control until the date when the
Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
in line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group’s equity therein, which represent
present ownership interests entitling their holders to a
proportionate share of net assets of the relevant subsidiaries
upon liquidation.

Changes in the Group’s interests in existing subsidiaries
Changes in the Group’s interests in subsidiaries that do not
result in the Group losing control over the subsidiaries are
accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts
of the Group’s relevant components of equity and the non-
controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes
in their relative interests in the subsidiaries, including re-
attribution of relevant reserves between the Group and
the non-controlling interests according to the Group’s and
the non-controlling interests’ proportionate interests. Any
difference between the amount by which the non-controlling
interests are adjusted, and the fair value of the consideration
paid or received is recognised directly in equity and
attributed to owners of the Company.

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2020
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EXRGETEE &)

Basis of consolidation (conTINUED)

Changes in the Group’s interests in existing subsidiaries
(CONTINUED)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the assets and
liabilities of that subsidiary and non-controlling interests (if
any) are derecognised. A gain or loss is recognised in profit
or loss and is calculated as the difference between (i) the
aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received and
the fair value of any retained interest and (ii) the previous
carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill), and
liabilities of the subsidiary attributable to the owners of the
Company and any non-controlling interests. All amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income in
relation to that subsidiary are accounted for as if the Group
had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities of
the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss or transferred
to another category of equity as specified/permitted by
applicable IFRSs).

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of
the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the
Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of the
acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised
in profit or loss as incurred.

Except for certain recognition exemptions, the identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed must meet the
definitions of an asset and a liability in the International
Accounting Standards Committee’s Framework for the
Preparation and Presentation of Financial Statements
(replaced by the Conceptual Framework for Financial
Reporting issued in September 2010).
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. ERSFEEGE)
(CONTINUED)
Business combinations (CONTINUED) ¥KE0 (&)

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value,

except that:

o deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or
liabilities related to employee benefit arrangements
are recognised and measured in accordance with
IAS 12 Income Taxes and IAS 19 Employee Benefits

respectively;

o liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-based
payment arrangements of the Group entered into to
replace share-based payment arrangements of the
acquiree are measured in accordance with IFRS 2
Share-based Payment at the acquisition date (see the

accounting policy below);

° assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as
held for sale in accordance with IFRS 5 Non-current
Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations are
measured in accordance with that standard; and

o lease liabilities are recognised and measured at the
present value of the remaining lease payments (as
defined in IFRS 16) as if the acquired leases were
new leases at the acquisition date, except for leases
for which (a) the lease term ends within 12 months
of the acquisition date; or (b) the underlying asset
is of low value. Right-of-use assets are recognised
and measured at the same amount as the relevant
lease liabilities, adjusted to reflect favourable or
unfavourable terms of the lease when compared with

market terms.
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EXRGETEE &)

Business combinations (conTINUED)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over
the net amount of the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed as at acquisition date. If, after re-
assessment, the net amount of the identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess
is recognised immediately in profit or loss as a bargain
purchase gain.

When the consideration transferred by the Group in a
business combination includes a contingent consideration
arrangement, the contingent consideration is measured
at its acquisition-date fair value and included as part of
the consideration transferred in a business combination.
Changes in the fair value of the contingent consideration
that qualify as measurement period adjustments are
adjusted retrospectively. Measurement period adjustments
are adjustments that arise from additional information
obtained during the “measurement period” (which cannot
exceed one year from the acquisition date) about facts and
circumstances that existed at the acquisition date.

The subsequent accounting for the contingent consideration
that do not qualify as measurement period adjustments
depends on how the contingent consideration is classified.
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is
not remeasured at subsequent reporting dates and its
subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.
Contingent consideration that is classified as an asset or a
liability is remeasured to fair value at subsequent reporting
dates, with the corresponding gain or loss being recognised
in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES BEARESFTEER (8)
(CONTINUED)
Business combinations (CONTINUED) ¥KE0 (&)

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the
Group’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree is
remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date (i.e. the
date when the Group obtains control), and the resulting
gain or loss, if any, is recognised in profit or loss or other
comprehensive income, as appropriate. Amounts arising
from interests in the acquiree prior to the acquisition date
that have previously been recognised in other comprehensive
income and measured under IFRS 9 would be accounted
for on the same basis as would be required if the Group had
disposed directly of the previously held equity interest.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is
incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which the
combination occurs, the Group reports provisional amounts
for the items for which the accounting is incomplete. Those
provisional amounts are adjusted retrospectively during the
measurement period (see above), and additional assets or
liabilities are recognised, to reflect new information obtained
about facts and circumstances that existed at the acquisition
date that, if known, would have affected the amounts
recognised at that date.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at
cost as established at the date of acquisition of the business
(see the accounting policy above) less accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated
to each of the Group’s cash-generating units (or group
of cash-generating units) that is expected to benefit from
the synergies of the combination, which represent the
lowest level at which the goodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes and not larger than an operating
segment.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. ERSFHEEE)
(CONTINUED)
Goodwill (CONTINUED) e (E)

A cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating units) to
which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
annually or more frequently when there is indication that the
unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition
in a reporting period, the cash-generating unit (or group of
cash-generating units) to which goodwill has been allocated is
tested for impairment before the end of that reporting period.
If the recoverable amount is less than its carrying amount,
the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill and then to the other assets on a
pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of each asset in
the unit (or group of cash-generating units).

Interests in associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in
the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee
but is not control or joint control over those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements using
the equity method of accounting. The financial statements of
associates used for equity accounting purposes are prepared
using uniform accounting policies as those of the Group
for like transactions and events in similar circumstances.
Under the equity method, an investment in an associate is
initially recognised in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the
Group’s share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive
income of the associate. When the Group’s share of losses of
an associate exceeds the Group’s interest in that associate
(which includes any long-term interests that, in substance,
form part of the Group’s net investment in the associate), the
Group discontinues recognising its share of further losses.
Additional losses are recognised only to the extent that the
Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of the associate.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

3.

EXRSFTEER &)

Interests in associates (CONTINUED)

An investment in an associate is accounted for using the
equity method from the date of which the investee becomes
an associate. On acquisition of the investment in an associate,
any excess of the cost of the investment over the Group’s
share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities of the investee is recognised as goodwill, which
is included within the carrying amount of the investment.
Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of
the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of the
investment, after reassessment, is recognised immediately
in profit or loss in the period in which the investment is
acquired.

The Group assesses whether there is an objective evidence
that the interest in an associate may be impaired. When any
objective evidence exists, the entire carrying amount of the
investment is tested for impairment in accordance with IAS
36 as a single asset by comparing its recoverable amount
(higher of value in use and fair value less costs of disposal)
with its carrying amount. Any impairment loss recognised is
not allocated to any asset, including goodwill, that forms part
of the carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal of that
impairment loss is recognised in accordance with IAS 36
to the extent that the recoverable amount of the investment
subsequently increases.

When the Group ceases to have significant influence over
an associate, it is accounted for as a disposal of the entire
interest in the investee with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss. In addition, the Group accounts
for all amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in relation to that associate on the same basis as
would be required if that associate had directly disposed
of the related assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or
loss previously recognised in other comprehensive income
by that associate would be reclassified to profit or loss on
the disposal of the related assets or liabilities, the Group
reclassifies the gain or loss from equity to profit or loss (as
a reclassification adjustment) upon disposal of the relevant
associate.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. ERSFHEEE)
(CONTINUED)
Revenue from contracts with customers BEEGHKBA

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or
services underlying the particular performance obligation is
transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or
a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of
distinct goods or services that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised
over time by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation if one of
the following criteria is met:

° the customer simultaneously receives and consumes
the benefits provided by the Group’s performance as
the Groupperforms;

o the Group’s performance creates and enhances
an asset that the customer controls as the Group
performs; or

° the Group’s performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the Group and the Group
has an enforceable right to payment for performance
completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the distinct good or service.

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to consideration
in exchange for goods or services that the Group has
transferred to a customer that is not yet unconditional. It
is assessed for impairment in accordance with IFRS 9. In
contrast, a receivable represents the Group’s unconditional
right to consideration, i.e. only the passage of time is
required before payment of that consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to
transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Group
has received consideration (or an amount of consideration is
due) from the customer.

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to the same
contract are accounted for and presented on a net basis.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

3.

EREFBERE)

Over time revenue recognition: measurement of progress
towards complete satisfaction of a performance obligation
Input method

The progress towards complete satisfaction of a performance
obligation in electronics manufacturing services contracts
is measured based on input method, which is to recognise
revenue on the basis of the Group’s efforts or inputs to the
satisfaction of a performance obligation relative to the total
expected inputs to the satisfaction of that performance
obligation, that best depict the Group’s performance in
transferring control of goods or services.

Principal versus agent

When another party is involved in providing goods or
services to a customer, the Group determines whether the
nature of its promise is a performance obligation to provide
the specified goods or services itself (i.e. the Group is a
principal) or to arrange for those goods or services to be
provided by the other party (i.e. the Group is an agent).

The Group is a principal if it controls the specified good
or service before that good or service is transferred to a
customer, as in contracts for sale of handsets and 0T
terminals, own-branded products manufacturing, sale of
goods to vending machine customers, sale of intelligent
manufacturing products and sale of properties.

The Group is an agent if its performance obligation is to
arrange for the provision of the specified good or service by
another party. In this case, the Group does not control the
specified good or service provided by another party before
that good or service is transferred to the customer. When
the Group acts as an agent, as in contracts for electronics
manufacturing services and procurement agency services, it
recognises revenue in the amount of any fee or commission
to which it expects to be entitled in exchange for arranging
for the specified goods or services to be provided by the
other party.
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EXRGETEE &)

Leases

Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the
right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after the date
of initial application or arising from business combinations,
the Group assesses whether a contract is or contains a
lease based on the definition under IFRS 16 at inception,
modification date or acquisition date, as appropriate.
Such contract will not be reassessed unless the terms and
conditions of the contract are subsequently changed.

The Group as a lessee

Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

For a contract that contains a lease component and one or
more additional lease or non-lease components, the Group
allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease
component on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of
the lease component and the aggregate stand-alone price of
the non-lease components.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to leases of office premises and warehouse
that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the
commencement date and do not contain a purchase option.
It also applies the recognition exemption for lease of low-
value assets. Lease payments on short-term leases and
leases of low-value assets are recognised as expense on a
straight-line basis or another systematic basis over the lease
term.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

EREFBERE)

Leases (CONTINUED)

The Group as a lessee (coNTINUED)
Right-of-use assets

The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

o the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liability;

° any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives
received;

° any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

Except for those that are classified as investment properties
and measured under fair value model, right-of-use assets
are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation
and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement
of lease liabilities other than adjustments to lease liabilities
resulting from Covid-19-related rent concessions in which
the Group applied the practical expedient.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably certain
to obtain ownership of the underlying leased assets at the
end of the lease term are depreciated from commencement
date to the end of the useful life. Otherwise, right-of-use
assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the
shorter of its estimated useful life and the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a separate line
item on the consolidated statement of financial position.

Refundable rental deposits
Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under IFRS
9 Financial Instruments (“IFRS 9”) and initially measured at
fair value. Adjustments to fair value at initial recognition are
considered as additional lease payments and included in the
cost of right-of-use assets.
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EXRGETEE &)

Leases (CONTINUED)

The Group as a lessee (cONTINUED)

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group recognises
and measures the lease liability at the present value of
lease payments that are unpaid at that date. In calculating
the present value of lease payments, the Group uses the
incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement
date if the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable.

The lease payments include:

° fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments) less any lease incentives receivable;

° payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising an option to
terminate the lease.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are adjusted
by interest accretion and lease payments.

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a
corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use assets)
whenever:

° the lease term has changed, in which case the related
lease liability is remeasured by discounting the revised
lease payments using a revised discount rate at the
date of reassessment.

° the lease payments change due to changes in market
rental rates followings a market rent review in which
cases the related lease liability is remeasured by
discounting the revised lease payments using the
initial discount rate.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line item
on the consolidated statement of financial position.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES BEARESFTEER (8)
(CONTINUED)

Leases (CONTINUED) HE @

The Group as a lessee (CONTINUED) AEEERABA ()
Lease modifications HEEET

Except for Covid-19-related rent concessions in which the
Group applied the practical expedient, the Group accounts
for a lease modification as a separate lease if:

° the modification increases the scope of the lease by
adding the right to use one or more underlying assets;
and

o the consideration for the leases increases by an
amount commensurate with the stand-alone price for
the increase in scope and any appropriate adjustments
to that stand-alone price to reflect the circumstances
of the particular contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a
separate lease, the Group remeasures the lease liability
based on the lease term of the modified lease by discounting
the revised lease payments using a revised discount rate at
the effective date of the modification.

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease
liabilities and lease incentives from lessor by making
corresponding adjustments to the relevant right-of-use asset.
When the modified contract contains a lease component and
one or more additional lease or non-lease components, the
Group allocates the consideration in the modified contract
to each lease component on the basis of the relative stand-
alone price of the lease component and the aggregate stand-
alone price of the non-lease components.
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EXRETBER ()

Leases (CONTINUED)

The Group as a lessee (cONTINUED)

Covid-19-related rent concessions

In relation to rent concessions that occurred as a direct
consequence of the Covid-19 pandemic, the Group has
elected to apply the practical expedient not to assess
whether the change is a lease modification if all of the
following conditions are met:

° the change in lease payments results in revised
consideration for the lease that is substantially the
same as, or less than, the consideration for the lease
immediately preceding the change;

° any reduction in lease payments affects only payments
originally due on or before 30 June 2021; and

o there is no substantive change to other terms and
conditions of the lease.

A lessee applying the practical expedient accounts for
changes in lease payments resulting from rent concessions
the same way it would account for the changes applying
HKFRS 16 if the changes are not a lease modification.
Forgiveness or waiver of lease payments are accounted for
as variable lease payments. The related lease liabilities are
adjusted to reflect the amounts forgiven or waived with a
corresponding adjustment recognised in the profit or loss in
the period in which the event occurs.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES BEARESFTEER (8)
(CONTINUED)

Leases (CONTINUED) HE @

The Group as a lessor AEEEHBLHEA

Classification and measurement of leases

Leases for which the Group is a lessor are classified as
finance or operating leases. Whenever the terms of the lease
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of an underlying asset to the lessee, the contract is
classified as a finance lease. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are
recognised as receivables at commencement date at
amounts equal to net investments in the leases, measured
using the interest rate implicit in the respective leases. Initial
direct costs (other than those incurred by manufacturer or
dealer lessors) are included in the initial measurement of the
net investments in the leases. Interest income is allocated to
accounting periods so as to reflect a constant periodic rate of
return on the Group’s net investment outstanding in respect
of the leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit
or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease.

Rental income which are derived from the Group’s ordinary
course of business are presented as revenue.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits received are accounted for under
IFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments to
fair value at initial recognition are considered as additional
lease payments from lessees.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

iR e BT R MY o
For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE_T_TFE+_A=1T—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EXEFBEGE)
(CONTINUED)

Leases (CONTINUED) HE @

The Group as a lessor (continued) AEEERBLHBN ()
Lease modification HEEET

Changes in considerations of lease contracts that were not
part of the original terms and conditions are accounted for
as lease modifications, including lease incentives provided
through forgiveness or reduction of rentals.

The Group accounts for a modification to an operating lease
as a new lease from the effective date of the modification,
considering any prepaid or accrued lease payments relating
to the original lease as part of the lease payments for the
new lease.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are
recognised at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the
dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting period,
monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit of loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s entities
are translated into the presentation currency of the Group
(i.e. HK$) at the rate of exchange prevailing at the end
of the reporting period, and their income and expenses
are translated at the average exchange rates for the year.
Exchange differences arising are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under
the heading of the translation reserve (attributed to non-
controlling interests as appropriate).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2020

AL

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

3.

EREFBERE)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to
get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost
of those assets until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income
earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings
pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted
from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be
received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on
a systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which the
grants are intended to compensate. Specifically, government
grants where primary condition is that the Group should
purchase, construct or otherwise acquire non-current assets
are recognised as deferred income in the consolidated
statement of financial position and transferred to profit or
loss over the useful lives of the related assets.

Government grants related to income that are receivable as
compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or
for the purpose of giving immediate financial support to the
Group with no future related costs are recognised in profit
or loss on a systematic and rational basis in the period in
which they become receivable. Government grants relating
to compensation of expenses are deducted from the related
expenses, other government grants are presented under
“other income”.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE_T_TFE+_A=1T—HILFE
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EXRZFBER(E)
(CONTINUED)
Retirement benefit costs B RE R A A
Payments to state-managed retirement benefits schemes MERER 2R RENEE Rt AEeEE
and the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“MPF (MaESTEl) X2 FIBNE B REREM

Scheme”) are recognised as an expense when employees
have rendered service entitling them to the contributions.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid as
and when employees rendered the services. All short-term
employee benefits are recognised as an expense unless
another IFRS requires or permits the inclusion of the benefit
in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees
(such as wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave)
after deducting any amount already paid.

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
Shares/share options granted to employees

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and
others providing similar services are measured at the fair
value of the equity instruments at the grant date.

The fair value of the equity-settled share-based payments
determined at the grant date without taking into
consideration all non-market vesting conditions is expensed
on a straight-line basis over the vesting period, based on the
Group’s estimate of equity instruments that will eventually
vest, with a corresponding increase in equity (share-based
payments reserve).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

3.

EREFBERE)

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions (conTINUED)
Shares/share options granted to employees (continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its
estimate of the number of options that are expected to vest
based on assessment of all relevant non-market vesting
conditions. The impact of the revision of the original estimate,
if any, is recognised in profit or loss such that the cumulative
expense reflects the revised estimate, with a corresponding
adjustment to share based payment reserve.

When the share options are exercised, the amount
previously recognised in share based payment reserve will
be transferred to share premium. When the share options
are forfeited after the vesting date or still not exercised at
the expiry date, the amount previously recognised in share
based payment reserve will be transferred to retained profits.

Share award granted to employees

For share award schemes, the fair value of services received,
determined by reference to the fair value of awarded shares
granted at the grant date, is expensed on a straight-line
basis over the vesting period, with a corresponding increase
in employee share trust reserve. The cost of acquisition of
the Company’s employee share trust for the share award
scheme is recorded as treasury shares (shares held for
share award scheme). At the time when the awarded shares
are vested, the amount previously recognised in share award
reserve and the amount of the relevant treasury shares will
be transferred to accumulated profits.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group revisits
its estimates of the number of awarded shares that are
expected to ultimately vest. The impact of the revision of
the estimates during the vesting period, if any, is recognised
in profit or loss, with a corresponding adjustment to the
employee share trust reserve.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

3.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

iR B MRS R M

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE_Z_TF+_A=+—HILFE

EXRGETEE &)

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit/loss before tax because
of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other
years and items that are never taxable and deductible. The
Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end
of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
base used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for
all deductible temporary difference to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition
(other than in a business combination) of other assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable
profit nor the accounting profit. In addition, deferred tax
liabilities are not recognized if the temporary differences
arises from the initial recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates, except where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences associated with such investments are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will be
sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits
of the temporary differences and they are expected to
reverse in the foreseeable future.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

3.

EREFBERE)

Taxation (coNTINUED)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of
its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for investment
properties that are measured using the fair value model, the
carrying amounts of such properties are presumed to be
recovered entirely through sale, unless the presumption is
rebutted. The presumption is rebutted when the investment
property is depreciable and is held within a business model
whose objective is to consume substantially all of the
economic benefits embodied in the investment property over
time, rather than through sale.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing
transactions in which the Group recognises the right-of-
use asset and the related lease liability, the Group first
determines whether the tax deductions are attributable to
the right-of-use asset or the lease liability.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liability, the Group applies HKAS 12
“Income Taxes” requirements to the leasing transaction as a
whole. Temporary differences relating to right-of-use asset
and lease liability are assessed on a net basis.
depreciation on right-of-use asset over the lease payments
for the principal portion of lease liability resulting in net
deductible temporary differences.

Excess of
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

3.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A R R

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE_Z_TF+_A=+—HILFE

EXRGETEE &)

Taxation (coNTINUED)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes
levied to the same taxable entity by the same taxation
authority.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss,
except when it relates to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case
the current and deferred tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

In assessing any uncertainty over income tax treatments,
the Group considers whether it is probable that the relevant
tax authority will accept the uncertain tax treatment used,
or proposed to be use by individual group entities in their
income tax filings. If it is probable, the current and deferred
taxes are determined consistently with the tax treatment in
the income tax filings. If it is not probable that the relevant
taxation authority will accept an uncertain tax treatment, the
effect of each uncertainty is reflected by using either the
most likely amount or the expected value.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings held for
use in the production or supply of goods or services, are stated
in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost
less subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Ownership interests in leasehold land and building

When the Group makes payments for ownership interests of
properties which includes both leasehold land and building
elements, the entire consideration is allocated between the
leasehold land and the building elements in proportion to the
relative fair values at initial recognition.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

3.

EXRSFTEER &)

Property, plant and equipment (coNTINUED)

Ownership interests in leasehold land and building
(CONTINUED)

To the extent the allocation of the relevant payments can
be made reliably, interest in leasehold land is presented
as “right-of-use assets” in the consolidated statement of
financial position,except for those that are classified and
accounted for as investment properties under the fair value
model.

If a property becomes an investment property because its use
has changed as evidenced by end of owner-occupation, any
difference between the carrying amount and the fair value
of that item (including the relevant leasehold land classified
as right-of-use assets at the date of transfer is recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in properties
revaluation reserve. On the subsequent sale or retirement
of the property, the relevant revaluation reserve will be
transferred directly to retained profits.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets
less their residual values over their estimated useful lives,
using the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives,
residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the
end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes
in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item
of property, plant and equipment is determined as the
difference between sales proceeds and the carrying amount
of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AT B E AN T

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-Z-ZF+-_A=1+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EXEFBER(E)
(CONTINUED)

Investment properties REYHE

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals WEMEREFHERDAS K L ELREER
and/or for capital appreciation. M -

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including WEYEN B RERRIZE A (BIEE A EE
any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial MEEBEYHE - REXERE  REWE
recognition, investment properties are measured at fair value, BAFEE - WA AMB ERTER e
adjusted to exclude any prepaid or accrued operating lease FHSEHERA -

income.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of WEMEZ N ELEEEBEKEIBRE
investment properties are included in profit or loss for the period A HRET A o

in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or EREMELE  SOKATHEHEER - K
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn HENEEERRLEFRN - ZIBIREYE
from use or no future economic benefits are expected THBHEER - B TBERABEEMEENWE
from its disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition NEERLEMSREBEFEREENRDE
of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net ZEBHE)RZEBBUSERMERREA
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is ABR

included in the profit or loss in the period in which the item is
derecognised.
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BIEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

3.

EREFBERE)

Intangible assets

Research and development expenditure

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from
development activities (or from the development phase of
an internal project) is recognised if, and only if, all of the
following have been demonstrated:

° the technical feasibility of completing the intangible
asset so that it will be available for use or sale;

° the intention to complete the intangible asset and use
or sell it;

° the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

o how the intangible asset will generate probable future
economic benefits;

o the availability of adequate technical, financial and
other resources to complete the development and to
use or sell the intangible asset; and

o the ability to measure reliably the expenditure
attributable to the intangible asset during its
development.

The amount initially recognised for internally-generated
intangible asset is the sum of the expenditure incurred from
the date when the intangible asset first meets the recognition
criteria listed above. Where no internally generated intangible
asset can be recognised, development expenditure is
charged to profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred.

Subsequent to initial recognition, internally-generated
intangible asset is measured at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses (if any), on
the same basis as intangible assets acquired separately.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE-_T-_TF+_A=+—HULEE
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EXREFBEERE
(CONTINUED)
Intangible assets (CONTINUED) | EE (B)
Intangible assets acquired separately BUBAWEREE

Intangible assets acquired separately and with finite useful
lives are carried at costs less accumulated amortisation and
any accumulated impairment losses.

Amortisation for intangible assets with finite useful lives is
provided on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful
lives. The estimated useful life and amortisation method
are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the
effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for on a
prospective basis.

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no
future economic benefits are expected from use or disposal.
Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible
asset are measured at the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and
are recognised in profit or loss in the period when the asset is
derecognised.

Impairment losses on property, plant and equipment, right-
of-use assets and intangible assets (other than goodwill)
At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its property, plant and equipment, right-
of-use assets and intangible assets with finite useful lives to
determine whether there is any indication that those assets
have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication
exists, the recoverable amount of the relevant asset is
estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment
loss, (if any).

The recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets, and intangible assets are estimated
individually. When it is not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount individually, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the
asset belongs.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020

HIEFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

3.

EXRSFTEER &)

Impairment losses on property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use asset and intangible assets other than goodwill
(CONTINUED)

In testing a cash-generating unit for impairment, corporate
assets are allocated to the relevant cash-generating unit
when a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be
established, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest
group of cash generating units for which a reasonable
and consistent allocation basis can be established. The
recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating
unit or group of cash-generating units to which the corporate
asset belongs, and is compared with the carrying amount of
the relevant cash-generating unit or group of cash-generating
units.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset (or a cash-generating unit) for which the
estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
reduced to its recoverable amount. For corporate assets
or portion of corporate assets which cannot be allocated
on a reasonable and consistent basis to a cash-generating
unit, the Group compares the carrying amount of a group
of cash-generating units, including the carrying amounts of
the corporate assets or portion of corporate assets allocated
to that group of cash-generating units, with the recoverable
amount of the group of cash-generating units. An impairment
loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit or a
group of cash-generating unit) is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined had no impairment loss
been recognised for the asset (or a cash-generating unit) in
prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost of inventories are is calculated using the
weighted average method. Net realisable value represents
the estimated selling price for inventories less all estimated
costs of completion and costs necessary to make the sale.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

3.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e SRR M 5

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BHE_Z_ZTF+_A=+—HILFE

EXRGETEE &)

Properties held for sale

Properties held for sale are stated at the lower of cost
and net realisable value. Cost includes the costs of land,
development expenditure incurred and, where appropriate,
borrowing costs capitalised. Net realisable value is
determined based on price ultimately expected to be realised
less applicable selling expenses.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on the
consolidated statement of financial position when a group
entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are
recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame
established by regulation or convention in the market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value except for trade receivables arising from
contracts with customers which are intially measured in
accordance with IFRS 15. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and
financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to
or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or
financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of
financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability
and of allocating interest income and interest expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts and
payments (including all fees and points paid or received
that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through
the expected life of the financial asset or financial liability,
or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

3.

EXRSFTEER &)

Financial instruments (conTiNUED)
Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial

assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are

subsequently measured at amortised cost:

° the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is to collect contractual cash flows; and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and

interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are

subsequently measured at FVTOCI:

o the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is achieved by both selling and

collecting contractual cash flows; and

° the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at
FVTPL, except that at the date of initial recognition of a
financial asset the Group may irrevocably elect to present
subsequent changes in fair value of an equity investment
in other comprehensive income if that equity investment
is neither held for trading nor contingent consideration
recognised by an acquirer in a business combination to
which IFRS 3 Business Combinations applies.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE-—T-THE+-A=t—-HILEE

HExE <=

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EXEFBER(E)
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (CONTINUED) $RT A (&)

Financial assets (coNTINUED) THEE (&)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (coNTINUED)
A financial asset is held for trading if:

(i)

it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the near term; or

on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual pattern of
short-term profit-taking.

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective
interest method for financial assets measured
subsequently at amortised cost. Interest income is
calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the
gross carrying amount of a financial asset, except for
financial assets that have subsequently become credit-
impaired. For financial assets that have subsequently
become credit-impaired, interest income is recognised
by applying the effective interest rate to the amortised
cost of the financial asset from the next reporting
period. If the credit risk on the credit-impaired financial
instrument improves so that the financial asset is no
longer credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by
applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset from the beginning of the
reporting period following the determination that the
asset is no longer credit impaired.
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+ =

2NC
E—E-—EF+-F=+

jed 31 December 2020
HIEFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. ERSFEEGE)
(CONTINUED)
Financial instruments (CONTINUED) SEMIA (@)
Financial assets (coNTINUED) THEE (B

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (CONTINUED)

(i)

(iii)

Equity instruments designated as at FVTOC/

Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI are
subsequently measured at fair value with gains and
losses arising from changes in fair value recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
the assets revaluation reserve; and are not subject to
impairment assessment. The cumulative gain or loss
will not be reclassified to profit or loss on disposal
of the equity investments, and will be transferred to
retained profits.

Dividends from these investments in equity
instruments are recognised in profit or loss when the
Group’s right to receive the dividends is established,
unless the dividends clearly represent a recovery
of part of the cost of the investment. Dividends are
included in the “other income” line item in profit or
loss.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being
measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI are measured
at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value
at the end of each reporting period, with any fair value
gains or losses recognised in profit or loss. The net
gain or loss recognised in profit or loss excludes any
dividend or interest earned on the financial asset and is
included in the “other gains and losses” line item.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
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EXRGETEE &)

Financial instruments (coNTINUED)

Financial assets (conTinvED)

Impairment of financial assets and other items

The Group performs impairment assessment under
expected credit loss (“ECL”) on financial assets (including
trade and notes receivables, other receivables, consideration
receivables, entrusted loan receivable, amounts due from an
associate and non-controlling shareholders of subsidiaries,
short-term bank deposits, pledged bank deposits and bank
balances),contract assets and finance lease receivables
which are subject to impairment assessment under IFRS
9. The amount of ECL is updated at each reporting date to
reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all
possible default events over the expected life of the relevant
instrument. In contrast, 12-months ECL (“12m ECL")
represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to
result from default events that are possible within 12 months
after the reporting date. Assessment are done based on the
Group’s historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors
that are specific to the debtors, general economic conditions
and an assessment of both the current conditions at the
reporting date as well as the forecast of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade
receivables, contract assets and finance lease receivables.
The ECL on these assets are assessed individually for
debtors with significant balances or credit impaired and the
remaining balances are collectively using a provision matrix
with appropriate groupings.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when there has been
a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
in which case the Group recognises lifetime ECL. The
assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be recognised is
based on significant increases in the likelihood or risk of a
default occurring since initial recognition.
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AL

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

3.

EREFBERE)

Financial instruments (conTiNUED)
FINANCIAL ASSETS (CONTINUED)

Impairment of financial assets and other items (conTINUED)

(1)

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the reporting date with the
risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument
as at the date of initial recognition. In making this
assessment, the Group considers both quantitative
and qualitative information that is reasonable and
supportable, including historical experience and
forward-looking information that is available without
undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly:

° an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the financial instrument’s external (if available)
or internal credit rating;

o significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant
increase in the credit spread, the credit default
swap prices for the debtor;

° existing or forecast adverse changes in
business, financial or economic conditions that
are expected to cause a significant decrease in
the debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations;

° an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the operating results of the debtor;

o an actual or expected significant adverse
change in the regulatory, economic, or
technological environment of the debtor that
results in a significant decrease in the debtor’s
ability to meet its debt obligations.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

3.

EREFTBE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A R R

For the year ended 31 December 2020
E-T_TFE+_A=+—HILFE

(nﬁ)

Financial instruments (conTiNUED)

Financial assets (conTiINUED)

Impairment of financial assets and other items (conTINUED)

(i)

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk (CONTINUED)
Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 180 days past due, unless
the Group has reasonable and supportable information
that demonstrates otherwise.

Despite the aforegoing, the Group assumes that the
credit risk on a debt instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition if the debt
instrument is determined to have low credit risk at
the reporting date. A debt instrument is determined
to have low credit risk if i) it has a low risk of default,
i) the borrower has a strong capacity to meet its
contractual cash flow obligations in the near term
and iii) adverse changes in economic and business
conditions in the longer term may, but will not
necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower to
fulfil its contractual cash flow obligations. The Group
considers a debt instruments to have low credit
risk when it has an internal or external credit rating
of “investment grade” as per globally understand
definitions.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of
the criteria used to identify whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk before the
amount becomes past due.

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group
considers an event of default occurs when information
developed internally or obtained from external sources
indicates that the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors,
including the Group, in full (without taking into
account any collaterals held by the Group).
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

EXRSFTEER &)

Financial instruments (conTiNUED)

Financial assets (conTiNUED)
Impairment of financial assets and other items (conTINUED)

(1)

(iir)

Definition of default (conTinvED)

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers
that default has occurred when a financial asset
is more than 360 days past due unless the Group
has reasonable and supportable information to
demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion is
more appropriate.

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more
events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated
future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred.
Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired
includes observable data about the following events:

a) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower;

b) a breach of contract, such as a default or past
due event;

c) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the
borrower a concession(s) that the lender(s)
would not otherwise consider;

d) it is becoming probable that the borrower
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation; or
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(nﬁ)

Financial instruments (conTiNUED)

Financial assets (conTiINUED)

Impairment of financial assets and other items (conTINUED)

(iv)

(v)

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there
is information indicating that the counterparty is in
severe financial difficulty and there is no realistic
prospect of recovery, for example, when the
counterparty has been placed under liquidation or
has entered into bankruptcy proceedings, whichever
occurs sooner. Financial assets written off may
still be subject to enforcement activities under the
Group's recovery procedures, taking into account legal
advice where appropriate. A write-off constitutes a
derecognition event. Any subsequent recoveries are
recognised in profit or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the
probability of default, loss given default (i.e. the
magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and
the exposure at default. The assessment of the
probability of default and loss given default is based
on historical data adjusted by forward-looking
information. Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased
and probability-weighted amount that is determined
with the respective risks of default occurring as the
weights. The Group uses a practical expedient in
estimating ECL on trade receivables using a provision
matrix taking into consideration historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for forward looking information
that is available without undue cost or effort.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and the cash flows
that the Group expects to receive, discounted at the
effective interest rate determined at initial recognition.
For a finance lease receivables, the cash flows used
for determining the ECL is consistent with the cash
flows used in measuring the finance lease receivables
in accordance with IFRS 16.
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®) Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BAMBREME

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE_T_TFE+_A=1T—HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. ERSFEEGE)
(CONTINUED)
Financial instruments (CONTINUED) SEMIA (@)
Financial assets (coNTINUED) THEE (&)

Impairment of financial assets and other items (conTINUED)

(v)  Measurement and recognition of ECL (coNTINUED)

For collective assessment, the Group takes into
consideration of the following characteristics when

formulating the grouping:

o Past-due status; and

o Nature, size and industry of debtors;

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management
to ensure the constituents of each group continue to

share similar credit risk characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset unless the
financial asset is credit impaired, in which case
interest income is calculated based on amortised cost

of the financial asset.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised
cost, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the sum of the consideration received and receivable is

recognised in profit or loss.

On derecognition of an investment in equity instrument
which the Group has elected on initial recognition to
measure at FVTOCI, the cumulative gain or loss previously
accumulated in the assets revaluation reserve will not be
reclassified to profit or loss, but transferred to retained

profits.

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2020

ERHEEREMIE L BIE (B

() FBHEEERMNERER &)
EEBFGERN  ARBENENERS
ERAIA TSR

o BHWOR: &

o BHRANME  RERTE:

ERETHENSETE - LRESE
B AL FR T B 4 R BP0 1 B R A
o

FE A S BAENBERAETE -
e BAES G AMMEAIRIL - Tite
ZERT « R EMA RS BAE
SRR o

IR HEE
HHEEERIRSRNE RN RIS A%
B EBURERZ EREE °

PRI RE B 2 S AR -
A AR S E M R A BT Rt 2
R -

REBR NG FER R B2 AL AT EF AR
EENGSENES TARERIEHERE - R
ERBEREESHFHEENRFTREHERTE
BN BREESE  MEBARERN -



SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

iR e BT R MY o
For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE_T_TFE+_A=1T—HILFE

EXRGETEE &)

Financial instruments (coNTINUED)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity
are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity
instruments in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions of
a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting
all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group
are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue
costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments is
recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or
cancellation of the Company’s own equity instruments.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities (including trade and notes payables,
other payables, accruals and bank borrowings) are initially
measured at fair values and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognised financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
have expired. The difference between the carrying amount
of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration
paid or payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020

BE-—T-TE+-A=+

BIEE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

4.

BERETHE R AT TIRESN
EEX//\

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which
are described in note 3, the Directors of the Company are
required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience
and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.

The following are critical judgements involving estimations,
the key assumptions concerning the future, and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year.

Allowances for inventories

The management of the Group reviews an ageing analysis
at the end of the reporting period and makes allowance
for obsolete and/or slow-moving inventory items identified
that are no longer suitable for use in production or sale.
The management estimates the net realisable value for
such finished goods and raw materials primarily based on
the latest selling and purchase prices and current market
conditions. If the market condition was to deteriorate,
resulting in a lower net realisable value for such finished
goods and raw materials, additional allowances may be
required. As at 31 December 2020, the carrying amount
of inventories is approximately HK$219,575,000 (2019:
HK$250,771,000). During the year ended 31 December
2020, allowance of inventories of HK$28,699,000 was
reversed (2019: charged HK$8,075,000) to profit or loss.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (cCoNTINUED)

4.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AT B E AN T

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-Z-ZF+-_A=1+—HILFE

BAR ST M R At A REM
FERIR (&)

Provision of ECL for trade receivables

The Group calculates ECL for the trade receivables. The
provision rates are based on past-due status of individual
debtors or as groupings of various debtors that have similar
loss patterns. The individual assessment and provision
matrix is based on the Group’s historical default rates
taking into consideration forward-looking information that is
reasonable and supportable available without undue costs or
effort. At every reporting date, the historical observed default
rates are reassessed and changes in the forward-looking
information are considered. In addition, trade receivables
with significant balances and credit impaired are assessed
for ECL individually.

The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in estimates.
The information about the ECL and the Group’s trade
receivables are disclosed in notes 45 and 27 respectively.

Estimated impairment of intangible assets

Determining whether development costs included in
intangible assets are individually impaired requires an
estimation of the value in use calculation by reference to the
cash flow projections prepared in accordance with the signed
sales contracts of respective projects. Where the actual
future cash flows are less than expected, an impairment loss
may arise. As at 31 December 2020, the carrying amount
of development costs is approximately HK$57,307,000
(2019: HK$97,348,000). Details of the recoverable amount
calculation of development costs are disclosed in note 21.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE—T-TFE+-A=t+—ALFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CoONTINUED)

ERS AR AT TREMLN
EEEX J? (nlﬁ)

Estimated fair value of investment properties

Investment properties were revalued at the end of the
reporting period using income capitalisation approach by
independent qualified professional valuer. Such valuation
was based on certain assumptions, which are subject to
uncertainty and might materially differ from the actual
results. In making the valuation, the Group’s management
has made estimates concerning rental yield for rental
income to be generated by the investment properties. The
assumptions used are intended to reflect conditions existing
at the end of the reporting period. Where there are any
changes in the assumptions due to the market conditions in
the PRC, the estimate of fair value of investment properties
may be significantly affected. As at 31 December 2020,
investment properties of approximately HK$718,572,000
(2019: HK$608,388,000) were revalued.

Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred taxation arising from
investment properties that are measured using the fair value
model, the Directors of the Company have reviewed the
Group’s investment property portfolios and concluded that
the Group’s investment properties are held under a business
model whose objective is to consume substantially all of the
economic benefits embodied in the investment properties
over time, rather than through sale. Therefore, in measuring
the Group’s deferred taxation on investment properties,
the Directors have determined that the presumption that
the carrying amounts of investment properties measured
using the fair value model are recovered entirely through
sale is rebutted. Accordingly, deferred taxation in relation
to the Group’s investment properties has been measured in
accordance with the general principles set out in IAS 12.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A B HRRH

For the year ended 31 December 2020

BE-_T-_TF+_A=+—HULEE
5. REVENUE 5. WA
(i)  Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with (i)  DHEEFEAINRA
customers
Continuing operations BEREER

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-Z-BE+-AS-ALE

Segments Electronics

78 Handsets and manufacturing 10T
10T terminals services system and

business business 020 business Property

FRRNER ETHERYE NBERZER management

RIREH HEFER BeLl NEREER

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TiEn TiEn TR TR

Types of goods or services ERSRBER

Sale of handsets and 10T terminals $4& FH# kB QL% 586,079 - - -
Electronics manufacturing services BT 5E R ER - 74,928 - -
Sale of goods to vending machine FIEEKEEHESR
customers - - 193,639 -
Procurement agency service FERERE - - 34,399 -
Property rental | - - - 49,288
Total @ 586,079 74,928 228,038 49,288
Timing of revenue recognition I ARERLRS
Ata point in time RE-FHZ 586,079 - 228,038 N/A
T#ER
Over time FERs R - 74,928 - N/A
TR
Total st 586,079 74,928 228,038 N/A
TR
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BB

For the year ¢

Bl _—=_—

5. REVENUE (coNTINUED)

b

2N

ded 31 December 2020

EoT-TH+— f=

HItFE

5. WAGE

(1)

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with

customers (cONTINUED)

Continuing operations

Segments

78

Types of goods or services
Sale of handsets and [OT terminals

Electronics manufacturing services

Sale of goods to vending machine
customers

Equipment finance lease service

Procurement agency service

Sale of properties

Property rental

Total

Timing of revenue recognition
At a point in time

Over time

Total

EmamBER
HETHRRMHE
i
ETHERBHER
REEREP
HEEM
RERARERS
RBRIEZRS
HEME
mELA
L)

LON:
RE—ERH

REF:
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(1)

DIRELERIMA B

S B

For the year ended 31 December 2019 (re-presented)
BEZT-NEtZA=T—HLLE (&5

Electronics

Handsetsand  manufacturing 10T

0T terminals services system and
business business 020 business Property Property
FHEMBE  STRERE  IHEZAR development  management
RimE GEES EREN WEER  MFHEER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT FHEL THL TAL TEL
749,670 - - - -
- 92,960 - - -
- - 233,700 - -
_ — 86 — _
- - 26,703 - -
- - - 8823 -
- - - - 43,076
749,670 92,960 260,489 8823 43,076
749,670 - 260,403 8823 N/A
TEA
- 92,960 - - N/A
TR
749,670 92,960 260,403 8823 N/A
TR




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e SRR M 5

For the year ended 31 December 2020

BE-P-TEt-A=+— AR
5. REVENUE (CONTINUED) 5. WA (&)
(i)  Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with (i)  DIFEEFEAMA (&
customers (CONTINUED)
Geographical markets hE %
Continuing operations BESEER

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE-B-BET-A=+-HLEE

Electronics

Handsets and manufacturing 10T system
10T terminals services and Property
business business 020 business management
FRREH EFERY NHRAL EL|
BRIRER HIEmER REEEH EER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEx TEx TEx TEx
The PRC BN 237,377 74,928 228,038 49,288
Europe BN 40,774 - - -
United States E3E 107,071 - - -
Hong Kong BE 19,627 - - -
Other Asia countries HiprMER 181,230 - - -
586,079 74,928 228,038 49,288

Continuing operations BEREER

For the year ended 31 December 2019 (re-presented)
BE_T-NET-A=+-RLLFE (EEF)

Electronics

Handsetsand  manufacturing I0T system
|OT terminals services and Property Property
business business 020 business development  management
FHEME  STRERE S EL
SR HERES RESET NEER BER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHL TAT FAL THT FAL
The PRC HEIARE 282,318 92,960 260,489 83823 43,076
Europe BUM 135,146 = = = =
United States % 128,185 = = = =
Hong Kong B 5,642 = = = =
Other Asia countries HibaMER 198,379 = = = =
749,670 92,960 260,489 8,823 43,076
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A BT

ded 31 December 2020

HIEFE

5. REVENUE (coNTINUED)

5.

WA (&)

(i)

Performance obligations for contracts with customers

Sale of handsets and IOT terminals, own-branded
products manufacturing and sale of goods to vending
machine customers

For the sale of handsets and IOT terminals, own-
branded products manufacturing and sale of goods to
vending machine customers, revenue is recognised
when control of the goods has transferred, being
when the goods have been shipped to the customer’s
specific location (delivery). Following the delivery, the
customer has full discretion over the manner of usage,
distribution and price to sell the goods, and has the
primary responsibility when on selling the goods and
bears the risks of obsolescence and loss in relation to
the goods. The normal credit term is 0-90 days upon
delivery. The Group typically receives a 30%-50%
deposit before the sale of goods.

Electronics manufacturing services

The electronics manufacturing services are recognised
as a performance obligation satisfied over time as the
Group creates or enhances an asset that the customer
controls as the asset is created or enhanced. The
normal credit term is 0-15 days. The Group typically
receives a 30%-50% deposit before the sale of goods.

Procurement agency service

In the provision of procurement agency service,
revenue is recognised when the agency service has
been completed, being when the goods have been
shipped to the customer’s specific location (delivery).
The normal credit term is 0-90 days.

Sale of properties

Revenue from sale of properties is recognised at
a point in time when the completed property is
transferred to customers, being at the point that
the customer obtains the control of the completed
property and the Group has present right to payment
and collection of the consideration is probable.
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5. REVENUE (coNTINUED)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
4‘?\/1 ET/*“?x?LPi’

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE_Z-ZF+-_A=+—HILFE

WA (&)

(i) Transaction price allocated to the remaining
performance obligation for contracts with customers

All sale of handsets and |OT terminals, own-branded
products manufacturing, electronics manufacturing
services, sale of goods to vending machine customers,
procurement agency service and sale of properties are
for periods of one year or less.

(iv)  Leases

For operating lease: BRAKERE
Lease payments that are fixed ERABERR
For finance leases: EARMERE

(i) DEEEFPEXZ G TENEEMNX S
1815

HEFHREMEEKS  BEmEEmR
& - ETRERGHER MEEK
EPHEEM RBAROIERS - RHE
YRR B —FHAT -

(v) HE
For the For the
year ended year ended
31 December 31 December
2020 2019

HE-T-BF AE-T A
+=A=t+-8 +=A=t+-A

Finance income on the net investment &R E /F58 7 g & A

in the lease

Total revenue arising from leases

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group
recognised approximately HK$47,079,000 (2019:
HK$42,023,000) selling profit, being the difference
between gross rental income and direct operating
expenses, as a property and vending machine lessor.

HEESE 2 ARA

HEE HFE

HK$’000 HK$'000

TR THET

49,288 43,076

- 86

49,288 43,162
BE_FT-_THF+-_A=+—HLF

IER ZK;EK@{’E%%%& B HHEA
TR 447,079, ooo/%rz(_f NE
42,023,000 7T) 2 $HEmF - B2 E
Hﬁz)\éﬁiﬁ%x%&f‘zﬁ;ﬁszZFaﬁa’q%éa o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MRS IR R M 5

For the year ended 31 December 2020
—ECEF+-A=+—HLFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION

For the purposes of resource allocation and assessment of
segment performance, information reported to the Executive
Directors of the Company, being the chief operating decision
makers (the “CODM”), focus on types of goods or services
delivered or provided.

In the current year, the Group reorganised its internal
reporting structure which resulted in changes to the
composition of its reportable segments. In the prior year,
the Group was organised into six reportable and operating
segments, being Handsets and internet of things terminals
business (“Handsets and IOT terminals business”),
Electronics manufacturing services business, Internet of
things system and online-to-offline business (“IOT system
and 020 business”), Intelligent manufacturing business,
Property development and Property management.

In accordance with the way in which information is now
reported internally to the CODM for purpose of resource
allocation and performance assessment and the recent
streamlining of certain reportable segments, the financial
information of the Group’s “Property development” segment
is no longer a part of a reportable segment.

In addition an operating segment regarding, namely
intelligent manufacturing business, was discontinued
during the year ended 31 December 2020. Upon the
disposal of 51% equity interest of /E¥% B8Rl
BFRAF (unofficial English name being Shanghai Jizhi
Automation Technology Co., Limited) (“Shanghai Jizhi”), the
Group discontinued its intelligent manufacturing business
during the year ended 31 December 2020. The segment
information reported does not include any amount for the
discontinued operations, which are described in detail
in note 12. Prior year segment disclosures have been
represented to conform with the current year’s presentation.

In the manner consistent with the way in which information is
reported internally to the CODM for the purposes of resource
allocation and performance assessment, the business
activities of the Group are organised into the following
operating segments:

— Handsets and 10T terminals business

— Electronics manufacturing services business
— 10T system and 020 business; and

— Property management.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BAMBRRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2020

BE-_T-_TF+_A=+—HULEE
SEGMENT INFORMATION (coNTINUED) 6. DEENE
Segment revenue and results PEBRARES
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and TRAEAEBIZIZHREEBELEZWMARE
results by reportable and operating segment: BT
For the year ended 31 December 2020 BZ-—E-_FF+-A=1—HILFE
Continuing operations HFEREER
Handsets Electronics
and 10T manufacturing 10T system
terminals services and 020 Property
business business business management Consolidated
FHER
s BEUERE R
RIBER HEFES REEER NEREEE &8
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ThAr Thr Thr FEL FhEr
Revenue WA
External sales HIMEE 586,079 74,928 228,038 49,288 938,333
Segment (loss) profit R (58 R (57,993) 613 (15,815) 10,186 (63,009)
Otherincome and other ~ EMA R E iz
gains and losses LER 32,563
Share of results of associates P& A a1 £4 (497)
Corporate expenses ARRR (15,408)
Finance costs BEARK (4,154)
Loss before taxation BERIEE (50,505)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020

BE_Z_TF+_A=t+—HILFE
6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (coNTINUED) 6. THEERE
Segment revenue and results (CONTINUED) SEBARES (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2019 (re-presented) B FE— N F = A= —HIFFE (EES))
Continuing operations BEREER
Handsets Electronics
and 10T manufacturing 10T system
terminals Services and 020 Property Property
business business business  development  management  Consolidated
FER
MR ETRERE  MEBERR
Rm¥El  HEEEE  REERHR NEEE MFHEER e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TAT TAT TAT T T
Revenue WA
External sales HOMHE 749,670 92,960 260,489 8,823 43076 1,155,018
Segment (loss) profit HE(B1R) &7 (50,867) 1,448 (13211) (2,928) 37,959 (27,599)
Other income and other gains ~ E-ft M\ R E Ao lfizs
and losses RER (27,539)
Share of results of associates ~ MEBE A RIEE (2,003)
Corporate expenses N353 (15,597)
Finance costs HEMNA (3,282)
Loss before taxation BREAIEE (76,020)
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (coNTINUED)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
UTM/\w WJ?x?LP \f

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE_T_TFE+_A=1T—HILFE

/ AR ﬁ*# (II\E.)

Segment revenue and results (coNTINUED)

The accounting policies of the reportable and operating
segments are the same as the Group’s accounting policies
described in note 3. Segment result represents the profit
earned or loss incurred by each segment without allocation
of interest income, unallocated exchange gain or loss, gain
on disposal of property, plant and equipment, fair value
change on financial assets at FVTPL, certain other income,
corporate expenses, share of results of associates, finance
costs and taxation (2019: without allocation of interest
income, unallocated exchange gain or loss, loss on disposal
of property, plant and equipment, fair value change on
financial assets at FVTPL, certain other income, corporate
expenses, share of results of associates, finance costs
and taxation). This is the measure reported to the CODM
for the purposes of resource allocation and performance
assessment.

DEBAREE ()
MEHRKEESR éﬁ%ﬁﬁl“éﬁiﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁt
ZAEESTBORAAR - N EEERKE—
BAERDENBWA - KD ERE R K EJZJEﬁ
1B hEYE - BERRERE  HE—EB
EREZHER  TTESRITARRATERTA
TEQ MEREECAFEEY FTHMK
CREIRAX - DEMERRRE  BEK
ZK&%)EEIEZ'I%%Tﬁﬁéizxﬁﬁﬁ"ﬁk)gﬂé(:’2
—NF  ROEMBIA - ROECE R WaEsk
BER - HEYE  BEERBER BAFE
FAABRCEREEZAHERS  ETHM
WA~ REIFRAX - DEBERRRE - BREK
ARBIR) o WA EIRS IR KRBT EMA
TERERAREEEREZTE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE—TS-—TFE+-F=+

HExE <=

HItFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (coNTINUED)

6. 2¥ER(H)

Segment assets and liabilities

The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and

liabilities by reportable and operating segment:

At 31 December 2020

Segment assets

Property, plant and equipment
Right-of-use assets

Intangible assets

Deferred tax assets

Interests in associates

Equity instruments at FVTOCI

Financial assets at FVTPL

Properties held for sale

Trade and note receivables

Contract assets

Amount due from an associate

Amount due from non-controlling
shareholder of subsidiaries

Other receivables, deposits and
prepayments

Pledged bank deposits

Short-term bank deposits

Bank balances and cash

Consolidated assets

Segment liabilities

Trade payables

Contract liabilities

Other payables and accruals
Bank borrowings

Tax payable

Deferred tax liabilities

Consolidated liabilities
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Handsets

and 10T
terminals
business
FRRIBR
ESTES
HK$'000
TAL

599,594

386,532

PHEERGEE
TREFIAEFBRAIZREEESHENNE
ERBENN

R-EBE-_FEF+-F=+—H

Electronics
manufacturing
services
business
ETRERS
HERER
HK$'000
TERL

152,980

23,303

10T system
and 020
business
NHPREG
REEXH
HK$'000
TR

Property

management Consolidated

NEAEER &8
HK$'000 HK$'000
T TiEn
69,420 762,683 1,584,677
71,871
24,096
4,955
54,029
32,548

12,382

13,784
9,601
6,892
5,488

17,161

4,248

4,495
5,857
281,617
667,935

2,801,636

425,269
16,745
1,457
10,247
36,000
37,588
126,465

653,771

8,408 7,026



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A R R

For the year ended 31 December 2020

BHE_ZT-_TF+-_H=H

HIEFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (coNTINUED) 6. 7EEXE)
Segment assets and liabilities (CONTINUED) PEEEREEE
At 31 December 2019 (Re-presented) R—F—NF+—H=+—HFEZ))
Handsets
and 0T Electronics
terminals ~ manufacturing 0T system Property Property
business  services business  and 020 business development management Consolidated
FHRIBE  ETHERE R
Hin%i S RiEELH NEY¥R  NEEEEE )
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
ThL ThL ThL ThL ThL ThL
Segment assets NBEE 657,760 174,59% 108110 17,634 631,693 1,589,792
Asses relating to discontinued AR HEERK
operation RBNEE 174523
Property, plant and equipment 0% BERRE 54,382
Right-of-use assets FREAE 24945
Deferred tax assets ELHEEE 44,09
Interests in assaciates MEELEZER 6,647
Equity instruments at FVTOCI BATE A2 ARG
ZRETA 669
Financial assets at FYTPL BATHEI A BR S REE 2512
Amounts due from non-controlling BB A FEERERIE
shareholders of subsidiaries 44%
Other receivables, depositsand ~~ Ef NS - RERBNFE
prepayments 5,552
Pledged hank deposits EEAROEH 31,206
Short-term bank deposits RESTER 296,380
Bank balances and cash BOEHRAS 611,714
Consolidated assets GREE 2,866,930
Segment liabilities PEEE 368,890 39717 17,022 9791 7,026 442 446
Liabiies relating to discontinued BB HAEEEE
operation AENAE 66,156
Other payables and accruals R R R R 17,084
Bank borrowings BHITEE 77,936
Tax payable i 4024
Deferred tax iabilies ERfEA G 112413
Consoldated liabilties ARG 756,259

RAMEEBERAR — T - TFFH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A BT

ded 31 December 2020
ZA=t+—HIFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (coNTINUED) 6. DEERGE

Segment assets and liabilities (CONTINUED) PEEEREEE)
For the purposes of monitoring segment performances and REESERBRESEDEEIRER

allocating resources between segments:

140

all assets are allocated to reportable and operating
segments other than certain property, plant and
equipment, certain right-of-use assets, pledged bank
deposits, short-term bank deposits, bank balances
and cash, interests in associates, equity instruments
at FVTOCI, financial assets at FVTPL, deferred
tax assets, certain other receivables, deposits and
prepayments and amounts due from an associate and
non-controlling shareholders of subsidiaries (2019:
certain property, plant and equipment, certain right-
of-use assets, pledged bank deposits, short-term
bank deposits, bank balances and cash, interests in
associates, equity instruments at FVTOCI, financial
assets at FVTPL, deferred tax assets, certain other
receivables, deposits and prepayments and amounts
due from non-controlling shareholders of subsidiaries).
Assets used jointly by operating segments are
allocated on the basis of the revenues earned by
individual operating segments;

other than liabilities specifically identified for reportable
and operating segments on I0T system and 020
business, and Property management, the remaining
liabilities jointly consumed by reportable and operating
segments are allocated between Handsets and 10T
terminals business and Electronics manufacturing
services business and corporate liabilities. Corporate
liabilities include certain other payables, accruals, tax
payable, bank borrowings and deferred tax liabilities
(2019: certain other payables, accruals, tax payable,
bank borrowings and deferred tax liabilities), and

certain properties held for sale, trade and note
receivables, contract assets, trade payable, contract
liabilities are unallocated since property development
is no longer classify as reportable segment and the
operations of intelligent manufacturing business
segment is discontinued during the year.

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2020
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AT B E AN T

For the year ended 31 December 2020

BE_Z_TF+_A=+—HILFE
6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (coNTINUED) 6. 7EERE
Other segment information HitpEER
For the year ended 31 December 2020 BE—E-_ZF-A=1+—HILEFE
Handsets Electronics
and 10T manufacturing 10T system
terminals services and 020 Property
business business business management Unallocated Consolidated
FHR E78E
nEE TR NHRRG
ESET 5 REEEE  NEREER #28 &4
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Thn Thn Thn Thn Thn Thn
Continuing operations BRLEEE
Amounts included in the measure of &2 HBIERTHEEE
segment profitor loss or segment  FREAEE
assefs:
Addiions of property, plantand ~ REWE - HERGE
equipment 4,525 7812 4,361 - 105 16,803
Additions of intangible assets NEEVEE 51,875 - 171 - - 52,046
Depreciation of property, plant 0% BERRELNE
and equipment 23,325 7,501 963 2,555 4,946 39,290
Amortisation of intangle assets &R 66,522 - 2 - - 66,544
Depreciation of right-of-use assets ~ (FRIEEENE 1,759 - 2,769 4,976 - 9,504
Impairment losses on trade RERPER ENES
recelvables recognised in profitor B ZAERE
loss 6,556 - - - - 6,556
Impairment losses on infangble ~ EFEE 2 HERIE
assets 19,000 - - - - 19,000
Impairment losses on finance lease BBV ETR ERERE
receivables - - 381 - - 381
Reversal of allowance off inventories  ZE&&ER (28,699) - - - - (28,699)
(Gain) loss on disposal of property,  HENE - BERR
plant and equipment pdlies) 5 (369) (228) (22) - 2 (617)
Decrease in fair value of investment  KAMEATER D
properties - - - (14,914) - (14,914)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE-F-TEI-A=+—ALFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 6. DEEHRE
Other segment information (coNTINUED) HitpEER (@&
For the year ended 31 December 2019 (re-presented) 2 FE—NFF A=+ —HILFEGEES))
Handsets Electronics
andI0T  manufacturing 10T system
terminals services and 020 Property Property
business business business  development  management Unallocated ~ Consolicated
FER  ETEERE
e fEs  EERs
Biagh B REEEH NEEE  NEEEEE AR &4
HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$1000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$000
T T T T T Tm T
Continuing operations FECERE
Amounts included in the measre of EENBERINEAE
segment proftorloss or segment assels: ~ FRAEE
Additions of property, plant and equipment  REE - HERRE 859 21,026 167 - - - 2,789
Addtions of intangible assets NERVEE 58925 - - - - = 58925
Depreciation of property, plant % BRERGENE
and equipment 18482 9,009 1424 8 1571 4543 35,037
Amortisaton of ntangible assets EREERY 59,106 = 120 - = - 59,206
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FRIEAENE 4012 622 3669 = 173 1,166 9,642
Impairment losses on goodil BEZREER 3706 = = = = = 3706
Impairment losses on property, plantand 1% + BE RXEZ HESE
equipment 1315 - - - - - 1315
Impairment losses on trade receivables AT EREHE
recognised In proft or loss LRESE 1,039 = = - = - 1039
Impairment losses on enfrusted loan RERTER BN ET
receivable recognised in profitor s~ EHZBEEIE - - = - = 26,287 26,87
Allowance of inventories HERE 8075 = - - = = 8075
Loss (gain) on dlisposal of property, HENE - BERRE
plant and equipment B E) 3% (18 ) 4 - (12 405
Increase in fai value of investment RENFATEEN
properties - - - - 12779 - 12779
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BAMBRRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE_Z-ZF+-_A=+—HILFE
SEGMENT INFORMATION (coNTINUED) 6. 7EERE
Geographical information hEE R
The Group'’s operations are located in the PRC and Hong REBRRBIARRE N EBELEER -
Kong.
Information about the Group’s revenue from continuing EBAAREBREBINDEFE 2 IFELEEBRA
operations from external customers is presented based on DIRERF ZHEZS) - BEAEBEIERSE
the location of the customer. Information about the Group’s ENERTIRBEEEMRMEBENERY
non-current assets is presented based on the geographical
location of the assets.
Revenue from external customers Non-current assets
Year ended Year ended
REIMBEE ZWA RBEE
BETIEE BEZTIEE
2020 2019 2020 2019
—ECEF —E-hNF —ECEF —T-NF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET T THET FHT
(restated) (restated)
(&EE7) (s ET)
The PRC H B A e 589,631 687,666 1,015,923 916,320
Europe B 40,774 135,146 - =
United States EH 107,071 128,185 - -
Hong Kong &5 19,627 5,642 - —
Other Asian Countries b= QTN IETES 181,230 198,379 - =
938,333 1,155,018 1,015,923 916,320
Note: Brat -
Non-current assets excluded goodwill, intangible assets, deferred IRBDEETRENE  BFEE  BEHBEEE K
tax assets, finance lease receivables, interests in associates, equity WRERE REE AR 2 - BAFETAHME
instruments at FVTOCI, other receivables and consideration receivables. a2 AT A - E A fEWGRIE R EKAE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2020

HE—_E-_TF+_-HF=1

T-TF BIEFEE

7. OTHER INCOME, GAINS AND LOSSES 7.

HMA - W& RER

Continuing operations

Other income:

Refund of Value Added Tax (“VAT")
(Note 1)

Government grants (Note 2)

Interest income earned on bank
balances

Interest income earned on consideration
and other receivables

Other gains and losses:

Impaiment losses:
— Goodwill
— Property, plant and equipment
— Finance lease receivables

Write-off of amount due from an
associate

Write-off of amount due from non-
controlling shareholders of subsidiaries

Gain (loss) on disposal of property, plant
and equipment

Gain arising on early termination of lease
contracts

Net foreign exchange gain (loss)

Changes in fair values of investment
properties

Net gain on disposal of subsidiaries

Gain on revaluation of retained interest
in an associate

Fair value change on financial assets
at FVTPL

Gain on disposal of an associate

Others

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2020

2020 2019
—E_FF —T—hF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THT F#IT
(restated)
(#eE%))
BELEEK
HM A -
AR (SER ] R
(Hiat1) 1,264 2,330
BATIE B WA (H7aE2) 13,267 12,781
IRITHERBRE 2 F S A
17,673 16,857
RAB R H fh FE IR GRIBBRELZ
FLEMA 944 540
33,148 32,508
HbUr s R g8 ¢
BB
-8 - (3,706)
— ¥ - BB K& - (1,315)
—EmERE (381) -
55 P L — RSB 8 1) R U
- (4,400)
5 e U BB A B
FEFRAR AR R K08 (4,496) -
HEWE BB REE 2 W
(E18) 617 (405)
REBLIEHASANESE 2 W
81 13
SN Uk 25 (B518) 7F 5 13,583 (13,931)
BEMENTFEE
(14,914) 12,779
ST E A Rz M F 8 5,613 =
SH—HEBERRZ
{REHERS 2 WS 2,719 -
BAFEFABRZEMEE
NEEEE) 101 4,234
& — e N A 2 WS - 1,660
b 6,800 7,578
9,723 2,507




7. OTHER INCOME, GAINS AND LOSSES
(CONTINUED)

7.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE_T_TFT_A=+—HIFE

Hl A ~ WKk EE (8)

Notes:

1)

()

Shanghai Simcom Limited (“Shanghai Simcom”) (2019:
Shanghai Simcom) is engaged in the business of distribution of
self-developed and produced software and the development of
automated test equipment and software. Under the current PRC
tax regulation, they are entitled to a refund of VAT paid for sales
of self-developed and produced software and the development of
automated test software in the PRC.

The amount includes HK$441,000 Covid-19 related subsidies
and HK$12,265,000 (2019: HK$8,821,000) unconditional
government grants received during the year ended 31 December
2020, which was granted to encourage the Group’s research and
development activities in the PRC.

In addition, during the year ended 31 December 2020, the
Group also received government grants of HK$2,928,000 (2019:
HK$6,986,000) towards the cost of development of Handsets
and |OT terminals business (2019: Handsets and IOT terminals
business) in Shanghai and Shenyang. The amount received
is deferred and is transferred to other income to match actual
expenditure used in research and development activities and
HK$2,910,000 (2019: HK$4,313,000) was recognised in the
profit or loss during the year. As at 31 December 2020, an
amount of HK$44,659,000 (2019: HK$41,495,000 ) remained
to be amortised and is included in other payables (for current
portion) and deferred income (for non-current portion) (Note 29).

Bt -

(1)

(2)

FEHBEERM (L) ARAR ([ LEFEE]
(CZ2-N%F: LEFBR)REOHATRER
HEEZEMN - ARFRESBCRBIRE - REF
BERITZRIER - HPBEMEERTRERE
EZ® - URFAEBSCRARBEAN 2
BERAZEERM -

HEREENEBE—T-_FF+-_A=+—HL
FEULE 2 Covid-1948 A fHRA441,000/8 7T K ik
HEFIE B B A12,265,0008 T (ZF—1LF :
8,821,000/87T) » Jh sk A5 B 5 o B Ry BT 3%
EBmR L -

ItHh  REBREBEE-T T+ =-A=+—H
15 E TS LBUHIEELBU\Z 928,000 7T (=
— L4 : 6,986,000 7T) Fﬁf’ﬁﬁ“i/@&/jﬁﬁﬁﬁ
BFREDBEBERES(C2—NE - FHRR
IS AR S TS ) B RS o FTURER 2 & SR B IR ST
ME - WEBREEMBANESHEEHNE
BEX c WERFERNEEZR EPEEMQ 910,000/
TE(ZE—N4E : 4,313,00087T) - R=ZB=F
F+=—A=+—A8" —§44,659,0007%7E(:i;
— L& : 41,495,000 7T) KIFUB IR A8 4530
BT AEAMEMERR GRAESR O M E) KELEK
A BLIEBNERER AT E) (M E29) -

RAMEEBERAR — T - TFFH
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE-T-_TF+T-_A=1T—HLHFE

8. IMPAIRMENT LOSSES UNDER

EXPECTED CREDIT LOSS MODEL, NET

OF REVERSAL

BAHEEEERN N ZRERS

18 - MIEREE

2020 2019
TECEF —E-NEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
(restated)
(k&%)
Continuing operations BEREER
Impairment losses recognised BT I S IERER
on: BEEE
— Trade receivables — B E F R 6,556 1,039
— Entrusted loan receivable —EWRERTER - 26,287
— Finance lease receivables —ERRERE 381 =
6,937 27,326
9. FINANCE COSTS B & pL AN
2020 2019
—E-ZTF —E-NEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
(restated)
(&E5)
Continuing operations BEESEER
Interests on bank borrowings IRITIEER B 1,769 2,636
Interests on lease liabilities HEaENE 2,385 646
4,154 3,282
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AT B E AN T

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-Z-ZF+-_A=1+—HILFE

10. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND  10. £ EFEHTEREEME
EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS

Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments EEREEYTEMSE

Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year, RIBER LR RREBD ARG TR 2 A&
disclosed pursuant to the applicable Listing Rules and Hong FEARNBRESRERENTESTHEMNZ
Kong Companies Ordinance, is as follows: AT

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HECB-EET-R=T-ALEE

Retirement
henefits
Directors’ Salaries and Share-based scheme Total
fees allowances Bonus payments contributions emoluments
BB
30k FOREE 4 DESIES HE fpe
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Fén Fén Tén Tén Tén Tén
(Note ;) (Note ii)
() (Wi
Executive Directors #hES
Ms Yeung Man Ying e Lan - - - - - -
Mr Wong Cho Tung TERALE - - - - - -
Ms Tang Rongrong (Note i) Rt (ki) - 152 340 - - 492
Mr Liu Jun (Note iv) YF 54 () - 791 510 - 8 1,379
Sublota 5t - 943 850 - 78 1,871
The executive Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments FRATESREFEATEMNSEE@RE R
shown above were mainly for the management of the affairs NARAEEEZB 2 ER -
of the Company and the Group.
Independent non-executive Directors B FTEZ
Mr Liu Hing Hung BRIERE 156 - - - - 156
Mr Wu Zhe RE%E 156 - - - - 156
Mr Wang Tianmiao IRELE 156 - - - - 156
Sub-fotal 1t 468 - - - - 468
The independent non-executive Directors’ emoluments LB IERITES e E BN EEE
shown above were mainly for their services as Directors of KARESE ©
the Company.
Total @t 468 93 850 - 78 2,339
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A BT

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE_Z_TF+_A=t+—HILFE

10. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND 10. EE - BEEFHITEREEME
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (CoONTINUED) (#8)

Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (CONTINUED) EEREEYTEMSE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HEZ-NE+-B=1-HALEE

Retirement
benefits
Directors’ Salaries and Share-based scheme Total
fees allowances Bonus payments contributions emoluments
RN
EShe FeREY Tt DG AR &ie
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
TiEr TiEr TiEr FiEr TiEr TEr
(Note ) (Note i)
W) (Wt
Executive Directors #hES
Ms Yeung Man Ying e = = = = = =
Mr Wong Cho Tung THRF%E - - - - - -
Ms Tang Rongrong ERRLL = 397 340 = = 737
Mr Liu Jun (Note iv) 3B 504 (s - 816 318 - 135 1,269
Sub-tota st - 1,213 658 - 135 2006
The executive Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments AT ESREERNTEMNEEZERE AR
shown above were mainly for the management of the affairs Nl M AEEEHE 2 B o
of the Company and the Group.
Independent non-executive Directors  BUF#17ES
Mr Liu Hing Hung BRIETE 156 = = = = 156
MrWu Zhe RE%E 156 - - - - 156
Mr Wang Tianmiao TRERE 15 - - - - 156
Sublotal 5t 468 - - - - 468
The independent non-executive Directors’ emoluments P ERTTEE M T EMNEEIET
shown above were mainly for their services as Directors of RNAFIESE o
the Company.
Total &t 468 1,213 658 - 135 2474
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10. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND 10.
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (coNTINUED)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AT B E AN T

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-Z-ZF+-_A=1+—HILFE

EX aFUTEREEME

(&)

Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (coNTINUED)
Notes:

(i) The amount of salary and allowance for Ms. Yeung Man Ying and
Mr. Wong Cho Tung is less than HK$1,000

(ii) Incentive performance bonus for the year was determined by the
remuneration committee having regard to the performance and
duties of Directors and the Group’s operating results.

(iii) Resigned as Executive Director with effect from 10 September
2020.

(iv) Being the chief technical officer (2019: chief executive officer) of
the Company.

Employees’ emoluments

The five highest paid individuals included one (2019: one)
Director for the year ended 31 December 2020, whose
emoluments are included in the above. The emoluments of
the remaining four (2019: four) individuals are as follows:

Salaries and allowances e KoERL
Bonus TE4T
Retirement benefits scheme RIREAFT B3R

contributions

Their emoluments were within the following bands:

HK$Nil to HK$1,000,000 T8 751,000,000/ 7T
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001/ 722 1,500,000/ 7T

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group
to any of the Directors or the five highest paid individuals
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office. None of the Directors waived
or agreed to waive any emoluments for both years.

ESRERIITEME ()
Wit

0] BXHRELZTRFEREEZHERRHRESRTR
1,000/ 7T °

(i) FERILEMLEATHFNZEGLEFESZ
RENBBEIARAREB 2 QEREMETE

@iy R-F_TFEAATERHERRITES-

(v RARFEFERME (ZT—NF : RN
B) e

EEMS
BHE-ZE-_TF+-_A=+—RHLFE A
EEESFHATEE—R(CZE—IF: —R)
EE HMESERLEXERE - THE (22
—NF : mB) AT ZBET -

2020 2019
—g-%F —T-NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FiEx FBT
4,015 3,349
1,268 608

341 216

5,624 4,173

®’E 2 e E A TASIEE:

2020 2019
—EZEF —TNE
Number of Number of
employees employees
EBEAH EEAH
1 1

3

AEE  AEEWRAEMNEERKAR R H
MALZREABE - ERFEREMALRSE
EESSHENINE SEL SO E S A pASOEA
B HERERAEE - NMEFEHEEEN
ZXFABRELAME -

RAMEEBERAR — T - TFFH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BARBRENE

For the year ended 31 December 2020

HE_Z-_TF+-_A=+—HILFE
11. TAXATION 11. $18
2020 2019
—E-EF ZE-NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FBT FAET
(restated)
(#&=751)
Continuing operations HFEREER
PRC Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT”)  #REI{BFFTSHEL ([(BEFTSH) (3,811) (10,486)
Land Appreciation Tax (“LAT”) in R B - B E R ([ g (ERR )

the PRC (12) (354)
Overprovisions on PRC LAT BEFEHE AR B

in previous years 132 20,808

(3,691) 9,968
Deferred tax income for current year N EIRIEF B S (5£22)

(note 22) 11,207 9,425
Taxation for the year NEEHIE 7,516 19,393
No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made for HARARNEEEEB I EEEERTRN - W
both years as the Group has no assessable profits arising in R EFEEL TSR EHERE
Hong Kong.

EIT is calculated at the rates prevailing in the relevant TEMESHRF REETKESRR - EPEE
districts of the PRC and taking relevant tax incentives into AR v RITHEAHE - DEREFNES
account. Shanghai Sunrise Simcom Limited (“Shanghai BMEERAR ([ HEREARE]) - B58
Sunrise Simcom”), Shanghai Simcom and Shenyang SIM BRLGEMAEBEEAERAR (NLEAE
Simcom Technology Limited (“Shenyang SIM Simcom”) BOWABISFEMEE]  WHERRA15%
are classified as New and High Technology Enterprise and MR (ZE—NEF : 15%) - ZEEWEB A A
is entitled to adopt a tax rate of 15% (2019: 15%). The RAZHPBRCEMSHEBFEHRENT15%
relevant annual tax rate used for PRC EIT for the Group’s E225% 2B (ZF—NF : 15%E25%) °

subsidiaries ranged from 15% to 25% (2019: 15% to 25%).
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11. TAXATION (conTINUED)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR RENE
For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE_ZE_TF+_A=+—HIEFE

1 1 . ﬁ:IE (nﬁ)

The provision of LAT is estimated according to the
requirements set forth in the relevant tax laws and
regulations of the PRC, which is charged at progressive
rates ranging from 30% to 60% (2019: 30% to 60%) of the
appreciation value, with certain allowable deductions.

The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the (loss)
profit before taxation per the consolidated statement of profit
or loss as follows:

Continuing operations BEREER
Loss before taxation BrFR AT E1E

BRBFTEHHR25%
(ZZ—NF : 25%)F1E

Taxation at the PRC income tax rate
of 25% (2019: 25%)

Tax effect of expenses not
deductible for tax purpose

Tax effect of income not taxable
for tax purpose

Tax effect of tax losses not
recognised

Utilisation of tax losses previously
not recognised

Tax effect of deductible temporary
differences not recognised

Overprovisions on PRC LAT
in previous years

Income tax on concessionary rate

REBREAE ZAER

LAT T HBIEEF
Income tax effect on LAT THIBET 2 ST E
Tax credit for the year NEEHIEE R

1 HbIE(E TR B T AR 15 B A RO B 7S A 2 AN
iiﬁﬁﬁéﬁmﬁiﬁéﬂ’ﬁﬁ - BT AR EES

AIREER E30%E60% (ZE—NE : 30%
Z260%)5TE - WAlEE TR °

REERBNGEGEBERTIR 2GR
(E518) m MR T -

THHB 2 A 2 RS

BEAERRZ WA Z BB E

RERR BRI NG E

HRBERER HBER

AERAMREREER BT E

B B T IR E TR AR A

2020 2019
—ECEF —hEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET BT
(restated)

=)
(50,505) (76,021)

S 7 BIE 12,626 19,005
(6,219) (10,471)
14,862 16,600
(30,762) (43,500)
8,471 13,717
7,135 8,426

132 20,808

1,313 285
(12) (354)
(30) (5,114)

7,516 19,393
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Notes to the Conso\idated Financial Statements
iR e ISR

F)r the year ended 31 D((( mber 2020
BT T F HItFE

HExE <=

12. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

On 23 December 2020, the Group entered into sale
agreements to dispose of a subsidiary, Shanghai Jizhi,
which carried out majority of the Group’s intelligent
manufacturing business. The disposal was effected in order
to generate cash flows for the expansion of the Group’s
other businesses. The disposal was completed on 24
December 2020, on which date the control of Shanghai Jizhi
Automation Technology Co., Limited passed to the acquirer.

The loss for the year from the discontinued operations is
set out below. The comparative figures in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income have been restated to re-present the intelligent
manufacturing business as a discontinued operation.

Loss of intelligent manufacturing ANEARS,F SR
business for the period/year RIE1E

Gain on disposal of intelligent I E B RE RS
manufacturing business (see note 42) (RFKIzE42)

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2020

. ERIEEEXE
R-F-FTE+-A-+=8  AEETTH
%m~um%m% LS - MAREA

DEVE R BIE RS E BB A R -
K’EETJ%HX SANBERASEEMEBZR
ERMETHE - HEER BT F+= H
A - BEREEBERHRAERA
B I RN R B S IR T o

AEERAER HEERBNERIRAOT
FAERRREMEARERNEBRBFCE

5 AR EREMEERBENIIRERLEEEE
% o

2020 2019
—E-BE —ZT—hF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TRz FHIT
(4,204) (18,233)
5,613 -
1,409 (18,233)




12. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

(CONTINUED)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR RENE
For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE_Z_TF+_A=+—HILFE

. BRIEEREXRK (8

The results of the intelligent manufacturing business for the
period from 1 January 2020 to 24 December 2020, which
have been included in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income, were as follows:

Revenue
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other Income

Impairment losses under expected
credit loss model, net of reversal

Other gains and losses

Research and development expenses

Selling and distribution costs

Administrative expenses

Finance costs

Loss before taxation
Taxation

Loss for the period/year

WA
HEMA

EF

HAUA
BEHEEREEATZ
RIERTE - fIkREE
HitbWozs N 18

MR KkRAEER
SHE M IR
TS

BE A

BT A B 1R

IR

AR, FEEE

During the year ended 31 December 2020, intelligent
manufacturing business contributed approximately
HK$24,666,000 (2019: HK$59,702,000) to the Group’s net
operating cash flows, paid approximately HK$22,770,000
(2019: HK$47,741,000) in respect of investing activities and
paid approximately HK$1,362,000 (2019: HK$1,356,000)

in respect of financing activities.

The carrying amounts of the assets and liabilities of Shanghai
Jizhi Automation Technology Co., Limited at the date of

disposal are disclosed in note 42.

Bt Bk EMrARERAZEF
F-A—RAE_ZT-TF+-_A=-+MHEHH
M BB E TSR BRI T
Period ended
24 December Year ended
2020 2019
BZE

—ECERF FSE

+=A=+mMmA —E-NF

LHEAFS IEFE

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FHT

134,885 126,487

(99,676) (89,357)

35,209 37,130

3,470 3,698

- (3,758)

(1,258) 152

(21,406) (23,445)

(7,984) (11,567)

(14,147) (17,686)

(31) =

(6,147) (15,476)

1,943 (2,757)

(4,204) (18,233)

BEZ-_TF+-_A=1+—HILFE T
B EBAAEEERMCERSREFEY
24,666,000 7T (—Z— L4 : 59,702,000
J0) ¢ WL E R B (422,770,000 7T (=
T— N4 : 47,741,000 7T) - B EES L
491,362,000 7T (ZZ— N4 © 1,356,000
BIT) ©

LEREEBHCREERARNEERABRY
& AR REENE42AKE -

RANMKEBRERAR — T TFFH
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®) Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RE R IRER MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE_T_TFE+_A=1T—HILFE

12. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS . DRIERE X (8
(CONTINUED)
2020 2019
—E-EHF —NEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FET
(restated)
(&)
Loss for the year from discontinued NEEHERIEECEEBHBIED
operations has been arrived at after ek GrA) -
charging (crediting):
Amortisation of intangible assets (included in L& E#E Y G ASE LIRS
cost of sales and services) R ) 38,769 53,931
Less: Amount capitalised in inventories W BERNMEMEERE (38,769) (53,931)
Depreciation of property, plant and Y% - EREEITE
equipment 1,062 2,431
Less: Amount capitalised in development B BEE AR
costs - (82)
1,062 2,349
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEETE 3,937 1,534
Cost of inventories recognised as an expense &R AR 2 FEK A
(included in cost of sales and services) FrAHE & ARTEAAN) 99,676 89,357
Staff costs: BIA :
Other staff costs HEh 8 TR
— Salaries and other benefits *Iﬁ N EH Ab1a 21,266 21,112
— Retirement benefits scheme IRIRAEFIET B HE5R
contributions 2,033 4,409
23,299 25,5621
Less: Amount capitalised in B BB bR
development costs (2,025) (8,301)
21,274 17,220
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e SRR M 5

For the year ended 31 December 2020

BE_Z_TF+_A=+—HILFE
13. LOSS FOR THE YEAR 13. REEEE
2020 2019
—E-EF ZE-NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
(restated)
(&=75)
Loss for the year from continuing operations 2N & Y8 48 4 ¥ 1% 18 2 40
has been arrived at after charging B GTA) :
(crediting):
Auditor’s remuneration ZEREM BN & 2,300 2,300
Amortisation of intangible assets (included in & E#$E GT AEE MRS
cost of sales and services) FAR) 66,544 59,226
Less: Amount capitalised in development B BERMERREK A
cost (601) (830)
Less: Amount capitalised in inventories o EEAMENER (65,943) (58,396)
Impairment loss recoginsed in respect of MEFEERR RERIE
intangible assets (included in cost of sales GT ASHE R ARTEAA)
and services) 19,000 21,072
Depreciation of property, plant and Y% - BEREETE
equipment 39,290 35,037
Less: Amount capitalised in development B BEAMERI R A
costs (2,037) (3,348)
Less: Amount capitalised in inventories B BERNMENTFER (26,210) (27,484)
11,043 4,205
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For the year ended 31 December 2020

mf??i ZRA=+—HIEFE
13. LOSS FOR THE YEAR (CONTINUED) 13. XEEEHE (&)
2020 2019
—E-EF —T-NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHT
(restated)
(g&E=75)
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FHREEETE 9,504 9,642
Covid-19 related rent concessions (note 18)  Covid-19#8F8 7 & &R (4777 18) 79 =
(Reversal) Allowance of inventories (included 17 & (B[E) B
in cost of sales and services) (note i) Gt ASHE R ARG AN) (H17i) (28,699) 8,075
Cost of inventories recognised as an expense &R AR Z 7&K
(included in cost of sales and services) GT ASHE R ARTEAA) 753,801 937,207
Cost of properties sold EEYEMA
(including in cost of sales and services) (FrASHE RARFEKA) - 6,709
Cost of manufacturing services SLERRIS R A
(including in cost of sales and services) FrASHE KRB A) 72,210 88,592
Staff costs: BIRA :
Directors’ emoluments (note 10) WS (WiE10) 2,339 2,474
Other staff costs EAth B TR
— Salaries and other benefits —T& RHMEF 156,000 177,129
— Retirement benefits scheme —RREFIE B0
contributions 20,512 47,181
178,851 226,784
Less: Amount capitalised in B BB bR
development costs (53,020) (60,664)
Less: Amount capitalised in inventories B BERNMEMEER (18,730) (22,861)
107,101 143,259
Notes: it
(i) For the year ended 31 December 2020, Covid-19 related (i) BHE-_ZT-_TF+-_A=1+—RHLFE -
government grants/assistance amounted to HK$27,031,000 have Covid-1948RIER TR B W A/ #1B27,031,0007
been offset against retirement benefits scheme contributions. JCE BRREFIET BRI -
(ii) The reversal of write down of inventories arose due to sales of (ii) WREFEZ#LB AREEE TRATFERRE
certain products which had been written down to net realisable AIREFECERMESE

value in prior years.
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14. DIVIDENDS

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
U‘?\/w ET/*“?x?LPi’

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BHE_Z_ZTF+_A=+—HILFE

14. B2

For the year ended 31 December 2019, a special dividend
of HK1 cent per share was declared and paid to the owners
of the Company. The aggregate amount of special dividends
declared and paid in 2019 amounted to HK$24,993,000.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2020 and 2019.

15. LOSS PER SHARE

BE_T-NF+-_A=t—HLFE"
ERRNEFRR S ESRUEILFAR T%ﬁ
A RIE-NFEERRRNZEFHREZ
4BEE /324,993,000 7T ©

EXYTEEMEBE_T_FTFR_FT—NF
T-A=+t—BLFERNRAKRS -

15. #REE

For Continuing operations

The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share
attributable to the owners of the Company is based on the
following data:

HREE R
DTN B SR AR BB 51 T A
TR -

2020 2019
—ECEE —ZT-NEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FBT FHET
Loss figures are calculated as follows: BSEHFHEMT :
Loss for the year attributable to owners 72 Bl#A AEIL A FEE IR
of the Company (38,323) (76,938)
Add: hn
Loss for the year from discontinued AEEREEKRLE
operations RTS8 1,871 18,412
Loss for the purposes of basic and FHES B TSR
diluted loss per share from FREA KBS g8
continuing operations ZE1E (36,452) (58,526)
2020 2019
—ECEF —ZE-NEF
'000 ‘000
Fr TR
Number of shares ROEE
Weighted average number of ordinary st E G SE1ER
shares for the purpose of diluted BRI a2 B
loss per share 2,386,582 2,471,407

RAMEEBERAR — T - TFFH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RE R IRER MR

ar ended 31 December 2020

T_EF+_A=1+—HILFE

15. LOSS PER SHARE (coNTINUED)

15- Hﬁ%j:g (nlﬁ)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, the
computation of diluted loss per share did not assume
the exercise of the Company’s outstanding share options
because the exercise prices of these share options were
higher than the average market price for shares for the year.

From continuing and discontinued operations

The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share from
continuing and discontinued operations attributable to the
owners of the Company is based on the following data:

Loss 58

Loss for the purpose of basic
and diluted per share

The denominators used are the same as those detailed
above for both basic and diluted loss per share.

From discontinued operations

Basic and diluted loss per share for the discontinued
operations is HK 0.08 cents per share (2019: HKO.74
cents per share), based on the loss for the year from the
discontinued operations of approximately HK$1,871,000
(2019: HK$18,412,000) and the denominators detailed
above for both basic and diluted loss per share.

The computation of diluted loss per share does not assume
the exercise of the Company’s options because the exercise
price of those options was higher than the average market
price for shares for both 2020 and 2019.

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2020

Eti:;_vi)}_? —NE+-A=+—8
HEFE - A ESREEE R BRRETER
Qﬁﬁ@ﬁéﬁ%fﬂfz,ﬂﬁﬂﬁg C AAZEBEDN
TEESRAFERNNFEITE -

REFECERERILREEK
ARRHEAABEFELERDRIEKERR
M ERRER M ESEEETRIBIA N BUEAE

AESRERNEEEEZ BER

2020 2019

—_ _\' —= E'E :%7j1£'5
HK'000 HK'000
THET THET
(38,323) (76,938)

FTFR 5 BRI 5 S R AR B 0 5
B4R -

REDKRILREER
RERIEREXBEMAFEEERL1,871,000
BT (ZE—NEF : 18,412,00087T) & EX&F
B EREAREEER 2 EHE BRI
REEBHNEIREN R EFEIERER0.08%8
il (ZZ =% : BR0.74%D) -

AESREEERRE Y ERRANRABEEE
116 TR BABBRENTEER T _2F
—NFEIRFREMHFHTE -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

UTM/\w WJ?x?LP \f

For the year ended 31 December 2020

BE-_T-_TF+-A=1+—HLHFE
16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 16. BEWE
HK$'000
FAET
FAIR VALUE 'szﬁ
At 1 January 2019 “E—NF—HA—H 479,282
Transfers from property, plant and Lﬁéé%% - BRE R
equipment 17,567
Transfer from right-of-use assets HERMRAREEE 8,645
Transfer from property held for sales B EHE MR 15,296
Surplus on transfer of right-of-use assets & FAEEEE LA M W%
and property, plant and equipment WE k& BEEERATE
to investment properties at fair value ABRZIE Y 2 Btk 84,486
Increase in fair value recognised RIBETER 2 A FEE N
in profit or loss 12,779
Exchange differences fERZE=R (9,667)
At 31 December 2019 R-E—NAF+-_A=+—H 608,388
Transfers from property, plant and EEEME  BE LEE
equipment 30,615
Transfer from right-of-use assets R RAREAE 7,602
Surplus on transfer of right-of-use assets ~ #5{# A E AL E -
and property, plant and equipment B KR s E R AT E
to investment properties at fair value ARZIE Y 2 Bk 40,642
Decrease in fair value recognised R =R 2 A HER D
in profit or loss (14,914)
Exchange differences [ERZ=R 46,239
At 31 December 2020 RZBZZTF+=—A=+—H 718,572
Unrealised loss on property ST ABmZ RE R EGEREE
valuation included in profit or loss (14,914)

The Group’s investment properties are held under medium-

term leases in the PRC.

o

RAMEEBERAR — T - TFFH
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Fn the year ended 31 December 2020

16.

Tt —f=+1

BIEE

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (coNTINUED)

16. ®REY = ()

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties at 31
December 2020 and 2019 have been arrived at on the basis
of a valuation carried out on that date by Vigers Appraisal
& Consulting Limited, independent qualified professional
valuers not related to the Group.

The fair value was determined based on the income
capitalisation approach, where the market rentals of all
lettable units of the properties are assessed and discounted
at the market yield expected by investors for this type of
properties. The market rentals are assessed based on
estimates of future cash flows, supported by the terms of
existing lease and reasonable and supportable assumptions
that represent what knowledgeable willing parties would
assume about rental income for future leases in the light of
current conditions. The rate is determined by reference to
the yields derived from analysing the sales transactions of
similar commercial and industrial properties in Shanghai and
Shenyang. There has been no change from the valuation
technique used in the prior year.

In estimating the fair value of the properties, the highest and
best use of the properties is their current use. At the end of
the reporting period, the chief financial officer of the Group
works closely with the independent qualified professional
valuer to establish and determine the appropriate valuation
techniques and inputs. Where there is a material change in
the fair value of the assets, the causes of the fluctuations will
be reported to the management of the Group.
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AEEREMER_ZFT_ZTFER_FT—hF
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DFETIRBBABRNOEERE @ Bt - 5F
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SHES HREBEFARTKADIRFE - WARE
HEMrkAERENZBR(BIAMBERETHE
BITER TERRBE T Z R 1EXHF °
Hﬁlﬁﬁi,@'Jé’\“% DT B8 BB G [R AR TR 5 8

BHZBRXRET - AERTDERBESF
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16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (coNTINUED) 16.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A B HRRH

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE-F-FF A=+ BLEE

s
HExE <=

REW=E (&)

Information about fair value measurements using
significant unobservable input

The following table shows the valuation techniques used in
the determination of fair values for investment properties and
unobservable inputs used in the valuation models.

As at 31 December 2020

Fair value Valuation
hierarchy techniques Fair value Unobservable inputs
AVERE fEERT AYE TAEZRAHE
HK$'000
THET
Investment properties in Shanghai - Commercial
REBZIREYHE -
Level 3 Income 503,928 (i) Capitalisation rate
E=K capitalisation (i) BRI =
approach
WABRILE

(ii) Market rent
(i) mHHe

(iii) Growth rate
(iil) 3R

EREATNTERHABBETAVETEZ
'®
TRETEEREMEXTHEMA 2 AERT
RIGERATAZ N BRHAZRE -

R-ZE-EF+=-A=1+—H

Range of Relationship of
unobservable unobservable
inputs inputs to fair value
TAEE
TERE BWAEE
LIPN ¢4 1 AFEZBR
5.5%-8.5% A slight increase
in the capitalisation
rate would result in
a significant decrease
in fair value, and vice
Versa.
BMEENENES -
ERUATENEXN
B 2 TR9A o
RMB3.85-RMB10.83 A significant increase
per month in the market rent
per square meter would result in a
BRETHK significant increase
ARE385LE in fair value, and
AR10.837T vice versa.
mEHENEAER
SBYNTEMNEX

B R o
A slight increase
in the growth rate
would resultin a
significant increase
in fair value, and
vice versa.
BREMENEE -
REHATENEA
BE - RZIA o

1.0%-1.5%
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BT _TF+_A=+

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (coNTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2020

HItFE

16.

REWZE (&)

Information about fair value measurements using
significant unobservable input (conTINUED)
As at 31 December 2020 (cONTINUED)

Fair value
hierarchy

DFERR

Valuation
techniques

HERT

Investment properties in Shanghai - Industrial

REBZRENHE-TX

Level 3
F=H

Income
capitalisation
approach

WABR

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2020

Fair value

AV
HK$'000
a7t

106,212

Unobservable inputs

LI 1PN ¢

(i) Capitalisation rate

() AL

(ii) Market rent
(i) e

(iii) Growth rate
(iii) ER*

EREATTHRGARMBETAVENEZ

BN ()

REZBZZ2HE+-A=+—H@#)

Range of
unobservable
inputs

FUEE
BAMBEE

6.5%

RMB1.0-RMB1.4
per month
per square meter
BAGIHX
ARELOTZE
ARELAT

0.5%

Relationship of
unobservable
inputs to fair value
FAEE
BABESR
ATEZER

A slight increase
in the capitalisation
rate would result in
a significant decrease
in fair value, and vice
versa.
BALEMENESE
LEYATENER
BE - RZIA o
A significant increase
in the market rent
would resultin a
significant increase
in fair value, and
vice versa.
mEHENEAES -
SEYATENER
5 RZIA o
A slight increase
in the growth rate
would resultin a
significant increase
in fair value, and
vice versa.
EREMENLS
SERHNTENER
BE - R2IA o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BAMBRRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE_T-THFt-_A=t—HLFE

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (coNTINUED) 16. IREW = ()

Information about fair value measurements using FHEATBREGASBETATLEFEZ
significant unobservable input (conTINUED) & (E)
As at 31 December 2020 (CONTINUED) R-ZB-ZEF+-A=+—HE@#)
Range of Relationship of
Fair value Valuation unobservable unobservable
hierarchy techniques Fair value Unobservable inputs inputs inputs to fair value
TAERE
TURE BABEBE
AHERE ERT AVE TUEERAHE BARBEE AFEZEE
HK$'000
TET

Investment properties in Shenyang - Commercial
REBEZREYE -
Level 3 Income 16,032 (i) Capitalisation rate 5.5% Aslight increase
F=8 capitalisation (i) B % in the capitalisation
approach rate would result in
WABRMEE a significant decrease
in fair value, and vice
versa.
B RMOEHIES -
EHATENER
RIE - RZIA
(ii) Market rent RMB1.31 per month A significant increase
(i) 5HEE per square meter in the market rent
BRAGTAXK would result in a
AR¥1317 significant increase
in fair value, and
vice versa.
mEHENEAES
SBYATENER
B RZIA o
(iii) Growth rate 1.5% A slight increase
(iif) R = in the growth rate
would resultin a
significant increase
in fair value, and
vice versa.
EREMENLS
2ERHNTENER
B R o
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BE_ZE-_TF+_-_A=+1

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (coNTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2020

HItFE

16.

REWZE (&)

Information about fair value measurements using
significant unobservable input (conTINUED)
As at 31 December 2020 (cONTINUED)

Fair value
hierarchy

DFPERRE

Valuation
techniques

HERT

Investment properties in Shenyang - Industrial

MBS ZREWHE - T3

Level 3
E=K

Income
capitalisation
approach

WABR

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2020

Fair value

AV
HK$'000
Fi7t

92,400

Unobservable inputs

TAIBERGARE

(i) Capitalisation rate

(i) BAL &

(if) Market rent
(i) %S

(iii) Growth rate
(iii) SR &

EREATTHRGARMBETAVENEZ

BN ()

REZBZZ2HE+-A=+—H@#)

Range of
unobservable
inputs

FUHE
BABBHE

6.5%

RMB0.51-RMB1.25
per month
per square meter
BABTAHK
AREO0SITE
AR®1.257T

1.5%

Relationship of
unobservable
inputs to fair value
TAEE
BABEBHE
AFEZBRE

A slight increase
in the capitalisation
rate would result in
a significant decrease
in fair value, and vice
versa.
BAMLEMENEE
SEYATENER
BIE - RZIA o
A significant increase
in the market rent
would resultin a
significant increase
in fair value, and
vice versa.
mEHENEAES -
SEYATENER
#E - RZIA o
A slight increase
in the growth rate
would resultin a
significant increase
in fair value, and
vice versa.
EREMENLS
SEHNTENEX
BE - R2ZIA o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AT B E AN T

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-Z-ZF+-_A=1+—HILFE

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (coNTINUED) 16. IREW = ()

Information about fair value measurements using FHEATBREGASBETATLEFEZ
significant unobservable input (conTINUED) B ()
As at 31 December 2019 RZZE-NF+ZHA=+—H
Range of Relationship of
Fair value Valuation unobservable unobservable
hierarchy techniques Fair value Unobservable inputs inputs inputs to fair value
TABR
TABE BAZEH
AVERE RERS AYE TABERAYE BAHEEE AVEZER
HK$'000
THET

Investment properties in Shanghai - Commercial

REBZRENE-EE

Level 3 Income 464,543 (i) Capitalisation rate 5.5%-8.5% Aslight increase in
F=8 capitalisation (i) EA b the capitalisation
approach rate would result in
WABRLE a significant

decrease in fair
value, and vice versa.

EAeRmEmES -

SERHNTENEX
BE - RZIA o
(i) Market rent RMB3.89-RMB10.3 A significant increase in
(i) 5 per month the market rent would
per square meter result in a significant
BAFTERXK increase in fair value,

AR¥389TE and vice versa.
ARE1037T mEREMEAES -

EERHATENEXN
B RZMA
(iii) Growth rate 1.0%-1.5% A'slight increase in
(iif) 3R X the growth rate would

result in a significant
increase in fair value,
and vice versa.
BRENEHLE
SRR FENEX
#5 R2I%
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ear ended 31 December 2020

HItFE

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (coNTINUED) 16.

REWZE (&)

Information about fair value measurements using

significant unobservable input (coNTINUED)

As at 31 December 2019 (CONTINUED)

Fair value
hierarchy

D ERR

Valuation
techniques

fHERT

Investment properties in Shanghai - Industrial

REBZRENME-T%

Level 3
F=

Income
capitalisation
approach

WABA

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2020

Unobservable inputs

TURREAYE

(i) Capitalisation rate

(i) EAfL

(i) Market rent
(i) T5HE

(iii) Growth rate
(iii) B RE

EREATTHRGARMBETAVENEZ

BN ()

R=ZZE—NF+-_A=+—8B@&E)

Range of
unobservable
inputs

FAEE
BARBEE

6.5%

RMB1.0-RMB2.5
per month
per square meter
BABTHK
ARELOLE
ARE2.57T

0%

Relationship of
unobservable
inputs to fair value
TABE
WABEHE
AFEZBRE

A'slight increase in
the capitalisation
rate would result in
a significant
decrease in fair
value, and vice versa.
BAMLEMENES
SEHNTEMEX
BIE - RZIA
A significant increase in
the market rent would
result in a significant
increase in fair value,
and vice versa.
mEHESNEANER
SEYATENER
#E - RZIA -
A slight increase in
the growth rate would
result in a significant
increase in fair value,
and vice versa.
EREMEHES
SBYATENER
B RZIA o



16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (coNTINUED)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AT B E AN T

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-Z-ZF+-_A=1+—HILFE

16. RE* ()

Information about fair value measurements using

significant unobservable input (coNTINUED)
As at 31 December 2019 (CONTINUED)

Fair value Valuation
hierarchy techniques Fair value
AVERE fEERD AYE

HK$'000

TET
Investment properties in Shenyang — Commercial
REBG 2 IREYHE -
Level 3 Income 15,722
] capitalisation

approach
WABRLE

Unobservable inputs

ARG HE

(i) Capitalisation rate

(i) BARE®

(i) Market rent
(i iz E

(iii) Growth rate
(iii) B RXE

EREATNTERHABBETAVETEZ
i=—£adC )
RZB-NF+_A=1+—H&)

Range of Relationship of
unobservable unobservable
inputs inputs to fair value
TABE
TABE BWAEHE
BAYEEE AFEZBR
55% Aslight increase in

the capitalisation
rate would result in
a significant
decrease in fair
value, and vice versa.
B RMERES -
SRR TENEX
BE - R o
RMB1.34 permonth A significant increase in
per square meter the market rent would
BRETHK result in a significant
AR#1.347T increase in fair value,
and vice versa.
mERENEALS -
SEYRFENEX
#E - RZIA -
2% A'slight increase in
the growth rate would
result in a significant
increase in fair value,
and vice versa.
EREMENES
SBYATENER
EE - R2IA
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A BT

/ear ended 31 December 2020
T _EF+_A=+—HILFE

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (coNTINUED) 16.

REWZE (&)

Information about fair value measurements using
significant unobservable input (conTINUED)

As at 31 December 2019 (CONTINUED)

EREATTHRGARMBETAVENEZ

BN ()

RZE-—NF+ZA=+—H®E

Range of Relationship of
Fair value Valuation unobservable unobservable
hierarchy techniques Fair value Unobservable inputs inputs inputs to fair value
TABE
TABE BWABEE
AVERE fEERT AYE TABERAEE BABBEE AFEZBRE
HK$'000
THET
Investment properties in Shenyang - Industrial
REBEGZREYE T
Level 3 Income 98¥258 (i) Capitalisation rate 6.5% A slight increase in
E=5K capitalisation (i) BRI & the capitalisation
approach rate would result in
WAB AL a significant

(i) Market rent

RMBO0.51-RMB1.3

decrease in fair
value, and vice versa.
BEAMLEMEHES
SEHNTENEX
BE - R2ZIA o

A significant increase in

(it riikn per month the market rent would
per square meter result in a significant
BABEFXK increase in fair value,
AR¥051TE and vice versa.
ARE137 mHEHEMEAES -
EHNFENEKR
B RZIMA -
(iii) Growth rate 2% A slight increase in

(jii) R =&

There were no transfers into or out of Level 3 during the
years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019.

All of the Group’s property interests held under operating
leases to earn rentals or for capital appreciation purposes
are measured using the fair value model and are classified
and accounted for as investment properties.

the growth rate would
result in a significant
increase in fair value,
and vice versa.
BEREMEHES
SBYATENER
#5 - RZIA -

HE_Z-_ZFR-_FT—NF+-_A=+—H
IFFE - BEER e SR E = -

A B A RIBEE
BB AR RS -

HERSBLERREEH

BERARFEER

SAEERDERARIAREE -

As at 31 December 2020, the Group has pledged
investment properties having a fair value of approximately
HK$132,517,000 (2019: HK$130,806,000) to secure
general banking facilities granted to the Group.

R-ZZE-_ZFTE+-_A=+—H X£EERQ
F{E#132,517,0008 L (= —HL%E
130,806,000/ 7T) 2 I EMFE THM - A
REBATES—MERITRE ZER -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AT B E AN T

For the year ended 31 December 2020

BE_T-THFt-_A=t—HLFE
17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 17. % - BERKRE
Equipment,
furniture
Leasehold and Plant and
improvements fixtures machinery Motor
Buildings HEME R HA BER vehicles Total
BF %# R#E Hes HRE s
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL TAL TER TER TET TEL
COST BA
At 1 January 2019 RZE-N5-A-H 387,969 5,624 234,228 244,420 10,722 882,963
Exchange differences ExZR (5,610) (88) (4,538) (4.211) (152) (14,599)
Additions AE 4314 - 39% 22826 711 31,847
Acquired on acquisition WE—RIRE A AR RE
of a subsidiary - - 9,948 - - 9,948
Disposals e (11,968) (217) (8,728) (7,882) (2,442) (31,237)
Transfers to investment BRERENE
properties (46,324) - - - - (46,324)
At 31 December 2019 RZE-NE+ZA=T-H 328,381 5319 234,906 255,153 8839 832,598
Exchange differences ExZR 18871 727 16,897 17,900 531 54926
Additions AE 747 6,321 6,980 8,047 1,159 23,254
Disposals e (108) = (1,026) (1,140) (1671) (3,945)
Disposal of subsidiaries HERBAR - - (850) = (122) (972)
Transfers to investment ERERENE
properties (53,713) - - - - (53,713)
At 31 December 2020 2 e 204,178 12,367 256,907 279,960 8,736 852,148
DEPRECIATION AND REREE
IMPAIRMENT
At 1 January 2019 RZE-NE-F-R 180,958 4,758 229,403 163,232 8433 576,784
Exchange differences ExzZ (2,652) (74) (4,134) (2,698) (117) (9,675)
Charge for the year REEHR 14,199 - 6,443 16,119 707 37468
Eliminated on disposals R ERHH (1,808) (217) (7,209) (870) (2,149) (12,249)
Transfers o investment ERRRENE (28757) - - - - (28757)
properties
Impairment loss recognised ~ PMBETERZRESE
in profit of loss - - 1315 - - 1315
At 31 December 2019 R=E2-NF+-A=1-H 161,940 4,467 225818 165,783 6,878 64,886
Exchange differences ExzZ 10,170 2% 16,304 12,585 369 39,723
Charge for the year REE R 11,135 - 7,257 21381 579 40,352
Eliminated on disposals A EREH (102) - (913) (791) (1,587) (3393)
Eliminated upon disposal o~ MEEMBARFHH
subsidiaries - - (677) = (%6) (773)
Transfers to investment BRERENE (23,098) - - - = (23,098)
properties
At 31 December 2020 RZBZEE+-A=1-R 160,045 4,762 247789 198 958 6,143 617,697
CARRYING AMOUNTS RAE
At 31 December 2020 W-ZE-Z#+-A=1-H 134,133 7,605 9,118 81,002 2,593 234,451
At 31 December 2019 RZE-NE+ZA=T-H 166,441 852 9,088 89,370 1,91 267,712
BHREEEERAR T TEF 169



®) Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

17.

A MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE_T_TFE+_A=1T—HILFE

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(CONTINUED)

17. 9% ~ BERHRiE (&)

18.

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on its cost
less their residual values on a straight-line basis at the
following rates per annum:

Buildings BF

Leasehold improvements HEYHEEE
Equipment, furniture and fixtures &% - R NES
Plant and machinery B MBS

Motor vehicles B

As at 31 December 2020, the Group has pledged buildings
having a carrying value of approximately HK$44,725,000
(2019: HK$85,927,000) to secure general banking facilities
granted to the Group.

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

M~ BERREIIZERARERISRERE
WABARER THIFRITE

5%

The shorter of the lease terms and 5 years
HEMRRSFE s REE

20%-25%

10%-20%

20%

RZZE_ZTF+-_A=+—8  K&EEDK
AEEEX44,725,0000 T (= — AL -
85,927,000870) ZEF - (EAAEEMERS
—MRERITRVE 2 FBIR -

18. FAEEE

At 1 January 2020 R-E-Z5-HA—H

Carrying amount REE

At 31 December 2020 R-E-ZF+-A=1+-H

Carrying amount BRAEE

For the year ended BE-Z-Z5+-A=1-H
31 December 2020 LFE

Depreciation charge nEERH

For the year ended BE-Z-NE+=B=1+—-H
31 December 2019 HEE

Depreciation charge NEER

Expense relating to short-term leases S HATHEERAF

Total cash outflow for leases MEZRES R
Additions to right-of-use assets FREEERE

170 SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2020

Land use Office
rights Warehouse premises Total
T fERE BE  BAENE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THEx TAT TEL TAT
46,151 6,979 1,968 55,098
38,749 31,009 261 70,019
2,308 10,742 391 13,441
2,659 5,201 3,316 11,176
2020 2019
i — i
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET T
2,605 1,915
10,302 8,909
32,804 6,657




18. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (conTINUED)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BAMBRRNE
For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE_Z_TF+_A=+—HILFE

18. EREEE ()

For both years, the Group leases various offices, warehouses,
for its operations. Lease contracts are entered into for fixed
term of approximately 6 months to approximately 5 years,
but may have termination options as described below.
Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and
contain a wide range of different terms and conditions. In
determining the lease term and assessing the length of the
non-cancellable period, the Group applies the definition of a
contract and determines the period for which the contract is
enforceable.

In addition, the Group owns several industrial buildings
where its manufacturing facilities are primarily located
and office buildings. The Group is the registered owner of
these property interests, including the underlying leasehold
lands. Lump sum payments were made upfront to acquire
these property interests. The leasehold land components of
these owned properties are presented separately only if the
payments made can be allocated reliably.

Rent concessions

During the year ended 31 December 2020, lessors of
warehouse provided rent concessions to the Group through
rent reductions ranging from 16% to 22% over one to six
months.

These rent concessions occurred as a direct consequence
of Covid-19 pandemic and met of all of the conditions
in HKFRS 16.46B, and the Group applied the practical
expedient not to assess whether the changes constitute lease
modifications. The effects on changes in lease payments
due to forgiveness or waiver by the lessors for the relevant
leases of HK$79,000 were recognised as negative variable
lease payments.

Restriction or covenants on leases

As at 31 December 2020, the Group has pledged right-
of-use assets having a carrying value of approximately
HK$13,914,000 (2019: HK$19,504,000) to secure general
banking facilities granted to the Group.

Leases committed
As at 31 December 2020, the Group does not have new
leases that have not yet commenced.

RREFE  AEBEHHEHESEARIE - BE
2Bz  HEANZBEEFHRA6MEA
EH5F - HEAIR T XA AR L - H R A
AIEERER - B8 &N SETRAFEREE
o REERHMEFETABOEE &G
B AEEEAAENZER - LEFE A RHITT
BRI -

o AEEBEEHETIEAE (ZEBEH
EREAEZR) RRAERT - AEBE/Z
EMEtEn (BEAREE L) 2 BRET -
KRB ZEYERER - BB NRIHN
Ko ZEBAYMEZHEE LA DN SR 5
WABRNRETEBLES -

HELER
HE_Z-_TFE+_A=+—HULFE " gE
HHABRBE —EAEARBHESHD16%E
22% + AEEREESER

HeFRESE ACovid-1I9KNRITHEEERR -
WA BB HRE R 16.46B5E A PIA 5
- MAEBERATREZA T EZEE
BELBAEERR] - BEARTR KR
FATRE 79,0008 LM A HENHELNF ERK
RRBAEEENNK -

HERFIRELN
R-ZZ-_ZTF+-_A=+—0 A&£EDEK
HERE(E#13,914,000/8 T (Z T — L4 -
19,504,000 7T) 2 EREEE  (EAAKE
FTES —MRERITRAE 2 EIR ©

SAREE

RITBZZBF+_HA=+—RH  AEELTER
RFRZFHAL

BANEEBERAR T - TEEH
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For the year ended 31 December 2020

BE_ZT_TF+_A= FE
19. FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES 19. EWmERSE
2020 2019
—E-EF ZE-NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Current finance lease receivables mEE AR E 2 EUEIE - 169
Non-current finance lease receivables  JERENRIE T E ~ EU TR IE - 188
- 357
Leasing arrangements HEZH
Certain of the Group’s storage equipment are leased out AEEETHEHREHREREHRSLE - F7
under finance leases. All leases are denominated in RMB. BHENARKE  mEHECFHTFHE
The average term of finance leases entered into is 3 years =FE(CE-NEFE - HEF) o
(2019: 4 years).
Amounts receivable under finance leases RIEHE 2 R IE
Minimum Present value of
lease payments lease payments
REEENH HENREE
2020 2019 2020 2019

—B-%F TNF ZBSRF _TONF
HK$'000 ~ HK$000  HK$'000  HK$000
TR TAR TR TAR

Not later than one year —F R - 179 - 169
Later than one year and —FERFUR

not later than five years - 198 - 188

- 377 - 357

Less: unearned finance W RREEE W N/A N/A

income - (20) TEA TEA
Present value of minimum el R KT EZUARE

lease payments receivable - 357 - 357
Unguaranteed residual values of assets leased under finance RIE-—NER BRERERERECEEY
leases at the end of 2019 are estimated at HK$357,000. R FIREEGFTA357,00008 7T °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
iRE SRR M A

For the year ended 31 December 2020
T HItFE

BHE_ZT-_TF+-_H=H

19. FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES 19. ERmERE (@)
(CONTINUED)
The interest rate inherent in the leases is fixed at the contract HERBEEBHzAENEREHNBHER
date for the entire lease term. The average effective interest FEKFE - RZE-NEFEFHER ¢7T'J—.—,\’J?é’j
rate is approximately 22% per annum in 2019. 228

REE-_Z-_ZFE+_A=+—HIFZ &

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the finance lease

receivables has been fully impaired. Wt EHEEBERE -
20. GOODWILL 20. &
Acquisition
of Kongtop
Industrial
(Shenzhen)
Company
Limited
WiiE
EHREZE
CFIN
BRAT]
HK$'000
FET
COST S%:N
At 1 January 2019 —hEFE—A—H =
Arising on acquisition of a subsidiary EUiE— B A REE 3,831
Exchange adjustment bE A% (160)
At 31 December 2019 —E-NF+=-A=+—H 3,671
Exchange adjustment ER%%‘ =
At 31 December 2020 RZZE=ZTF+=A=+—H =
IMPAIRMENT BE
At 1 January 2019 —nEFE—HA—H
Impairment loss recognised in the year AR ZFIEE B 3,706
Exchange adjustment P& H R (35)
At 31 December 2019 RZB-NF+-A=+—H 3,671
Exchange adjustment P& H TR =
At 31 December 2020 RZEZEF+_A=+—H =
CARRYING VALUE REE{E
At 31 December 2020 —E-TF+-F=+—H =
At 31 December 2019 —hWF+=ZA=+—H =

RAMEEBERAR — T - TFFH
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
—A=t+—HLFE

7 —F — T4

HExE <=

20. GOODWILL (conTINUED)

20. & (&)

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill has been
allocated to an individual cash generating units (CGUs) in
the handsets and IOT terminals business segment. The

SUBERE M F
BERBEB BN —

CBEEIREETH I

18 53R & = A B8 7 (3R

S =z —
carrying amounts of goodwill is fully impaired during the year RELEN) o B E EEE{EEA\%?:':_? N
ended 31 December 2019. ToA=+—BUEFEEAEAE -
21. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 21. B EE
Licence  Development Technical Customer
fee costs know-how contracts Total
TARE B A EBRI XPEH w5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT TET AL FHT AT
COST BA
At 1 January 2019 RZE-n&—A—-A 101,339 999,699 71,339 27514 1,199,891
Additions NE - 104,643 - - 104,643
Exchange differences ExkzE (1,686) (17,648) - - (19,334)
At 31 December 2019 RZE-NE+-A=1—H 99,653 1,086,694 71,339 27514 1,285,200
Additions NE 43 68,334 - - 68,377
Disposal of subsidiaries HEMBAF - (9,039) = = (9,039)
Exchange differences Ek=ZE 6,835 78,017 - = 84,852
At 31 December 2020 “TCEE+ZAZ1-A 106,531 1,224,006 71,339 27514 1,429,390
AMORTISATION AND BERAE
IMPAIRMENT
At 1 January 2019 R-ZE-h&—A—H 74,608 878,480 71,339 27,514 1,051,941
Charge for the year AEEMR 6,998 106,159 = = 113,157
Exchange differences ExEZE (1,309) (16,365) - - (17,674)
Impairment loss recognised in -~ AFE A2 RIEFE
current year - 21,072 - - 21,072
At 31 December 2019 RZE-NE+-A=1—H 80,297 989,346 71,339 27514 1,168,496
Charge for the year KEEAR 6,683 98,625 = = 105,313
Exchange differences EkzE 5,898 73,142 - = 79,040
Impairment loss recognised in -~ AEEWR ZHEEE
current year 4,500 14,500 - - 19,000
Eliminated upon disposal of HEMB ARk
subsidiaries - (8,914) - - (8914)
At 31 December 2020 R-ZE-TF+-A=+—H 97,383 1,166,699 71,339 27514 1,362,935
CARRYING AMOUNTS BREE
At 31 December 2020 WZE-TF+-A=1—H 9,148 57,307 - - 66,455
At 31 December 2019 RZE-NE+-A=1—H 19,356 97,348 = = 116,704
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AT B E AN T

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HIEFE

HE_T-ZF+ A=+

21. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED) 21. BILEE ()
Licence fee, technical know-how and customer contracts of AEEZHAIFERE  EERMEEFEHHE
the Group were acquired from third parties. BE=FWE -
The intangible assets have finite useful lives. Intangible assets BEEEGCRTHRER - BEEENERE
are amortised on a straight-line basis over the following ROA T EAR B 5H -
period:
Licence fee 1-5 years AR 1&E55F
Development costs 9 months-2 years AR offl A :=24F
Technical know-how 5-8 years BERM 5EQ4F
Customer contracts 3 years EFEAEH 3F
22. DEFERRED TAX 22. JEEBIA
The following are the major deferred tax (liabilities) assets J’XTZ%%$$§&@E¢J§ ' $%Fﬂ§%
recognised by the Group and the movement thereon, during FRELEHE (AR EERABED -
the current and prior years.
Write-down of  Impairment of
Revaluation of  Development inventories property,  Revaluation of
equity cost and trade plant and investment
instrument at FVTOCI capitalised receivables equipment properties Total
BRATETA FEREN
A2 ENEZ [25-:(4 Bk W% BER RENE
RATIEER ERS R RERE Eff a5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tén Thn TAn TAn TAn TAn
At 1 January 2019 RZE-NE-FA—-H (8,654) (14,344) 26,767 13,788 (71,151) (53,594)
Exchange differences EEEZ (293) 283 (429) (278) 1,589 872
Charge (credit) o profit or loss MESAR G 12121 567 - (46) (3217) 9,425
Credit to other comprehensive REMZERETA
income (3.901) - - - (21,123) (25,024)
At 31 December 2019 RZE-NE+-A=1-H (727) (13,494) 26,338 13464 (93,902) (68,321)
Exchange differences Exzg (17) (1,040) 1,777 18 (6,731) (5,993)
Charge (credt) to profit or loss PRSI GTA) S 6,584 (1,507) 1878 4,252 11,207
Credit to other comprehensive REf2ERGETA
income (79) - = - (9,250) (9,329)
At 31 December 2020 R-Z-_FF+-A=+-H (823) (7,950) 26,608 15,360 (105,631) (72,436)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RE R IRER MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE-_T-_TF+-_A=1+—HLHFE

22. DEFERRED TAX (CONTINUED) EAEFIE ()

The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances for
financial reporting purposes:

Deferred tax assets FRIEFIIAE EE
Deferred tax liabilities FERIEE F

At 31 December 2020, other than the deferred tax assets
and liabilities mentioned above, subsidiaries of the Group
had unused tax losses of approximately HK$570,952,000
(2019: HK$465,352,000) available for offset against future
profit. No deferred tax asset has been recognised due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams of those subsidiaries.
Included in unused tax losses was HK$141,404,000 (2019:
HK$195,544,000) that will expire by 2025 (2019: 2024).
Other losses may be carried forward indefinitely.

Under the EIT Law of PRC, withholding tax is imposed on
dividends declared in respect of profits earned by PRC
subsidiaries from 1 January 2008 onwards. Deferred taxation
has not been provided for in the consolidated financial
statements in respect of temporary differences attributable
to retained profits of the PRC subsidiaries amounting to
HK$1,083,679,000 (2019: HK$1,150,294,000) as the
Group is able to control the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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2020 2019
—g-®E —T-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHERT FET
54,029 44,092
(126,465) (112,413)
(72,436) (68,321)

R-ZE-ZTF+-_A=+—H BRLlELE
MELEERBEN  FNEERNBRAREARD
R IEEE4570,952,0008 T (= —Hh
F 1 465,352,000 7T) A {88 R 2R m Al o
MRZEMBRARRIHEF R A TEA - &
WEBEREERIEEE - RPATIEEIES
141,404,000 70 (ZZF — L4 : 195,544,000
BILDBR_E_AF(CZT—NF: T
F) fEm o HtEar EREH -

RIBFBECEMRFVE - APERBRRRN =
ZTN\F—A—-HRARIENEROREA
BRIEMM - £R A MTEIHRERARE LB E
N RMRE & A H E R £ %H1,083,679,000/8 7T
(ZZ—1%F : 1,150,294,0007 7T) {E K IR AR
TREE - REAREEAZEZE TR ZREA
RO ARZEERZHRAR LARRD
ARIBEREE -



23. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BAMBRRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2020
—A=H

s
3= =

23. REFE N R 2

th7s — 3 — T4}

4=

HItFE

Costs of investments in unlisted RIEEMEE QR Z
associates & Z AR
Share of post-acquisition losses DGR EE % BB

The Group had interests in the following associates:

Form of
business Country of
Name of entity structure incorporation
RB%R EHGRY HRALER
Shanghai Jizhi Automation Incorporated The PRC
Technology Co., Limited
DEREEBIHRRRAT AT il
LERENRENE Incorporated The PRC
BRAR( L85S])
alilan il
BRBARAEER AR Incorporated The PRC
(IBRRA)
Rl e

Principal
place of
operation

TRERE

The PRC

e

The PRC

i

The PRC

Class of
share held

FrERHER

Registered
capital

Registered
capital

Registered
capital

2020
SR 5
HK$’000
TR

35,873
(3,325)

2019
—FNF
HK$'000
FEL

9,476
(2,829)

32,548

6,647

AL ER TS DR A

Proportion of Proportion
registered capital of voting
held by the Group power held
K&
ERERLH s et il
% % % %
2020 2019 2020 2019
Z3CZF CI-NF ZBCEE CE)F

4 100 4 100

(Note ii) (Note ii
49 100 49 100
(i) (W)
40 40 40 40
(Note ) (Note i)
40 40 40 40
(k) (Hi3)
- 40 - {0
- 40 - {0

RAMEEBERAR — T - TFFH

Principal acivities

IEER

Development of automated
fest equipment in the PRC
ErEREES R
i

Software development
ik

Development of automated
test equipment in PRC

ErERREHRR
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For the year ended 31 December 2020

23.

TE+=—f=+1

BIEE

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (coNTINUED)

23. REFE N F] 2 ()

Notes:

(i)

(ii)

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group
incorporated /848 5 with registered capital of RMB20,000,000.
Initial capital injection of RMB4,000,000 was made by the
Group upon incorporation. As at 31 December 2020, the Group
and other investors had capital commitment of RMB4,000,000
(equivalent to HK$4,800,000) (2019: RMB4,000,000 (equivalent
to HK$4,492,000)) and RMB 12,000,000 (equivalent to
HK$14,400,000) (2019: RMB12,000,000 (equivalent to
HK$13,476,000)) respectively. The Group’s capital commitment is
set out in note 36.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group disposed
of a 51% interest in Shanghai Jizhi to third parties for proceeds of
RMB26,668,000. The disposal of a subsidiary is set out in note
42.

The Group has 49% ownership interest and voting rights in
Shanghai Jizhi. By considering that the Group has no sufficiently
dominant voting rights to direct the relevant activities of Shanghai
Jizhi unilaterally, the directors of the Company conclude that
the Group only has significant influence over Shanghai Jizhi and
therefore it becomes as an associate of the Group.

The fair value of the Group’s investment in Shanghai Jizhi as at 31
December 2020 was HK$30,342,000, subject to HK$2,719,000
gain on revaluation of the retained 49% interest of Shanghai Jizhi.

There are no significant restrictions on the ability of the
associates to transfer funds to the Group in the form of cash
dividends, or to repay loans or advance made by the Group.

Summarised financial information of each reporting period is
not disclosed as it is not material to the Group.

Summarised financial information of material associates

Summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s
material associate is set out below. The summarised
financial information below represents amounts shown in the
associate’s financial statements prepared in accordance with
IFRSs.
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Bt

(i

(ii)

HE-_T—AF+-_A=+—HLEEE ' &
SEAMAL EERE  aMERAABARE
20,000,0007T ° 7% % B R 7t A 7 B 70 25 5%
& ANR#4,000,0007t - R=FT=-2F+=A
=t+—HB AEERHEMEBEEENERNRED
515 AR #4,000,0007T (165 74,800,000 7T)
(ZZ—h&F : AR%4,000,0007T (HHER
4,492,000% 7)) &k AR #12,000,0007T (48
£ 14,400,00087T) (ZT—NF : AR
12,000,0007T (8514 13,476,000/&7T) ) © A [H
2B ARESEE M6 o

BE_ZT-ZF+_A=+—RILFE KA£H
ME=FHE DEREL1 %R @ FISREAR
AR¥26,668,0007T ° A BB QA HEEIE
A FEA2

REEES DBBREIONNMAEREGE KRR
o ZEEIAREEI R AL IR R TR
B HEE LERENEREE  AAREER
REAEEH EREEFEATESN  EEK
RAEENEE AR

WIZE-ZF+-—A=+—H FTEERLEH
BHIREMNATER30,342,000ET » ARFE
i IS 2 49% R B iz 2 Wa2,719,000/8 7T
e °

BERRARERETANAEEERES K
EEAEBRHEZERRBRZENLESE
EDNELE

EREPMBERNRBZLREE - A/EEX
SEMELTEK -

ERRENRCUBERERE

TXHINAEEEEZB LN E 2 W EE R
2 - NTHMBEMMERRIREE B BRE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE_T_TFE+_A=1T—HILFE
23. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (coNTINUED) 3. REFE N R 2 ()
Summarised financial information of material associates BEEHE AR M EERSE (@)

(CONTINUED)

The associate is accounted for using the equity method in
the consolidated financial statements.

Shanghai Jizhi

Current assets MENVEE
Non-current assets EMBEE
Current liabilities mEAE
Revenue WA

Profit for the year N g F)

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information

to the carrying amount of the interest in the associate

recognised in the consolidated financial statements:

Net assets of Shanghai Jizhi

Non-controlling interests of Shanghai

Jizhi ‘s subsidiaries

EEREEESE
LEREHBARZ
FRIER RS

Proportion of the Group’s ownership AEER LEHE 2
interest in Shanghai Jizhi AR

Carrying amount of the Group’s interest ZAEE R L/GHE 2

in Shanghai Jizhi (Note)

R BREE (#/at)

Note: As at 31 December 2019, Shanghai Jizhi was a subsidiary of the

Group, therefore the carrying amount of the Group’s interest in

Shanghai Jizhi was eliminiated.

REREVERET @ BERR KA
JEANER ©

_EEHE

2020 2019

—E-ZF —E-NF

HK$’000 HK$'000

Fix FiBT

143,576 122,759

5,447 6,113

(96,373) (84,191)

125,295 122,760

31,198 14,823

LA_EBA TS BRI BB R A B TSRk P T HER

I R B 2 REan O RRE (BB

2020 2019
—BCEH —T-NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR TEL
52,650 44,681

3 274

52,653 44,955
49% 100%

N/A

30,342 TEA

Biet - REE-NF+-A=+—H LEEERTE
BHEAT - Bt AERER RS 2 EmN
FREEEREH o

EBRMRKERARAT T THEFH 179
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE_T_TFE+_A=1T—HILFE

23. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (conTINUED) 23. REtE A F 2R (E)

Aggregate information of associates that are not EREIEZ 2 BE N T NARER
individually material

2020 2019
—ECEF —E-NEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
The Group’s share of loss REBEELEE (3,325) (2,829)
Aggregate carrying amount of the AEERZEHE QT Z
Group’s interests in these associates M ARETEREE 2,206 6,647
24. EQUITY INSTRUMENTS AT FVTOCI/ 24. AT EGFTAHMEE KRR
FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVTPL AIH BRAVEFABENE
mEE
2020 2019
—E-EF —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Equity instruments at FVTOCI BEATERF AR ME2ERER
comprise AT ABIE
Unlisted equity securities outside RE B AINE TR ANTES 12,382 669
Hong Kong, at fair value (note i) (R DFE) (K1ati)
Financial assets at FVTPL comprise: AT EFABRZNEMEERTE
Listed equity securities in REB EMRAES BATE) 6,408 22,512
Hong Kong, at fair value
Unlisted investment outside RBEBLAINE ETHIRE 7,376 =
Hong Kong, at fair value (note ii) (RAFE) (B7:ti)
13,784 22,512
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24. EQUITY INSTRUMENTS AT FVTOCI/
FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVTPL
(CONTINUED)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Ra M mR AT

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE_Z-ZF+-_A=+—HILFE

24. BAFEFAREMZERERR
THE BAFEFABRBENE
mEE (|

Notes:

(i)

(ii)

The above unlisted equity security investments represent the
Group's 6% and 15% equity interests respectively in two private
entities established in PRC. The directors of the Group have
elected to designate these investments in equity instruments as at
FVTOCI.

The amount represents a contract of wealth management
investment with a company engaged in asset management
business and a bank in PRC. The principal of approximatety
HK$7,200,000 as at 31 December 2020 was unsecured and
unguaranteed.

In the opinion of the directors of the Group, the fair values of the
wealth management investment as at 31 December 2020 was
HK$7,376,000, including fair value changes of HK$176,000
during the year. The wealth management investment will mature

Bz

(0] Eat3F EEAESF BB EASERREETH
P2 AL BN BIR B 26% R 15% Mt - A5k
EE=CRERNZSFRARERRAFERNAR
fEEREZBEATA -

(i) ZEREETH-FARFEEEEET LA
—RRTAILZHEEEREAN - K=
F+ZA=+—H2A£# /37,200,000 7T ' B
AR R AR o

Tz

AEEEERA  ZAVEEEREAN_F=-F
F+ZA=+—H2Z2ATER7,376,000% T ' B
BERNZATFEEEL76,0008 T - ZRMEE
ﬁ?ﬁﬁﬂ%%%%‘i B8+ —EAREIE - St

within twelve months from the date of purchase. Therefore, it is DEBREEE °
classified as current asset.
25. INVENTORIES 25. 78

2020 2019
—2oEH —FNF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FHT
Raw materials R 167,843 151,950
Work in progress ERG 28,336 32,160
Finished goods UK TR 23,396 66,661
219,575 250,771

26.

PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE

26. FESHEWR

The Group’s properties held for sale are all situated in the
PRC. All the properties held for sale are stated at the lower of
cost and net realisable value.

REBFHEHEMEDMNDE - FIAREH
EMFRAARA R A BIRFHEZ BIRETIE

RAMEEBERAR — T - TFFH
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE_ZT-TFE+-_A=+—HIFE

27. OTHER CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS

27. HtRBERMEE

The normal credit period given on sale of goods relating
to Handsets and IOT terminals business, Electronics
manufacturing services business and |OT system and 020
business and Intelligent manufacturing business is 0-90
days. A longer period is granted to a few customers with
whom the Group has a good business relationship and which
are in sound financial condition. There is no credit given to
sales of properties.

The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables, net
of allowance for credit losses, as well as notes receivables
presented based on the invoice dates at the end of
the reporting period, which approximated the revenue
recognition dates:

Trade receivables FEUNE 5 8RR
0-30 days TE30K
31-60 days 31 E60X
61-90 days 61ZE90K
91-180 days 91£180K
Over 180 days HBiB180K

Less: Allowance for credit losses B EEEBERE

Trade receivables FEWE ZERR

Notes receivables (Note) FEW IR (B752)
0-30 days TE30K
31-60 days 31E60K
61-90 days 61E90K
91-180 days 91£180K
Over 180 days HBA180K

Note: Notes receivables represent the promissory notes issued by banks
received from the customers.
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HERFH Y RLRETR - EFRERE
HERER  MBRARIEEER TS
EXBERcERZ —REEHRTE0X -
DEEAKE A RFEBREBM BB
LEFEERRZEEY - WERHEEMER
TEES-

AT RREEIR (RERWAZ BHRE) &
WE SRR (NBREEERER LRBKEE
RERAHEL ZRRE DT

2020 2019
—E-ZF —T—NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHx FHBT
50,795 184,216
28,060 41,753
7,444 15,293
6,427 14,893
30,744 48,061
123,470 304,216
(26,490) (28,387)
96,980 275,829
- 726

7,577 1,619
2,936 55
8,446 4,009
199 224
19,158 6,633
116,138 282,462

Biet - FEWSREBRR RS WER R RTTH 2 SRR -



27. OTHER CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS

(CONTINUED)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
4‘?\/1 ET/*“?x?LPi’

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE_Z-ZF+-_A=+—HILFE

27. HtREEMEE (@)

Before accepting any new customer, the Group assesses the
potential customer’s credit quality and defines credit limits
by customer. Limits attributed to customers are reviewed
twice a year. The Group has policy for provision of ECL,
which is based on an evaluation of the collectability and age
analysis of accounts on every individual trade debtor with
significant balances or credit impaired and the remaining
balances are grouped based on past due characteristics and
on management’s judgement including creditworthiness, the
past collection history and forward-looking information.

As at 31 December 2020, included in the Group’s trade
receivables balance are debtors with aggregate carrying
amount of HK$46,724,000 (2019: HK$51,406,000) which
are past due as at the reporting date. Out of the past due
balances, HK$4,456,000 (2019: HK$17,724,000) has
been past due 90 days or more and is not considered as in
default because there was no historical default of payments
by the respective customers. The Group does not hold any
collateral over these balances.

As at 31 December 2020, trade receivables of
HK$31,279,000 (2019: HK$67,755,000) are denominated
in United States Dollars (“USD”), which are not denominated
in the functional currency of the respective group entities.

Details of impairment assessment of trade receivables for
the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2020 are set out in
note 45.

BWNENTRERER ARESFEEERFPH
EEEZIREEFPHNEERTE - EFRES
FREHMAR - REBEAEER - RBREIEEW
B SERERE 2T e 2 E G KRR DT
(M EXEHRIOREEE R EREE AR #R 8 B

ot URERE 2 HE (BREEETR - B
Ef&maﬂﬁ&mﬁ% MER) - EHSEEBE
BEEL B -

R-_ZT-_TF+_A=+—H8 KEENE
WESERREHBEERBERHEOHM
A #818 5346,724,0008 T (ZE— L4 -
51,406,000/ 7T) &Y FE AR 3R o X480 HA 45 &3
H 0 4,456,000/ 7T (ZZF— L4 : 17,724,000
PB7T) B HI90 K 8 LA HB W AR BEL
TR EREPIERELANRFUEL - AEEW
ERZEEHFETMETER - AEBIL EH
ZEREBRFHEAEAR -

RZZEZTF+-_H=+—H - 31,279,000%
TT(ZZ—NEF : 67,755,000 7T) B FENE 5
BRFUAETT([ET ) FHE - WEARRERE
I EEEE -

BE_ T NFR_ZF_ZTF+_HA=t+—8H

tifﬁﬂ&ﬁ%ﬁﬁ K2 BB R4 BB Rt
45 -

RANMKEBRERAR — T TFFH
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE_T_TFE+_A=1T—HILFE

27. OTHER CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS 27.
(CONTINUED)

Ht RS SMEE (@)

Other receivables are unsecured, interest-free and will
be settled within twelve months after the end of reporting
period except for amounts of approximately HK$6,600,000
(2019: HK$7,412,000) due from former subsidiaries of
the Group, which are secured, interest bearing at 7% per
annum, guaranteed by the existing shareholder of the former
subsidiaries, and repayable on 31 December every year from
2019 to 2026. Deposits mainly represented trade deposits
paid to third parties.

The following is the breakdown of other receivables, deposits
and prepayments:

VAT recoverable AT e E R

Interest receivables FEUFIE,

Deposits paid to suppliers for REETEXNT
purchasing inventories HER 2 ke

Receivables from a customer for B —E R FPHREMERIE
purchasing materials on its behalf

Prepayments TEfFRIE

Rental and utility deposits MERKEES

Other receivables HoAth FEUER R

Less: Amount not receivable within B IEREVEETE TS

one year shown under AR R —E WU E
non-current assets ZFIA

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2020

HibEUKERAEIER  2ERBRHKER
K+ @ ARERE - HEEKANSEBE RN
B A T FIE 46,600,000 7T (& — AL ¢
7,412,000 70) AEER  REFRKTEET
B AIMBRARRERRIEERREN T
—NFEZE-REFEFT-A=T—RHEE
BRIN REFERINFE=F 2B HES °

AT REMEWERN  ReRBNREBEZD
i

2020 2019
—g-%F —T-NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FE T
61,465 56,235
6,847 5,584
62,084 84,956
80,377 60,298
8,571 7,645
2,569 3,281
24,919 19,891
246,832 237,890
(6,600) (7,412)
240,232 230,478




27. OTHER CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS

(CONTINUED)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BAMBRRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE_T-THFt-_A=t—HLFE

7. EtR B S BE E ()

The following is the breakdown of contract assets:

Sale of intelligent manufacturing SHE SR EEEM
products
Sales of electronics manufacturing SHE S FRERBHEER

services

Note: The amounts in the columns are after the adjustments from the
application of IFRS 15.

The contract assets primarily relate to the Group’s right to
consideration for work completed and not billed because
the rights are conditioned on (i) the completion of retention
period on the sale of intelligent manufacturing products;
and (ii) the delivery of finished goods on the electronics
manufacturing services. The contract assets are transferred
to trade receivables when the rights become unconditional.
The Group typically transfers contract assets to trade
receivables within 12 months.

A significant decrease to nil in the current year is the result
of discontinued operations of intelligent manufacturing
business.

Amounts due from non-controlling shareholders of
subsidiaries and an associate

Amounts are unsecured, interest-free and repayment on
demand.

Details of impairment assessment of other financial assets
for the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2020 are set
out in note 45.

UTRENEEZHMA :

31 December 31 December

2020 2019
—B-FF —FNF
t=A=t+t—-8 +t=A=+—H
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR THET

- 11,076

- 125

- 11,201

Biet - SRS Z S RMEF RERBERM KRS ERE
1558 2 % o

BHEETREAANEERD TR AREHRE
B TR EAER G R - BAZFHEFIE
RIN(HETRMEERTRRENES - &
(i) FEUERG R R MmN S B IR
BT - BEEFARSRNE - aNEEER
ERBE SRR - AEE—RR12EARKE
MEEBRERKEZERS -

RAFERENEET - DREREEERKE
BRI PR -

P F A R R — B A R IR R R R R

BRATAREER  REREEREE -

BE T NErR-_ZT-_TF+-_A=+—H
I FEEM SR E EMRET GBS ME
45 o
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For the year ended 31 December 2020

= — =

T TEF A=A

AL

28. PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS/SHORT- 28. BIEHRITE /%_L,Hfﬁ T
TERM BANK DEPOSITS AND BANK &ﬁ&ﬁmﬁ%wﬁﬁ
BALANCES AND CASH
The bank balances and cash of the Group are mainly REBZRITHEBEREETEUARE - BT
denominated in RMB, HK$ and USD. The bank balances RMETTEHE « |ITERIRDZBFI XL - F15
receive variable interest at an average rate of 1% (2019: FREBIE(CZE—NF : 1E) - RITEHK
1%) per annum. Included in the bank balances and cash, Be  BERTEFRARBEBRTFRAAER
short-term bank deposits and pledged bank deposits was E—EUAREE 2 5I8282,897,000/%8 T
an amount of HK$282,897,000 (2019: HK$350,708,000) (ZZ— N4 : 350,708,000/ 7T) ' ZEHIE
denominated in RMB, which is not freely convertible into TR ERERAHME o
other currencies.
The Group’s bank deposits of HK$5,857,000 (2019: AEBR_Z-_ZTF+_A=+—HZRTHE
HK$31,226,000) as at 31 December 2020 were pledged to 745,857,000/ 7T (ZZF—N4F : 31,226,000/
secure the short-term general banking facilities granted by T0)BEFIRIE - (EAESRITREEH —KIE
banks and discounted bills. The bank deposits will mature TR E RARR IR 2 IR o RITIF RGN ERE
on clearance of the discounted bills. SREEREE -
At 31 December 2020, short-term deposits receive fixed R-ZZE-_ZEF+-_A=+—H " RIHEAE
interest rates range from 0.22% to 5.10% (2019: 2.77% to =& B LA £ 2 B HATF SR BUR G 71| R 0.22[E 2
3.80%) per annum with original maturity over three months. 510 (ZZ—NF : 2.77EZE380@)it B2

EERE o

At 31 December 2020, bank balances and short-term bank RZZEZZEFF+ZA=+—8 ' UETFED
deposits of HK$671,939,000 (2019: HK$588,363,000) are IRITHES MR BRI TIE 30 A671,939, OOO/%E
denominated in USD, which are not denominated in the (ZZ— N4 : 588,363,000/87T) * AEZ
functional currency of the respective group entities. WIEA B EE TR INEE’EEE -

29. FINANCIAL LIABILITIES 29. emEE
Trade and notes payables, other payables, deposits received ENESRERRER - HMEMER - Bz

and accruals principally comprise amounts outstanding for
trade purposes and ongoing costs.

Trade and notes payables

Trade and notes payables (other than for the construction
of properties held for sale) principally comprise amounts
outstanding for trade purchases. The normal credit period
taken for trade purchases is 30-90 days.

Payables and accrued expenditure on construction of
properties held for sale comprise construction costs and
other project-related expenses which are payable based on
project progress measured by the Group.

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2020
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29. FINANCIAL LIABILITIES (coNTINUED)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR RENE
For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE_Z_TF+_A=+—HILFE

29 ﬁ mﬂﬁ{f (/I‘E

An aged analysis of the Group’s trade and notes payables
at the end of the reporting period is presented based on the
invoice dates for trade payables or date of issuance for notes

payables is as follows:

0-30 days TE30K
31-60 days 31 60K
61-90 days 61E90K
Over 90 days HBAEI0KR
Notes payables BN EE
0-30 days EE K IFN

AT RRBERRNEE 2 BN ESRHIK
BRENESRRIER EIHJ%‘}ZFEHKFZ?‘
H B EMEL 2 BRER DT

As at 31 December 2020, included in the trade and notes
payables, HK$4,610,000 (2019: HK$5,980,000) are
denominated in USD, which are not denominated in the
functional currency of the respective group entities.

Other payables, deposits received and accruals

2020 2019
—E-BE —ZT-NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
129,913 149,035
1,884 19,724
5,899 2,636
47,167 47,858
184,863 219,253
14,641 5,069
199,504 224,322

R-Z-TE+-A=+—8  EAESER
&m?ﬁ-m E*EJ//(%FE;‘HEZ IE4 610 OOO/%
7L (ZZ—N% : 5,980,000 7T) * BRFIEA
WIEARASEE B RNINESREE -

Hitb AR - ERRSRER R

The following is the breakdown of other payables, deposits

received and accruals:

Deferred income (note) RIEWA (B 52)

Payables on acquisition of property, WHEMIZ - RE K
plant and equipment A 2 PR BR IR

Accruals FEETRIE

VAT payables FEFIGETR

Other payables HAbFETERIR

Deposits from tenants MRS

T ARMENER  BWiRe RETRIEY
DHT
2020 2019
—ECEF —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
44,659 41,495
8,396 2,682
18,807 21,243
849 3,083
1,886 10,464
17,145 10,958
91,742 89,925

RANKEBERAR

ZECTEFR
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FHZA=A

HIEFE

29. FINANCIAL LIABILITIES (coNTINUED)

29. TRAE (@)

Note:

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had deferred income
on government grants amounting to HK$44,659,000 (2019:
HK$41,495,000). Government grants are given to support the
research and development of advanced electronic devices
and technology and used for acquisition of property, plant and
equipment. These grants are released to income to cover actual
expenditure used in research and development activities or
transferred to profit or loss over useful lives of the related assets.
Included in deferred income on government grants amounting
to HK$38,315,000 (2019: HK$35,652,000) represented the
income that is not expected to be realised to profit or loss within
12 months of the reporting date based on the depreciation rates
of the related assets and therefore has been presented to non-
current liabilities.

30. CONTRACT LIABILITIES

B R-FB_FBFE+-_A=+—R  AEBERH
HE WA Z BT A 44,659,000/ T (ZF—
4 : 41,495,000 7T) ° BUFIEB KRATIAR
XREEEFRERBRMZTE  ARKEY
¥ BERRE - ZSHPSEREWATMHH
R BRI RN AR EE 2 R R
EEH c BHBRARAZELERATRIE—2
38,315,000 7T (ZZ— L4 : 35,652,000%7T)
2R BBEHEEECTER - HHAMINA
TERRERPHRI2EAARBERTEER - A
2 ARFRBAME -

30. WAE

31 December 31 December

Sale of handsets and IOT Terminals

HETFTREYBER S

Electronics manufacturing services & F &L RFES (L FER

Sale of goods to vending machine MEERTFHESR
customers

Sale of intelligent manufacturing HESRERIEE M
products

Sale of properties HEMZE

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2020

2020 2019

S L
+=A=t-8 +-A=t+-A
HK$'000 HK$'000
FH FET
124,484 161,992
2,990 11,063
1,847 5,859

- 22,734

294 607
129,615 202,255




30. CONTRACT LIABILITIES (conTINUED)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A R R

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE_Z_TF+_A=+—HILFE

= n’J E1f (nlﬁ

Contract liabilities, that are expected to be settled within the
Group’s normal operating cycle, are classified as current
based on the Group’s earliest obligation to transfer goods or
services to the customers.

For the contract liabilities as at 31 December 2019 and
2020, the entire balances are recognised as revenue to
profit or loss during the year ended 31 December 2020
and expected to be recognised during the year ending 31
December 2021, respectively.

Typical payment terms which impact on the amount of
contract liabilities recognised are as follows:

Sale of handsets and IOT Terminals/Electronics
manufacturing services/Sale of goods to vending machine
customers

When the Group receives a deposit before the sale of
goods, this will give rise to contract liabilities at the start of
a contract, until the revenue recognised on the relevant
contract exceeds the amount of the deposit. The Group
typically receives a 30%-50% deposit before the sale of
goods.

Sales of properties

The Group receives a percentage of contract value as
deposits from customers when they sign the sale and
purchase agreement. The percentage are specific to
each contracts based on the location and selling price of
the properties. The deposits result in contract liabilities
being recognised until the customer obtains control of the
completed property.

EMERNAKEEREERENEENANA
BENREAEERATFEERERIRBORTE
BESBRAHAERE -

PR_F-NFR_F_TF+_H=1— E
%é@ﬁﬁﬁa' um%ﬁnﬁmﬁi

:2$+:HE+—E¢¢EW%§¢ﬁ%E
WARBHEREE T —F+-_A=+—H
I FERER -

HERRENBENSBRELZEN RN
R -

HEFRRYBALE ETRERYE &
BEREFHEER

AR EREEERINREIZS © HWERERE
HWFRIRERBRELEANAR  EERBaHNM
BERZWABBIZESRIEAL - AEEAER
HEEMATWEZ0% E50% R E

HEME

AEBER TP R EEBHERARSKRRAL
BEMNX-BDLIEREZE - BHEKIR
EYENONEREEREREEME DL
BRELANAERNEPRBHERIMENE
42 B T LARERR. ©

EBRMRKERARAT T THEFH 189
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TE+=—f=+1

AL

31. BANK BORROWINGS

31. RITEE

Secured: B
Bank loans (note i) B Wat)
Discounted bills (note ii) Eﬁfﬁﬁ% (B a2ii)

Notes:

(ii)

At the end of the reporting period, there is no bank loan in 2020.
As at 31 December 2019, the loans included an amount of
HK$4,941,000 denominated in RMB, which was the functional
currency of the respective group entities. The loans carry fixed
interest rate in 2019. Pursuant to the bank facility, the bank
borrowings were secured by investment properties, property, plant
and equipment and right-of-use assets and as disclosed in notes
16, 17 and 18 respectively.

As at 31 December 2020, discounted bills included an amount
of HK$36,000,000 (2019: HK$72,995,000) denominated in
RMB, which was the functional currency of respective entities of
the Group, and were secured by notes receivables. The average
effective interest rates of the discounted bills at 3.11% per annum
(2019: 2.88% per annum). Bills were issued through intra-group
transactions and the relevant group entities discounted the bills to
independent third parties. The bills receivable and payable issued
between group entities were fully eliminated on consolidation.

The Group’s borrowings were secured by investment properties,
property, plant and equipment, right of use asset and pledged
bank deposits of as disclosed in notes 16, 17, 18 and 28
respectively.

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2020

pat -

(i)

(ii)

2020 2019

2=%F —T AF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHT FET

- 4,941

36,000 72,995

36,000 77,936
RBERAR R-B_TFUH/BITER - R
Z-NF+-A=+—H BFHERSFEAEH
% f§ %Z bﬁﬁié%)\ﬁ”f%uﬂﬁzg 54,941,000

T-NFREFENEGTE °
@Fiﬁfﬁﬂﬁ | ﬁEﬁ%EEL‘A&ﬁ%% /ES
TS B 5% 8 DA I {55 FR 6 R 1 R 338 (93 B Bt
16+ 17X 18F#HT) -

R-ZZE-_ZF+_A=+—8 BREREHE
NS EER e EB AR EZSHE
36,000,000/ T (ZF— AL F : 72,995,000/
7T) c WARKRBERER - BARER ¥
BERFEFERAIILE(ZE—NEF - £7/%2.88
E) - ZERBRBAEEANRHET - MiAR
SEERKERFRATEVE =D - SEEER
P17 2 R K B 14 IR AR & ARR B 2 BUK

AEENERTDAEENE - W% BERRK
- EAREENKEERRTERERER
(D BIRAMFELS « 17 ~ 18 R28H #5F) -
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For the year ended 31 December 2020

HE_Z-_ZTF+-_A=+—HIFE
32. LEASE LIABILITIES 32. fHEAE
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
—TEF —E-hE
+=ZB=+—-H +=ZA=+-H
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FER FER
Lease liabilities payable: EREEEE:
Within one year —FR 8,764 6,319
Within a period of more than one year —FEEMEREE
but not more than two years 7,237 2,152
Within a period of more than two years MERZERFAHE
but not more than five years 17,838 713
33,839 9,184
Less: Amount due for settlement with 12 38 : BB EF RN 1218 ARIHEE
months shown under current liabilities 2B (8,764) (6,319)
Amount due for settlement after 12 months  JERENEEFTRR 1218 A BIEEE
shown under non-current liabilities 2B 25,075 2,865
The weighted average incremental borrowing rates applied ERRHEAENNMEFHESEERNX
to lease liabilities range from 3.41% to 5.66% (2019: from B341EBE566E(ZT—NF 350
3.50% t0 5.66%). 5.66E) °
Lease obligations that are denominated in currencies other IATNEFARAEE BN EEUIINE
than the functional currencies of the relevant group entities MAENHEEETE
are set out below:
HK$’000
FH&xT
As at 31 December 2020 RN-_Z-TF+-_A=+—H 212
As at 31 December 2019 RZZE—NF+=-A=+—H 79

BRMKEEERAR T TFEFY 191
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A MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HItFE

BE-T-TF+- A=A

33. SHARE CAPITAL 33. BA&
Number Share
of shares capital
RPEE [N
‘000 HK$'000
TFh& FHET
Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each HRRE(EO.1 BiL TR
Authorised: VETE
At 1 January 2019, RZZT—NFE—HA—H
31 December 2019 and —E-NF+ZA=+—HRK
31 December 2020 —E-FTFE+ - F=+—H 3,000,000 300,000
Issued: BETT
At 1 January 2019 R—ZE—hF—A—H 2,520,254 252,025
Shares repurchased piAEyS &S Eoliien)
and cancelled (89,530) (8,953)
At 31 December 2019 R-F-NF+=-A=+—H 2,430,724 243,072
Exercise of share options k- e 4 =
Shares repurchased FERE B K s SH RO AR (9
and cancelled (68,182) (6,818)
At 31 December 2020 R-ZZE-ZEF+-_HA=+—H 2,362,546 236,254

* The amount is less than HK$1,000.

* ZEEBWTR10008 T -
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BE-_T-_TF+-A=1+—HLHFE
34. RESERVES 34. #E
HK$'000
FET
Properties revaluation reserve YFEELGEE
At 1 January 2019 T—N&—H—H 139,557
Gain on revaluation of properties and B &3 K& 0 (5 A RE 2 Urzs
land use rights 63,364
At 31 December 2019 —NF+=—A=+—H 202,921
Gain on revaluation of properties and ~ EBfhE#¥E M(FREEE 2 W
right-of-use assets 31,475
At 31 December 2020 R_EBE-_ZTF+_-_A=+—H 234,396
HK$'000
FHET
Assets revaluation reserve EEEMLHE
At 1 January 2019 —NF—H—H 17,184
Fair value change on investments in FWERNELAFEF AR E2EREARATAZ
equity instruments at FVTOCI NEEE 11,707
Gain on partial disposal of equity AHERATFEFALMEARE
instrument at FVTOCI ZHQZKIEZ%Z@ (26,710)
At 31 December 2019 —NFE+=—A=+—H 2,181
Fair value change on investments FENE A EF AR MEERE
in equity instruments at FVTOCI HIRA TRz AT EEE (236)
At 31 December 2020 R—_BE-_FF+-_A=+—H 1,945

RAMEEBERAR — T - TFFH
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For the year ended 31 December 2020

TE+-AS+—HILFR

34. RESERVES (CONTINUED) 34. f#fE (&)
HK$'000
FAET
Translation reserve RERE
At 1 January 2019 R—ZE—NF—HF—H 132,799
Exchange differences arising on BMEEZ2Y|EEEENERER
translation to presentation
currency (12,796)
At 31 December 2019 R=_ZE—NAF+=-—A=+—H 120,003
Exchange differences arising on BREE2Y|EEEEEER
translation to presentation
currency 66,275
Disposal of subsidiaries HERBAR] 1,905
At 31 December 2020 RZZE-ZEF+=-RA=+—H 188,183
35. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENT 5. R&EHEEZHE
The Group as lessor AEEERHEA

194

All of the properties held have committed tenants for

approximately 4 months to 9 years.

Minimum lease properties receivables on leases are as

follows:

Within one year
In the second to fifth year inclusive
After five years

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2020

—&FR
E_=FNhF (ERMFBEEAN)
hFI&

FE#HE 2 MEHBERTABLOAMEA=9F

FRBEERENSEHEERNFIARAT

2020
—ECRE
HK$'000
FHET

52,510
80,211
18,976

151,697

o



35. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENT 35.

(CONTINUED)

o
R

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e SRR M 5

For the year ended 31 December 2020
ZA=t+—HIFE

S m - T E

HE—Z

ME =5 (&)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had contracted

REI|ERR - AEBEBRRTOZ RARKER

with tenants for the following future minimum lease SR ¢
payments:
2019
—ZT-NF
HK$'000
FAET
Within one year —FR 39,373
In the second to fifth year inclusive F_EZFRF (HEMFREEAN) 58,893
After five years AF% 20,345
118,611
36. COMMITMENTS 36. &iE
2020 2019
—ECEF —E-NEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAxT
Expenditure in respect of investment B ] 4MERINGR A B RE T
in an associate contracted for but Bz BN —fEEE AT
not provided in the consolidated ZIRERZ (M15E23)
financial statements (note 23) 4,800 4,492

RAMEEBERAR — T - TFFH
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE_Z_TF+_A=t+—HILFE

37. RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

37. RIRERIEE

The Group operates a MPF Scheme under rules and
regulations of Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for all its employees in Hong Kong. All the
employees of the Group in Hong Kong are required to
join the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made based on
a percentage of the employees’ salaries and are charged
to consolidated statement of profit or loss as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme.
The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from
those of the Group in an independently administered fund.
The Group’s employer contributions vest fully with the
employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme. No
forfeited contribution is available to reduce the contribution
payable in the future years as at 31 December 2020 and

2019.

The Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC, in compliance with
the applicable regulations of the PRC, participate in a state-
managed retirement benefits scheme operated by the local
government. The subsidiaries are required to contribute a
specific percentage of their payroll costs to the retirement
benefits scheme. The only obligation of the Group with
respect to the retirement benefits scheme is to make the

specified contributions.

During the year, the total amounts of HK$22,545,000 (2019:
HK$51,590,000) contributed by the Group to the schemes
and cost charged to the consolidated statement of profit or
loss represents contribution payable to the schemes by the

Group at rates specified in the rules of the schemes.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, Covid-19 related
government grants/assistance amounted to HK$27,662,000
have been offset against retirement benefits scheme

contribution.

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2020

AEERBEARFIMEATESTEKOAEMES
BRER Y —EAESE - TERBBHAN
SEESHAMARESTE - HFIREEE
REFSHE—ADLIEL - WIRESESHE
2B IE T I RELRE BRI - BT
SHEIZEEEASENEMEESFRE
H—BYER s ESRFE - ErRAESTEIHE
HE o AEERFEHFEEEEENEEA
B RN BE_EER-_T-NAEFE+_A=1+—
B - WERWZ #R AT BETR A S BR KR
FE 7R

AEERPEZHBRARERTEZERR
A 28 —IREZE I A E BT E R K
B E - MEARARTEKNANEERD
He bt R R AR M ET SR - REBFRIKTE
a2 E—BEREREEHRR -

FN - RNEBE PGS AEEE22,545,000% T
(ZZ— N4 : 51,590,00087T) * MREFAE
WmERMBRZEA - RERAEBIRERT S8 R)%
L R AT S 2 EFREUEE -

BE_Z_TF+_HA=+t—HLFE"
Covid-194BRIERFIE B W A/ #8h27,662,000
BT E AR IRENFT BRI o



38. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e SRR M 5

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE_T_TFE+_A=1T—HILFE

8. IE T &

The Company had two share option schemes, including post-
initial public offering share options scheme (the “Post-IPO
Options”) and new share options scheme (the “New Share
Options”). Post-IPO Options and New Share Options were
adopted on 30 May 2005 and 1 June 2016, respectively.
The major terms and conditions of the two schemes are set

out below:

(A) Post-IPO Options

(i)

(if)

(iii)

(iv)

The purpose was to provide incentives to the
participants.

The participants included any employee or
executive Director and such other persons as
the board of directors may consider appropriate.

On 12 December 2008, a resolution to renew
the 10% general limit of the Post-IPO Options
was duly passed by the shareholders of the
Company. The maximum number of shares in
respect of which options might be granted under
the Post-IPO Options must not exceed 10% of
the shares in issue as at 12 December 2008 (i.e.
151,749,000 shares) and in any event the total
maximum number of shares which might be
issued or issuable upon exercise of all outstanding
options should not exceed 30% of the issued
share capital of the Company from time to time.

The acceptance of an option, if accepted, must
be made within 5 business days from the date
of grant. No consideration is required to be paid
by the grantee for the grant of options.

The exercise price of an option must be the
highest of:

° the closing price of the share on the grant
date;

° the average closing price of the share for
the 5 trading days immediately preceding
the grant; and

o the nominal value of the share.

ARBEMBRBERETS - BREERARAEE
BRI (AR AR ERBRETS])
KRR B ([ B AERT3)) - BRARH
BERBRESE BRSO IR _F
ZRFRARA=TERZZE—RERNA—BHER
o MIERTEIZ T2 HFHENT

(A) BRAMBERBRETS
(i) BWERZEERHEHE -

(iy 2HEEBFEEAREREINITES "
AREERGARERREBIEMA
dc

iy RZZTZENF+=ZA+=H - &*2
AIRRIEN BB —TERRRE TS
RARBERERETE210%—
AR EMR - BIEE R A AHEESRER
TR T 15 A B ARAE AT Y
ERRHEE  TEBARZZZ
NE+-—B+—_RADBTRHZ
10% (B1151,749,0008% &%) - M
E1TEFTA MR T 2 B i A]
REEBTKABITZRERMNE
o ERMATEREAA BT
RHRE B TARA 230% ©

(iv)  FERRAE Z B (BB ) W ERE
L HBREAEEEBANED -
AR ADERER 2 BIRES AR
{g °

v) BREZTEENERUTZES
=
. R B EARR D 2 W T (B

e ERREBHFAERKZH
Befn 2 FHWHE : K

s RipZEE-

RANMKEBRERAR — T TFFH
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38. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (coNTINUED)

38. BRAESTE (|

198

(A)

Post-IPO Options (CONTINUED)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

The life of the Post-IPO Options was effective
until 29 May 2015. No further option can be
granted thereafter but provisions of the Post-IPO
Options shall remain in full force and effect in
all other respects.

On 19 July 2013, the Company has granted an
aggregate of 63,000,000 share options under
the Post-IPO Options to eligible participants
thereof, including certain employees and
business partners of the Group (“Grantees”).
The Options entitle the Grantees to subscribe
for an aggregate of 63,000,000 new ordinary
shares of HK$0.10 each in the share capital of
the Company upon exercise in full.

Unless approved by shareholders in general
meeting in the manner prescribed in the Listing
Rules, the Board shall not grant options to any
grantee if the acceptance of those options would
result in the total number of shares issued and
to be issued to that grantee on exercise of his
options during any 12 month period exceeding
1 per cent of the total shares then in issue.

Where any further grant of options to a grantee,
if exercised in full, would result in the total
number of shares already issued or to be issued
upon exercise of all options granted and to be
granted to such grantee (including exercised,
cancelled and outstanding options) in any
12-month period up to and including the date
of such further grant exceeding one per cent
of the total number of shares in issue, such
further grant must be separately approved by
the shareholders in general meeting with such
participant and his associates abstaining from
voting.
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(A)

BRORBERBRESS (@)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

BRARBEERBRETSIZFH
BEE-E-RFRA-TARRI
—EHAEXN - RETAEROBK
- BEERAREERERES
ZIEXERB R EINA TR
AR o

RZF—=FtHTIhB Q7
REEBRXAFEZEERBRETS
At Bz 5 ER2EE (BRARK
BETREREZBH(TFEERAD
®H & 2£63,000,00017 & A # -
PR TP R B AT R B A R T
RAENRBARBRRAS G H
63,000,000 FAXE(EO. 107 7T 2
e AR

fisl AR A PMEI 1218 A B3R R 2
M EBBREMERRNITEZRS
BN 2 BTG TEITR
MEBBBERDHITRNDER
1% @ BRIFEBRRNIRAE LA
LR RN 2 77 A - BRI
Exg T Al AEMARARDER
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HMRERNRERBERIMNHE
Pt B L1218 A AR AR AR
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BE_Z_TF+_A=+—HILFE

. BB E ()

(B) New Share Options

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

The purpose was to provide incentives to the
participants.

The participants included any employee or
executive Director and such other persons as
the board of directors may consider appropriate.

The maximum number of shares which may
be issued upon exercise of all options to be
granted under the New Share Options and any
other scheme of the Group must not exceed
255,789,630 shares, being 10% of shares in
issue on the day which the New Share Options
was approved by the shareholders, unless
approval of the shareholders has been obtained,
and which must not in aggregate exceed 30%
of the ordinary shares in issue from time to time.
As at the date of this report, the total number
of ordinary Shares available for issue under the
New Share Options is 255,789,630 shares,
which represents 10.23% of the issued shares as
at the date of this report.

The acceptance of an option, if accepted, must
be made within 5 business days from the date
of grant. HK$1 is required to be paid by the
grantee an acceptance of options.

The exercise price of an option must be no less
than the highest of:

° the closing price of the share on the grant
date;

° the average closing price of the share for
the 5 trading days immediately preceding
the grant; and

° the nominal value of the share.

The life of the New Share Options was effective
until 1 June 2026, after which time no further
option will be granted but provisions of the New
Share Options shall remain in full force and
effect in all other respects.

(B) #rREIR#ESHE

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

BRER2EERIAE -

2EEQRIMREINTES
AREEEAERR/EBIEMA
+ o

RIEFT AT 8 R AN B A
fOETEING TR 2 BT A AR T
Eim e FEIT2HERNEE TE
B3B255,789,630/% i1 » BI#TEE
R AT SIS R A BT
7210% * BRIECEVSARERBLAE -
MEZERT « BEITEEBBET
E%E%éfﬁﬁﬁfﬁZ%% RARE
BE - AREFT R B AT 31T
2 AR #A 5 255,789,630/% A%
5 HERAFREHEAEBITER
i%210.23% °

B 2 2 (B 1) W BIR
h B HIRES A X B AR - &%
RAREXBEEASNREDE
JG °©

BRIEZTEBELATIRUATZ

R
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38. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (coNTINUED)

. BB E ()

(B)

New Share Options (coNTINUED)

(vii)

(viii)

Unless approved by shareholders in general
meeting in the manner prescribed in the Listing
Rules, the Board shall not grant options to any
grantee if the acceptance of those options would
result in the total number of shares issued and
to be issued to that grantee on exercise of his
options during any 12 month period exceeding
1 per cent of the total shares then in issue.

Where any further grant of options to a grantee,
if exercised in full, would result in the total
number of shares already issued or to be issued
upon exercise of all options granted and to be
granted to such grantee (including exercised,
cancelled and outstanding options) in any
12-month period up to and including the date
of such further grant exceeding one per cent
of the total number of shares in issue, such
further grant must be separately approved by
the shareholders in general meeting with such
participant and his associates abstaining from
voting.

No share options were granted, exercised
lapsed or cancelled under the New Share
Options during the years ended 31 December
2020 and 2019.
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(vii)

(viii)
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38. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (coNTINUED) 38. B fEsH &l (@)

The following table disclose details of the Post-IPO Options TREEAZEABEERARBESHERET
held by the grantee and movements in such holdings: A BRI B ERR BE) -
Qutstanding Qutstanding Qutstanding
it it at
Exercise 1 January 31 December 31 December
price 2019 Forfeited Lapsed 2019 Exercised Lapsed 2020
Name pershae R-E-RE during dwig  R=F-NE during duing  R-E-EE
Category of participants o scheme Dateofgrant  Exercisable perod BR -A-A the year theyear  TZR=t-A the year theyear  tZR=t-A
SE%EH BE i1 betufikd k4 RE  HAGE  EARM ERRN HATE EAGE ERRR AR
(Note) HKS
53} B
Directors
£
Tang Rongrong Post{P0 Options 392000 154201029019 068 3510000 (3510,000) = = = = =
ERR BRRRER I CE-TERATEA
EhErd NA=A z
2R
LiuJun Past-IPO Options 392009 154.2010-292019 068 936,000 (936,000 - - - - -
LE BROARER EENE CE-FERATER
EhErd NA=A z
ZZ-1$nAZH

Ado 000 (4446000) - - - - -

Employees of the Group Post1P0 Options 392000 1542010292019 068 2480900  (24429330) (451,620) - - - -
r58ES ARARRER BENE  CE-REDATEA
B NA=H )
T-NENAZA
Post{P0 Options 197013 1542005187203 0346 12,600,000 = - 12600000 (4000)  (2700000) 989,000
BRORRER 3-2F 3-REmATRA
EhErd tATIA E
ZEELATA
i
Other participant Post1P0 Options 392000 1542010-29019 068 3510000 (3510000) = = = = =
Eppet BRRRER 3ENE Z5-SERATEA
EhErd AR=R )
“E-NERAZA
Consutants Post1P0 Options 1972013 154015187203 0346 45,400,000 - - 45400000 - - 45400000
B ERLFRER “3-cE CE-TEMAtEA
B tAtIA 3
ZEELRTA
i
Total 9083690  (32.3853%0) (451,620 58,000,000 (40000 (27000000 55296000
i
Exercisatle at the end of the year 58000000 55,296,000
RERTFE
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38.

BRI

ear ended 31 December 2020
3 BIEFE

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (conTINUED)

38.

B E (|

39.

Note: In relation to each grantee of the options granted on 28 March
2008 under Post-IPO Options, 25% of options will vest in each of

the four year from 15 April 2009.

In relation to each grantee of the options granted on 3 September
2009 under Post-IPO Options, 25% of options will vest in each of
the four year from 15 April 2010.

In relation to each grantee of the options granted on 19 July 2013
under Post-IPO Options, 25% of options will vest in each of the
four year from 15 April 2014.

Fair value of share options granted to employees determined
at the date of grant is expensed over the vesting period, with
a corresponding adjustment to the Group’s share option
reserve. For the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019,
no share option expense with a corresponding adjustment
recognised in the Group’s share option reserve has been
recognised.

SHARE AWARD SCHEME

39.

B - BRBERORABERBEEABN_ZTNF
ZASTN\REREREZSZEARAME -
H-ZTAFNA +RBEBNNEFESFEE

25% 2 FEIRERR /R o

RIREER AR ERBREABN _ZTNEF
NAZRERBREZBEARAMNE =%
—ZFENA+ARENNEFESFEE25%Z
ERERE -

RIRBEER AR ERBREABN T —=F
TATNAEEEREZSZARAME A=
FT-MEMA+RARRNNEAFESFEE25%
ZERBERE -

RIE ABFAEEAES R 2 BREZ AT
ERFEHHE TN AEEZ BRERE
EEERAE BE_T_TFER_T—IF
T-A=T—HBLFE  VERRERAKE
BRIE R RERIRE R 2 BB -

WA SR BT &

On 30 September 2020 (“Date of Adoption”), the Board
adopted the Share Award Scheme for the purposes of
recognising the contributions by certain employees, directors,
and consultants of the Company (“Eligible Persons”) and
giving incentives thereto in order to retain them for the
continuing operation and development of the Group and
attracting suitable personnel for further development of the
Group.

The total number of the shares to be awarded pursuant
to the Share Award Scheme shall not exceed 10% of the
total issued share capital of the Company as at the Date of
Adoption (i.e. 236,509,030 Shares). In any 12-month period,
the maximum number of shares which may be awarded to a
selected person shall not exceed 1% of the total number of
the Shares as at the Date of Adoption.

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2020

R-Z_ZFAA=TR(RHKEH)) - E=
SRR REFE - UBEARAETIE
85 BERBR(EEBALMWERLS T
RE) NBERSERAEENKECERE
B - ARSI 8 BAT AE—FHRERAEE -

RIFR O RENF S - REIOROD BB SE
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236,509,030/ 8% 17) © IAMESRI121E A B3R - 7T
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
BHE_Z_ZTF+_A=+—HILFE

39. SHARE AWARD SCHEME (coNTINUED) 39. Rfp R EEH &l (&)
Subject to any early termination as may be determined by BRIEEFSRIBER D REET SN AR T IRA
the Board pursuant to the rules of the Share Award Scheme, #RUE - BRIRRD SRENET S B F 4N B BB AT+
the Share Award Scheme shall be valid and effective for FABBIAER - BimET S — PR RE
a term of 10 years commencing on the Date of Adoption, (EER T - WA 2R S EMAI B 1%
after which period no further awards will be granted but the HEERE N EGEN S ERUERNER
provisions of the Share Award Scheme shall remain in full NP SR B 2 R e ESRE EAb1E
force and effect to the extent necessary to give effect to the T R R ESIMERIAEEZER N RE
vesting of any awards granted prior to the expiration of the B o
Share Award Scheme, or otherwise to the extent as may
be required in accordance with the provisions of the Share
Award Scheme.
During the year ended 31 December 2020, no share of the  E—E_TFF_A=+—HIFE AR
Company was awarded under this share award scheme. AL EAR PR AR (0 SR ED AT B 1E D (AT AR 1 22D -
As at 31 December 2020, there are 8,008,000 shares held N_Z_TET_A=+—H  #&XTEREE
for such scheme with carrying amount of HK$3,187,000 8,008,000% %15 + MR B S5t ERAT
accumulated in employee share trust reserve. 2 BRE{EA3,187,000/ 7T °
Details of the Share Award Scheme were set out in the (%17 BB 8l 2 BN ARR AR AT =
announcement of the Company dated 30 September 2020. TFENA=FTHZAE -

40. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 40. BEALRS

Compensation of key management personnel

The remuneration of key management representing the
Directors’ remuneration as disclosed in note 10 during the
year was as follows:

Short-term benefits SECEER]
Post-employment benefits BB

The remuneration of Directors and key executives is
determined by the remuneration committee having regard
to the Group’s operating results, responsibilities and
performance of individuals and market trends.

FTEEE AB 2R
RAEE - NI HERREEMEHE
ZEBASMEOT -
2020 2019
—ECEF —E—NEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FHET
2,261 2,339
78 135
2,339 2,474

EZRIBTBRABZHEHFMEZE K
BAKERERSE  AAFREZEERER
BEMGBERETE -
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BE_T_TFE+_A=1T—HILFE

41. ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY

41. WEE—FEHE QA

On 3 April 2019, the Group acquired 100% interest in FE+h
T2 (ORI AR 27 (unofficial English name being Kongtop
Industrial (Shenzhen) Company Limited) (“Kongtop”), for
the consideration of HK$23,400,000. Kongtop is principally
engaged in the handsets business and was acquired with
the objective of improving the Group’s handsets and 10T
terminal business.

Consideration transferred

Cash BHe

Assets acquired and liabilities recognised at the date of
acquisition are as follows:

R-B-NFEWNA=H  AEBWEFELEE
CRYDBRAR ([FEHR]) 100%#z - RER
23,400,000 7T ° FEHREBUEFHER - &
HINE B TR E AN E B F R i in 2
jﬂ% °

SEERE

HK$'000
THET

23,400

RUE A HRANCRBEEREGENT ¢

HK$'000
FAET
Current assets RBEE
Cash and cash equivalents ReRRSEEEE 4,988
Trade and other receivables JEUNE 5 K E M 5RIE 17,340
Inventories FE 10,854
Non-current assets RBEE
Property, plant and equipment W - BB REE 9,948
Current liabilities REAE
Trade and other payables JEE 5 R EMFIE (16,385)
Borrowings BE (5,861)
Tax payable FERETE (84)
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Borrowings BE (1,231)
19,569
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE-T-_TF+-_A=1t—HLHFE
41. ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY 41. Wi — BB A R (&)
(CONTINUED)
Goodwill arising on acquisition HEWEEENEE
HK$'000
FHET
Consideration transferred BEEAE 23,400
Less: recognised amount of identifiable o TR BRI EEFEC EEREE
net assets acquired (19,569)
Goodwill arising on acquisition AUEEE 28 3,831

The goodwill arising on acquisition is attributable to the
anticipated profitability of the handsets and 10T terminal
business of the Group.

REBELZAERERAREFHEYBE
RIS TERANREN -

Net cash outflows arising on acquisition ERBEEZRSREFH
HK$'000
FET
Consideration paid in cash BB RE 23,400
Less: cash and cash equivalent balances acquired & : FTUsEEIR & RIR S S ETEE &tk (4,988)

Net cash outflow on acquisition of a subsidiary

Included in the loss for the year there is loss HK$8,458,000
attributable to the additional business generated by Kongtop.
Revenue for the year includes HK$57,657,000 generated
from Kongtop.

Had the acquisition been completed on 1 January 2019,
revenue for the year of the Group would have been
HK$1,299,081,000, and loss for the year of the Group would
have been HK$74,860,000. The pro forma information
is for illustrative purposes only and is not necessarily an
indication of revenue and results of operations of the Group
that actually would have been achieved had the acquisition
been completed on 3 April 2019, nor is it intended to be a
projection of future results.

W —RM B ARELEZR e RILFRE 18,412

AFEEEEBIERERABEIINEBEELNER
8,458,000 7T - NEFEWABIEERAESE
#957,657,000/ 7T ©

HKEEER T NF—H-BATK ' A%
@$¢EH§Z)\J¥§Z%1,Z99,081,000%E ERTIPZN
SEARFEERRA74,860,000/8 T - HEE
FHEHRFAMS - WIEHBBEEAR=_F—A
FHA=ZAZK  AKEERMBBAREE
REHMRIER - I BHERRIEKAETEAR -
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HIEFE

42. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

42. HE—FEHNE QT

As referred to note 12, on 24 December 2020 the Group
discontinued its intelligent manufacturing business at
the time of disposal of its subsidiary, Shanghai Jizhi, The
Group entered into sale and purchase agreements with two
independent third parties, namely F/8ERLEEEAE
¥ (BRA %) (unofficial English name being Shanghai
Bai Ni Enterprise Management Partnership (Limited
Partnership)) and E/SBSEHOEER AR OE (BRA
%) (unofficial English name being Shanghai Lianxincheng
Enterprise Management Partnership (Limited Partnership)),
at a total consideration of RMB26,668,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$31,889,000) to dispose 51% equity
interest of Shanghai Jizhi. The disposal was completed in
the year ended 31 December 2020 in which the Group lost
controls in Shanghai Jizhi.

WA EL2FTHE - KB =FF+=-F=+mMm
B AEERHEENBAR DERERLL
REHBRRERTY - AEEEMBAELE =
TEIEEEREEEEABREE (BERER)
REBEBFHECEERSEEX(ARER))
I EE W - BB/ ARY26,668,0007T
(MR 431,889,000 7T) + bAHIE LGS
1%t - HEEHENBE_T_TF+—
A=+—BIFEREK B AREAEY
TP AR HIAE o

HK$’000
FET
Aggregate consideration received: 2B RE :
Cash received B3R & 6,043
Consideration receivable (note) FEMARA(E (BI5E) 25,846
Total consideration received BB 31,889
Analysis of aggregate assets and liabilities over which ~ ¥k RIZ4IENABETER
control was lost: BENDW -
HK$’000
FHET
Property, plant and equipment M - BB R 199
Right-of-use assets EREEE 1,179
Intangible assets BmEAE 125
Interest in associate REE N AR 3,944
Inventories w8 65,154
Trade and other receivables BWE 5 K EAMFIE 75,224
Bank balances and cash RITEHR IS 3,198
Trade and other payables FERTE 5 R AEMFRIAE (68,671)
Contract liabilities BRAE (22,701)
Lease liabilities HEAE (996)
Tax payables FERIFEIA (4,005)
Net assets disposed of HEEEFE 52,650

Note: The consideration receivable has been fully settled in cash by the M WEFERZE=—F=AURS 2 HENEK
acquirers in March 2021. RE -
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HE_Z-ZF+-_A=+—HILFE

42. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (conTiNuep) 42, HE— R E A 7 ()

HK$'000
FAET
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries: HEMBAR 2K :
Consideration received and receivable B R (E 31,889
Fair value of the retained 49% interest in the Group as RAREB 2 49%(REB xS
an interest in an associate (ERREE N a2 Em) < A FE 27,076
Net assets disposed of BEHEEEFE (52,650)
Non-controlling interests disposed of B E 2 IEE RS (2,607)
Cumulative exchange differences in respect of the REEHTE D AT SR
net assets of subsidiaries reclassified from equity to RiEENHEE
profit or loss on loss of control of subsidiaries BEMBAREE
FEZRFTERER 1,905
5613
Net cash inflow arising HEEEWF
on disposal: RERA
Cash consideration received BUIRERE 6,043
Less: Bank balances and W B HEZRIT
cash disposed of EHRKIRE (3,198)
2,845
The impact of Shanghai Jizhi results and cash flows in LEREEERReRENAFERBAFE
current and period year is disclosed in note 12. IR BRI 12 -
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mf?:i ZA=t+—HIEFE
43. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES 43. REEMEH B BYHER
ARISING FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities NTREFINAEERESREE) (BIER S
arising from financing activities, including both cash and RIREEH) AR - REEMEH ZEE
non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities TZEEREMYLE - R AEENGES
are those for which cash flows were, or future cash flows will RenBHERPHOEARESRESHNRER

be, classified in the Group’s consolidated statement of cash
flows as cash flows from financing activities.

Bank Lease Other Dividend
borrowings liabilities liabilities payable Total
BITEE HESE HtEE ENRE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THER TR TR TR
At 1 January 2019 RZZT—NEF
—H—H 83,887 - 29,692 - 113,579

Financing cash flows RERETE (14,328) (8,909) (29,484) (24,993) (77,714)
Acquisition of a subsidiary WE—-EHBAR 7,092 = = = 7,092
Non-cash changes: ReE

Foreign exchange M (1,351) (172) (208) - (1,731)

New lease entered/lease HEIHE

modified RETHE - 17,619 = = 17,619

Interest expenses FEZH 2,636 646 = = 3,282

Dividend RE = = - 24,993 24,993
At 31 December 2019 RZE-NE

+=A=1+-H 77,936 9,184 = = 87,120

Financing cash flows RERERE (46,409) (11,389) - - (57,925)
Non-cash changes: FBEEE:

Foreign exchange N 2,704 1,947 - - 4,651

New lease entered/lease FRNHE/

modified e THE - 32,677 - - 32,804
Interest expenses FESH 1,769 2,416 - - 4,185
Disposal of subsidiaries HENBAT - (996) - - (996)
N_E_ZF

At 31 December 2020 +-RA=1+—H 36,000 33,839 - - 69,839
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HE_TTF HItFE

HE-F-FF+-A=A

39 —=—=

FRER5

45.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group and
an independent third party set up an entity named /&[5
BERNEEAR AR, in which the Group owned 49% of
the equity interests and accounted for as an associate.
The Group invested in BISESARBEEFR AR by
injection of a land and a property with carrying amount of
HK$9,977,000 and HK$10,162,000 respectively. As at the
date of incorporation, remeasurement gain on the land and
property of HK$4,603,000 was credited to other gain and
losses. Subsequently on 26 November 2019, the Group
disposed of the associate at a consideration of approximately
HK$26,597,000, which was settled by the other payable to
the controlling shareholder of &G ERBEXHBRAF]. The
transaction has resulted in a gain on disposal of an associate,
amounting to approximately HK$1,660,000.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

45.

2T -NE+-_A=1+—"HILtEE K&
EfE—FBUE=HR—HERABSEE
REXERATNER  AEBREFHER
AQ%REI e B LARIAR - NEEBE BT
ABREES 5£9,977,0007% 7T 510,162,000
BT EYE  RENBSSEREES
RATF - ReEMAZBE  ZTitRYENSE
it EUEE4,603,000/8 Tt AR MIB2E -
HER-_ZT—NFE+—A=1+ 8 KEBEMNU
RIBEH26,597,0008 T HEZHE L AR - WA
MEGEENEEARARERBRES FHE
MEMEREE - ZEXSHEREELE—FH
B8N \) 2 Wz 491,660,0007 7T ©

TRMITHE

Capital risk management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The capital
structure of the Group consists of net debt, which include
the bank borrowings and equity attributable to owners of
the Company, comprising issued share capital, reserves
and retained profits. The management reviews the capital
structure by considering the cost of capital and the risks
associated with each class of capital. In view of this, the
Group will balance its overall capital structure through the
payment of dividends, new share issues as well as the issue
of new debt or the redemption of existing debt. The Group’s
overall strategy remains unchanged throughout the year.

EXEBRER

AEBEEEEAZ BNAERBILERERZ
T BERAKEETSEREE VBB
BEELE  YWRKASRRTKKRSE R -
AEBEZEAGBERERFR(RERRT
fEE) RARBHE ARGER (BFEC TR
A EBELRESEN) - EREEHNEANERE
RHeZBERNKAREERERBBZRER -
Fhit - AEEREBE - BITHRIAR
BITHEERRBES FERBEANGSE
AEE s BERBENAFERERTE -

RANMKEBRERAR — T TFFH
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For the year ended 31 December 2020

HIEFE

45. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (coNTINUED)

45. €T B (&)

Categories of financial instruments

Financial assets SREE
Financial assets at amortised cost
Financial assets at FVTPL

Equity instruments at FVTOCI

fRART A
Financial liabilities SHAE
Amortised cost S £=)D 9N

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include equity
instruments at FVTOCI, financial assets at FVTPL, trade
and notes receivables and payables, other receivables and
payables, accruals, amounts due from non-controlling
shareholders of subsidiaries and an associate, consideration
receivables, pledged bank deposits, short-term bank
deposits, bank balances and cash, lease liabilities and bank
borrowings (2019: equity instruments at FVTOCI, financial
assets at FVTPL, trade and notes receivables and payables,
other receivables and payables, accruals, entrusted loan
receivable, amounts due from non-controlling shareholders
of subsidiaries and an associate, consideration receivables,
pledged bank deposits, short-term bank deposits, bank
balances and cash, lease liabilities and bank borrowings).
Details of these financial instruments are disclosed in the
respective notes. The risks associated with these financial
instruments and the policies on how to mitigate these risks
are set out below. Management manages and monitors these
exposures to ensure appropriate measures are implemented
on a timely and effective manner.

Currency risk

Several subsidiaries of the Group have foreign currency sales
and purchases, which expose the Group to foreign currency
risk. Approximately 23% (2019: 36%) of the Group’s sales
are denominated in currencies other than the functional
currency of the group entity making the sale, whilst almost
16% (2019: 12%) of costs are denominated in the group
entity’s functional currency.

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2020

HEHRAS RN SR EE
BRAVEFABSNEREE
BAHEF AR E R

ST EER

2020 2019
—E-EF —E-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
Fix FET
1,295,965 1,288,438
13,784 22512
12,382 669
307,181 356,789

B EMEEN B EEBE

AEEZ T2 T ABRBRATE; ARM
EHWGEZBATER  ZAFEFABRZE
BEE  BURNENEZERERZE  HME
WRENERR - BETER - BUMEAR R —
R A B SEE AR ROR - RIAR(E - B4R
MIRITHER - BERITER - RITEHRRA
& HERBEURRTEE(CZE-NF &
DNFEFAEMEZEARE CBATA - BAF
BEFff ABRZ SREE  [ERKRENE S RN
REE - Bt BB RENERR - BETER - &
WETEER - R B AR K — & A RI3E
ERBRRFR - BEAE  DEPRITER
RHERITIER - RITEHLAE  BEREMN
RRITHEE) - 25T AZFBERERK
ERRE - BREeR T AR ZRERIARE
BREZERRZEREN T - EREERE
RERZERB - ARG KB REREUE

B

BEmELE
REEZZMBRRIANINEETER - &
BEESNERRR o AREHERD23% (=F
—NF 36%) ARBERETEENNREE
BASNEHEGHE - MA16% (ZF—N&F -
12%) VAR AR AEE B IEEHAHE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE_T-THFt-_A=t—HLFE

45. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (conTINUED) 45. €@ T A ()

Financial risk management objectives and policies B REEEN B ZEEECR (F)

(CONTINUED)

Currency risk (conNTINUED) BmEpE ()

At the end of the reporting period, the major financial assets RBEHR  AEBUSEEBERBYEEE
and liabilities of the Group denominated in currencies other DONYEBTEN T ECREERABERER
than the functional currency of the respective group entities BORH - RITERMENE SRR - HAH
are trade receivables, bank balances and trade payables SED BIRHIEE27 28 K29 FE -

and the amounts are disclosed in notes 27, 28 and 29

respectively.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign currency RBERR  REBLINEHENEREER
denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities at the BERaEMREERNT

end of reporting period are as follows:

Assets Liabilities
BE =R
2020 2019 2020 2019
—BSRF T ONF ZBSERF TR
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET FHER FExT

usD ETT 703,218 656,118 4,610 5,980
The management monitors foreign exchange exposure and EREECERINERR  YHRETSEREZRY
will consider hedging significant foreign currency expose SREAIMNERE R o

should the need arise.

ERRBEEERAT — T TH5R 211



212

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SETTBIMARMIE

For the year ended 31 December 2020

HIEFE

45. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (coNTINUED)

45. €T B (&)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(CONTINUED)

Currency risk (coNTINUED)

Sensitivity analysis

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a 10%
(2019: 10%) increase and decrease in RMB against USD.
10% (2019: 10%) represents management’s assessment of
the reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rates.
The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign
currency denominated monetary items and adjusts their
translation at the end of the reporting period for a 10%
(2019: 10%) change in foreign currency rates. A positive
number below indicates an increase in post-tax profit where
RMB weakening 10% against USD for the both years. For a
10% strength of RMB against USD, there would be an equal
and opposite impact on the post-tax profit and the balances
below would be negative.

Increase in post-tax profit BRAR 1% 5% F1I1E hn

Note: This is mainly attributable to the exposure on outstanding USD
bank balances, receivables, payables and bank borrowings of the

Group at the end of the reporting period.

Credit risk and impairment assessment

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to trade
and notes receivables, contract assets, other receivables,
consideration receivables, entrusted loan receivable, amounts
due from non-controlling shareholders of subsidiaries and an
associate, short-term bank deposits, pledged bank deposits
and bank balances.

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in the event
of the counterparties failure to perform their obligations as
at 31 December 2020 and 2019 in relation to each class of
recognised financial assets is the carrying amount of these
assets as stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position.
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BB EIE i B RS ER ()

BEm R (48)
TRAMNHAEEENARE Y ETTHE
B2fE10% (ZZE—NF : 10%) BUHE - 10%
(ZZ2—NF : 10%) REEBEMTGINERE
KA IS IREE) - REDITERIEMN
INEFHERMAEEERIER  WUERHIE
10% (ZZ— 4 1 10%) BB HNREHRR
WMESREIEL R « U THEHERRARE
HIETTEMEFE B2 E10% KB B 14 0% 7)1
e i ARERETIHELIOY « BrEERFIHE
EHERERARNTE  MESESEEE -

2020 2019
—g-%F —T-NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx FET
64,365 53,756

Biet - ERRREAEERREPRAERTTHEZ R E
BIRITHEER R RN FRIUA R RITEE Z A

B e

= E/m e Rl E L
AEENEERREIZRARKESEILE
B AREE  EMENIRR  BRKRE &
WEFEER - BB AR N — & A R3E
ZRRBCRBOR - ASRTTIE - DEIRRITE
A RSRITHERR

REB_BER_F-NFF+_A=+—8 -
AEBEERHFHARGEBRITEEMASREHER
ERMEEMBAARIZEANEERR - RZFE
EREEMBIARAMR ZBREE -



45. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (conTINUED)
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45. TR T A (&)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(CONTINUED)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (coNTINUED)

Trade receivables

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the
Group has delegated a team responsible for determination of
credit limits and credit approvals. Before accepting any new
customer, the Group uses an internal credit scoring system
to assess the potential customer’s credit quality and defines
credit limits by customer. Limits and scoring attributed
to customers are reviewed every year. Other monitoring
procedures are in place to ensure that follow-up action
is taken to recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group
performs impairment assessment under ECL model upon
application of IFRS 9 on trade balances individually or based
on provision matrix. In this regard, the Directors of the Group
consider that the Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced.

The Group has concentration of credit risks with exposure
limited to certain customers. As at 31 December 2020, five
(2019: five) customers amounting to HK$49,847,000 (2019:
HK$100,159,000) comprised approximately 51% (2019:
36%) of the Group’s trade receivables. These customers
are within the same mobile phone technology industry and
wireless communication modules industry in the PRC. The
management closely monitors the subsequent settlement of
the customers. In this regard, the Directors consider that the
Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced.

Consideration receivables

For consideration receivables, the management of the Group
makes periodic individual assessment on the recoverability
of these amounts based on the historical settlement records,
past experience, and also quantitative and qualitative
information that is reasonable and supportive forward-
looking information. The management of the Group believes
that there is no significant increase in credit risk of these
amounts since initial recognition and management assessed
the loss allowance based on 12m ECL, and considered
them to have low credit risk, and thus no loss alliance was
recognised.

Bank balances, short-term bank deposits and pledged bank
deposits

The credit risk on bank balances are limited because the
counterparties are majority banks/financial institutions with
high credit ratings assigned by external credit-rating agencies.

BB EIE 1Y B R ()

FEm R R BTG ()
JEWE 55

SEEREEERR  AREEEECRIK—
AR EREEFERBEREERM - NE
MERFHEPR - AEERBARBERFER
SIHEEEEPHNEREE  YIREPEER
ERE - FFNRBLFDSFETRE - &
SEDASEMEERRF - UEREEGHS
HEKZKEEE - it AEEREZER
REMBEBRYBERE LN EISRRRIBAIE
EBBREIETERN AR BB BERRERT
e BUms  AEEEERS  AEENE
SRk AR -

AEEGFEEERBREFHNER  BBREFR
EFEFE -R-_ZE-_ZTFE+_-_A=+—8"
BRAZ(ZE—NF: AR)BFNREBEAR
49,847,000/t (ZZ— h4F : 100,159,000
BIT) - (hRAEERERE ZERFA51% (ZF
—NF :36%) c ZRERPURFRERERE
BEEARMITERERBARERITE - B8
EBEEYERZERFERIEERER - Bt
ME  AARESRAREBE ZEERBREX
KRR o

JERHE

HEREREMS  AEEEEEREBEEE
FoEE - BELRARSIE B BB BRI AT
1ETE 8 N 5E B R EL A 52 35 R 0R 2 AT M B
EITEHERFE - AEEERER/ZFN
B2 EERR B VTR AR EEEENE
EIEEARIB12ME A TR HME & B RT (4 B R B
B YRREEERRK  SULEEREIER
o

RITHRERR - FHIRTTIEA R EB AR T

MR ZE T AZ BRI EEFRRE
AIRERRIFZRITSREE - EMRITE
e FERRER -

BANEEBERAR T - TEEH
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45. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (conTINUED)

45. R T B ()

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(CONTINUED)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (coNTINUED)

The Group’s internal credit risk grading assessment
comprises the following categories:

Internal credit rating Description
WBEEFR HE
Low risk The counterparty has a low risk of default and does not
have any past-due amounts
ERER RHEAMBORBERE - BHEEAEATE
Debtor frequently repays after due dates but usually
Watch list settle after due date
EBALERIBAERER - ERERIARER S
BELE #E
There have been significant increases in credit risk
since initial recognition through information developed
Doubtful internally or external resources or overdue by 180 days
or above
ZERRBEBRBEAFXINFERERNER TS
A&t REBELN  S@HI80HHMU L
There is evidence indicating the asset is credit-impaired
Loss or overdue by 360 days or more
BB BEBXRAZELREERERHC0RHNA
There is evidence indicating that the debtor is in severe
financial difficulty and the Group has no realistic prospect
Write-off of recovery
BEBRABRKARARENHEE - MASETEK
WisH EIFIAREIR A8
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M EREEN B RERE (8

EEmER B ETE ()

AEBHAEERR SR

Al

Trade receivables/

contract assets/

finance lease receivables
ERESER GHEE/
EhmERS

Lifetime ECL -
not credit-impaired

EnBHEREERE
~WEEERE

Lifetime ECL -

not credit-impaired
EnBRRREERE
—WEEERE

Lifetime ECL -
not credit-impaired

AR EER
—WEEERE

Lifetime ECL -
credit-impaired

EnBRRREERR
—{ZERE

Amount is written off

TRCEMEA

HEBENATE

Other financial assets

HiteMEE

12m ECL

REABRSEERR

12m ECL

REARREEBR

Lifetime ECL -
not credit-impaired

ESBREESER
—WEEERE

Lifetime ECL -
credit-impaired

EnBfRACEERR

—fZERE

Amount is written off

TRCEME
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
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45. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (conTINUED) 45. €@ T A ()

Financial risk management objectives and policies B REEEN B ZEEECR (F)
(CONTINUED)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (coNTINUED) EEE R BB ()
The tables below detail the credit risk exposures of the TRFNAEEEETEHREEBEF ENS
Group’s financial assets, contract assets and finance lease MEE  AHEEMERRERENEER
receivables which are subject to ECL assessment: %
2020 2019
SSI1 N v
External Internal Gross carrying  Gross carrying
Notes credit rating credit rating ~ 12m or lifetime ECL amount amount
Iz HPEEFR ABEETR  12BRR4ESEHRLSEERR REAE RREE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHR Ti5r
Financial assets at amortised cost
BRRERAARHNEREE
Bank balances and cash 28 A (Aa3-A3) NA  12mECL 254,592 385,750
RTERERE 28 A (Aa3-A3) TER  12ERBHEESSE
B (Baa2-Bal) NA  12mECL 413,339 225,964
B (Baa2-Bal) TER  12EAESEESE
C (Caal) NA  12mECL 4 -
C (Caal) TER  12EAESEERE
667,935 611,714
Short-term bank deposits 28 A (A1) NA  12mECL ‘ 72,000 -
RERTER 28 A (A1) TER  12ERBHEESE
B (Baa2) NA  12mECL ‘ 209,617 296,380
B (Baa2) TER  ERBHEERS
281,617 296,380
Pledged bank deposits 28 B (Baa3) NA  12mECL 5,857 31,226
BERROIER 28 B (Baad) TER EARHEESSE
Trade receivables 27 N/A (Note b) Lifetime ECL (provjsion matrix) 21,363 b5,768
- goods and services T (b))  EoBSBHEEEEBELR)
EWE SR 27 Low risk Llfe|me ECL (not credit impaired) 54,787 173,759
—EmkR% BER  EoRHRHEEREUEEEHE)
Watch list ~ Lifetime ECL (not credit impaired) 11,603 36,281
BRrE  EoRONESEEEEEEEHE)
Doubtful L|fe|me ECL (not credit impaired) 2,967 8,010
R AnESRREERR(LEEERE)
Loss Credl t-impaired 32,750 30,398
BE FEAE
123,470 304,216
Notes receivables 27 A(A1-A3) NA  12mECL 7,686 1,828
RUEE 27 A(AL-A3) TER  1EREHEEEE
B (Baa2-Bal) NA  12mECL 11,472 4,805
B (Baa2-Bal) TER  1ERESEEEE
19,158 6,633
Other receivables 27 N/A (Notea)  12mECL 176,177 81,940
H R 21 TR (Ffia)  12ERBHEEEE
N/A Loss  Creditimpaired 5,214 3615
TEm BE RERE
181,391 85,555
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45. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (conTINUED)

45. TR T A ()

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(CONTINUED)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (coNTINUED)

External Internal
Notes credit rating credit rating
Wi HBEETR  ABEETR
Amount due from an associate 27 N/A (Note a)
JEl—RE A R]5UR 27 TNER (Bit3¥a)
Amounts due from non-controlling 27 N/A (Note a)
shareholders of subsidiaries NER (Fit3ta)
B ARG ERIRR TR 2
Consideration receivables N/A (Note a)
JERRE TR (Fi7Ea)
N/A Loss
TER BB
Other items
HibiER
Finance lease receivables 19 N/A (Note b)
JEURARE 19 TR (FitzEb)
N/A Loss
TR BE
Contract assets 27 N/A (Note b)
BHEE 27 TER (CiE)
Notes:
a. For the purposes of internal credit risk management, the Group

uses past due information to assess whether credit risk has

increased significantly since initial recognition.

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2020

B R B B T 9 B A B EUCR (1)
15 AR R ERF 1S ()
2020 2019
- - 23 ZENE
Gross carrying  Gross carrying
12m or lifetime ECL amount amount
LR EGASNRSEEESE REAE RREE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FhR T
12m ECL 17,161 -
PERBHEEEE
12m ECL 4,248 4,49
PERBHEEEE
12m ECL 30,432 5,900
12ERBHEEER
Lifetime ECL (credit impaired) - 2,456
EnERBREEEE (EERA)
30,432 8,356
Lifetime ECL (provision matrix) - 357
EanRBRREREE REER)
Credit impaired 381 -
EERE
381 357
Lifetime ECL (provision matrix) - 11,201

EoRRRAERER RRERE)

Bt -

a. BRABEERREENS - AEEERBHER

AHEEERR B SRR RS RREEN -
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BE_T_TFE+_A=1T—HILFE
= =
45. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (coNTINUED) 45. R T B (&)
Financial risk management objectives and policies B REEEN B ZEEECR (F)
(CONTINUED)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (conTINUED) EEE R BB ()
Notes: (CONTINUED) et - (4B)
a. (CONTINUED) a. (#8)
2020 —EC-EF
Past due Not past due Total
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FEx FExT
Other receivables FRUCE M BR TR 5,214 176,224 181,438
Consideration receivables UK E - 30,432 30,432
Amounts due from an associate FEUL— B 2 N B FRIE - 17,161 17,161
Amounts due from non-controlling FRUSHT B F)
shareholders of subsidiaries TR AR FRIB - 4,248 4,248
2019 —Z-hEF
Past due Not past due Total
BER 438 HR et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
F#T F#T F#T
Other receivables FEU A AR R 3,615 81,940 85,555
Consideration receivables FEWRAE 2,456 5,900 8,356
Amounts due from non-controlling R AR
shareholders of subsidiaries FEFE AR AR SRR IE = 4,496 4,496
b. For trade receivables, finance lease receivables and contract b. HRERBESER BUBRARERANEEM

assets, the Group has applied the simplified approach in IFRS 9

to measure the loss allowance at lifetime ECL. Except for debtors

with significant outstanding balances or credit-impaired, the

Group determines the expected credit losses on these items by

using a provision matrix, grouped by past-due status.

5 ASEERAERTBEREENFERM L
Rt A BREAERBRNERER - KA
BEARNEEERAEERENEBL AN » KE
ERABRAMRR D AR B EHEMETEZERE
MBHEERE

RAMEEBERAR — T - TFFH
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TE+ZA=+—HIEFE

45. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (conTINUED) 45. R T B ()
Financial risk management objectives and policies B REEEN B AZEEECR (F)
(CONTINUED)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (conTINUED) EER R EFFE (B

Notes: (CONTINUED)

b. (CONTINUED)

As part of the Group’s credit risk management, the Group uses

debtors’ ageing to assess the impairment for its customers

because these customers consist of a large number of

small customers with common risk characteristics that are

representative of the customers’ abilities to pay all amounts

due in accordance with the contractual terms. The following

table provides information about the exposure to credit risk for

trade receivables and contract assets which are assessed based

on provision matrix as at 31 December 2020 within lifetime

ECL (not credit impaired). Debtors with significant outstanding

balances or credit impaired with gross carrying amounts of
HK$69,357,000 and HK$43,536,000 (2019:HK$194,169,000
and HK$27,069,000) respectively as at 31 December 2020 were

assessed individually.

Gross carrying amount

Current (not past due)
1-60 days past due
61-180 days past due
181-365 days past due

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2020

BNER (R7aLER)
BEIIZE60R
EEI61E 180K
HEI181E365K

Wiz (&)

(&)

ERAEEEERBREREN—5 - AEBEFEA
EHANRRTEEEFPHRE - THRZE
EERENZAARRRAREHENNES  RF
BEEIREA DIRRE A B BRER RS -
TEREHEHEREIRARENEEFER
BEER  ZEBRRESERRIE-_S-_TF
T A=+ B4HAREREERE &R
ERE) ME B EEEEITTE o AEBEHR
—ECTFF_A=T—HEBRSAKRERER
= BRERESESD 5 £69,357,0005% T &
43,536,000/ 7T (ZZ— L4 : 194,169,000/ 7T
127,069,000 7T) Y E 75 AT TR BIFEAY o

IREAE
2020
—BBF
Average Trade
loss rate receivables
FIIEIEE BEWE SRR
HK$’000
FHET
16,137
0.11% 4,100
2.20% 624
40.59% 502
21,363
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45. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (conTINUED) 45. €@ T A ()

Financial risk management objectives and policies B REEEN B ZEEECR (F)
(CONTINUED)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (conTINUED) EEE R BB ()
Notes: (CONTINUED) Hiat - (48
b. (CONTINUED) b. (#8)
Gross carrying amount (CONTINUED) FREAE (&)
2019
—E-NF
Average Trade Contract Finance
loss rate receivables assets  lease receivables
FiEE R FEWE SR AREE KR ERE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT FAT
Current (not past due) BNER (R HR) 47,481 11,201 357
1-60 days past due BHI1ZE60K 0.1% 2,735 = =
61-180 days past due #EI61 2 180K 2.01% 4,760 = =
181-365 days past due #HI181 2365k 25.95% 792 - -
55,768 11,201 357

The estimated loss rates are estimated based on historical
observed default rates over the expected life of the debtors and
are adjusted for forward-looking information that is available
without undue cost or effort. The grouping is regularly reviewed
by management to ensure relevant information about specific
debtors is updated.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group provided
HK$662,000 (2019: reversed HK$280,000) impairment allowance
for trade receivables, based on the provision matrix. Impairment
allowance of HK$695,000 and HK$5,200,000 (2019: impairment
allowance of HK$679,000 and reversal of impairment allowance
of HK$4,398,000) were made on debtors with significant balances
and credit impaired debtors respectively.

BB REREBEEB AR FHANELBRENRMG
&t WEBREBTBERARS AR SRR
ARMEHRE - ERESCHENIMA  UREREHE
TERBS AR A RHRITE#T

BEZ-TF+_A=+—HALFE  AEEREE
ARSI U R 5 BR SR ET IR IBUE B 662,000 7T (=&
— U : $[E1280,000/87T) © WL EAERAERI MR
BRI A5 BRI B UL BR SR 0 I HE BB #85695,000/8 7T
125,200,000/ 7T (ZZ— N5 : FERHE679,000/E TR
BB {5 4,398,000/ 7T) °

RAMEEBERAR — T - TFFH
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
RE-T-TF+-A=t+-BLFE

45. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (conTINUED) 45. €@ T B ()

Financial risk management objectives and policies BSERERN B ZEECR (@)
(CONTINUED)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (CoNTINUED) =B R R ETS ()

TR ERBEBERERE 5 RN EL
REVEmEREREERSE 2 EE) -

The following table shows the movement in lifetime ECL
that has been recognised for trade receivables under the
simplified approach.

Lifetime ECL (not Lifetime ECL
credit impaired) (credit impaired) Total
EnEHES A ES
FEER FEER
(TREERE) (F&HE) @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FET THET
As at 1 January 2019 R-E—NF—F—H 3,493 20,538 24,031
Changes due to financial instruments RZE-NF—A—A%R
recognised as at 1 January 2019: HERTAMBES
— Transfer from credit impaired -BREEERE 2,563 (2,563) =
— Transfer to credit impaired ~BEREEEERE (783) 783 =
— Impairment losses recognised —-BERRRESE 67 14,718 14,785
— Impairment losses reversed —-BRERESSE (5,112) (8,224) (13,336)
New financial assets originated ENEmEE 3,348 = 3,348
Exchange adjustments B 5 5% (70) (371) (441)
As at 31 December 2019 RIZ-AF+-A=+—H 3,506 24,881 28,387
Changes due to financial instruments RZZ-_TF—-A—HB®R
recognised as at 1 January 2020: HemTAmMEE
— Transfer to credit impaired —BEEEEERE (197) 197 -
— Impairment losses recognised -ERRAEBE - 7,854 7,854
— Impairment losses reversed - BRERESE (66) (1,232) (1,298)
- Write-offs — 58 - (10,185) (10,185)
Exchange adjustments I 5 3% 728 1,004 1,732
As at 31 December 2020 R-ZE-TF+-A=+—H 3,971 22,519 26,490
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
E-T_TFE+_A=+—HILFE

45. R T B (&)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(CONTINUED)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (coNTINUED)

The Group writes off a trade receivable when there is
information indicating that the debtor is in severe financial
difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of recovery, e.g.
when the debtor has been placed under liquidation or has
entered into bankruptcy proceedings, whichever occurs
earlier. None of the trade receivables that have been written
off is subject to enforcement activities.

The following tables show reconciliation of loss allowances
that has been recognised for entrusted loan receivable.

M EREEN B RERE (8

EE R R B E S ()

EEENBTESARBREVBRAER Y EE
AU EFRER - BB MO R E B R
Ko MEBAETEEXEETRERR TR
ABREEBE) - CRMENEKE 5 KRB
AR FINEHIAITES ©

TRESIC R T E R R B R R
B0k -

Lifetime ECL
(credit impaired)
EmBHREREEEE
(EERE)
HK$'000
FAET
As at 1 January 2019 R-ZE—hF—A—H 8,314
Changes due to financial instruments RZE-—NF—A—A%ER
recognised as at 1 January 2019: Mo r T EFTEEE) :
— Impairment losses recognised = EEEM\/WTEE?TE 26,287
As at 31 December 2019 RZBE—NF+_A=+—H 34,601
Changes due to financial instruments RZZE_TF—-H—HER
recognised as at 1 January 2020: Ko E T EFTEEE) -
— Impairment losses recognised —BEERREREE -
As at 31 December 2020 —E_FHEt_A=t+—H 34,601

RANMKEBRERAR — T TFFH
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45. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (conTINUED)

45. R T B ()

Financial risk management objectives and policies B REEEN B AZEEECR (F)
(CONTINUED)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (conTINUED) EER R EFFE (B
The following tables show reconciliation of loss allowances TEREDI S B E fth FE LR IE VE I TSR A B 1R 1
that has been recognised for other receivables (Note 27). 182 ¥8R (F3E27) -
Lifetime ECL
(credit impaired)
EnAREREEER
(EERIE)
HK$'000
FAET
As at 1 January and 31 December 2019 —hE—H—H
rt+=—A=+—H 3,615
Changes due to financial instruments R-ZZE-_TF— A —HER
recognised as at 1 January 2020: &R T EATEEE)
— Impairment losses recognised —BRERREEE -
New financial assets originated ISR EE 1,599
As at 31 December 2020 RZBE-_ZTF+_A=+—H 5,214

The following tables show reconciliation of loss allowances TREFYEHERRBIERERNEEREE 2
that has been recognised for consideration receivables. AR -
Lifetime ECL
(credit impaired)
A RTEREEEE
(EERIE)
HK$'000
FHET
As at 1 January and 31 December 2019 —F—A—AKk
+ZA=+—H 2,456
Changes due to financial instruments RZZT_TF—-—H—HER
recognised as at 1 January 2020: KRl TEFTEES) :
— Write-offs — i s (2,456)

As at 31 December 2020
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE_Z_TF+_A=+—HILFE

45. R T B (&)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(CONTINUED)

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by the management to finance the Group’s
operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash
flows. The management monitors the utilisation of bank
borrowings and ensures compliance with loan covenants.

As at 31 December 2020, the carrying amount of
bank borrowings amounted to HK$36,000,000 (2019:
HK$77,936,000). All such bank borrowings included a
repayment on demand clause exercisable at any time by
the relevant banks and are classified as current liabilities.
In accordance with the scheduled repayment dates set
out in the loan agreements, the aggregate principal and
interest cash outflows amount to HK$37,105,000 (2019:
HK$77,957,000). However, should the relevant banks
exercise their rights to demand immediate repayment, the
principal amounts of these bank borrowings amounting to
HK$37,105,000 (2019: HK$77,957,000) will be repayable
on demand. Taking into account the Group’s financial
position, the Directors do not believe that it is probable that
the banks will exercise their discretionary rights to demand
immediate repayment.

The Directors consider that liquidity risk is limited after
considering the future cash flows of the Group in the
foreseeable future, including the repayment schedule of
bank borrowings as discussed above and the short-term
liabilities which are required to be repaid within three
months from the end of the reporting period. The Group
manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves
by continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows
and matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and
liabilities.

M EREEN B RERE (8

REBETmEE

ERRDECRARTHE  NEESERNER
ReRREFERERNEEERBTRAKX
o LENAEEEERT  YEERSRE
NB R - ai%'%‘%?%fiﬁ%%Z@ﬁ] :
VAREGR TS & B k350

R-ZZE-_ZFTHFE+-_A=+—80  FTEE
K BR E {8 236,000,000/ 7T (— E— 14 :
77,936,000/ 7T) - FTERITIEEHLER A RTT
AR R TEMIREREZEGR  Bm
PEARDEE REBERETNEER
8 A& kA BIE SR H#E5EA37,105,000
BIL(ZZ—NE : 77,957,000/7T) ° A1
ZzuﬁFa%ﬁﬁﬁ@iﬁ%%\l%z‘iﬂﬂﬁTEﬁ ;Z%%Eﬁ
B &2 N£%837,105,000/8 7T (ZE—h4F :
77,957,000/ 7T) #7851 iﬂﬂsﬁ ZRE
REENFEANR - AR REBZRBRITTA
A REI T A BB E KA (EE -

ZRIAEBEET RS RORKRE R (B
EXFREmERITEEERKREEFRHRE S
RE=ZEANEBENERER) 2R EFR
RRBHETERER - AEBBBHEERR
HEERADR  YHemEERAENDH
BERAEREENEE KMERRBES
[

RANMKEBRERAR — T TFFH
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For the year ended 31 December 2020

HE—_E-_TF+_-HF=1

T-TF BIEFEE

The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual
maturity for its financial liabilities. The table has been
drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of
financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the
Group can be required to pay. Specifically, bank loans
with a repayment on demand clause are included in the
earliest time band regardless of the probability of the banks
choosing to exercise their rights. The maturity dates for other
non-derivative financial liabilities are based on the agreed
repayment dates.

45. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (coNTINUED) 45. €FL T B (&)
Financial risk management objectives and policies B REEEN B AZEEECR (F)
(CONTINUED)
Liquidity risk (conTiNUED) HEE 2R ()

TREJAEEHSBRBENRTAHOEMA -
FZRDBBEAEBARAINNZFEERZ S
BEENAMRRSRERE - ABME - Mt
TREBRERGEROBRITER - TRRITEE
TREENNEE R DREARRTFEE
REMERE - RMIETESRABENSIHAR
RHEEFRE B E °

Carmying
Weighted On demand Total amount at
average o lessthan 1 3 months undiscounted 31 December
interest rate month -3 months to 1 year 1-5years cash flows 2020
e 2
TZA
BER AETRENE =t+-A
TR E HR1fEA 1837 3MEARLE 1255 5% EEE
% HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
% TiEn Fin Tin T TR TER

2020 k23
Trade and notes payables  [ETE BEFRER - 199,504 = = = 199,504 199,504
Other payables and accruals — EtEREFREN2E - 46,234 = = = 46,234 46,234
Bank borrowings R/iTRE 307 37,105 - - - 37105 36,000
Lease lizbiltes HERE 341 825 2476 6,603 26800 36,704 B8
283,668 2476 6,603 26,800 319,547 315,577
Carrying
Weighted On demand Total amount at
average  orlessthan 1 3 months undiscounted 31 December
interest rate month  1-3months to 1 year 1-5years cash flows 2019
RZE-NE
T4
BERY ATRERE =t-A
TR 1A 1237 3MEAElE 1255 % LEERE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
% Fhn T T TR TR TER

2019 Z2-1F
Trade and notes payables BT E HEFRERE - 24322 = - - 204322 20430
Other payables and accruals £ EREREFBE = 45,347 = = = 45,347 45,347
Bank borrowings BiTEE 317 71957 = = = 77,957 77,93
Lease liabilities fgafk 503 792 1,586 4232 2972 9,582 9,184
348,418 1,586 423 2972 357,208 36,789
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45. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (conTINUED)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
U‘?\/w ET/*“?x?LPi’

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE_Z-ZF+-_A=+—HILFE

45. R T B (&)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(CONTINUED)

Interest rate risk

The Group’s fair value interest rate risk relates primarily to its
certain other receivables and bank borrowings (2019: certain
other receivables and bank borrowings).

As at 31 December 2020, the Group is exposed to cash flow
interest rate risk in relation to variable-rate bank balances
(2019: variable-rate bank balances).

The Group currently does not have a cash flow interest rate
hedging policy. However, the management closely monitors
its exposure to future cash flow risk as a result of change
on market interest rate and will consider hedging changes
in market interest rates should the need arise. A 100
basis points (2019: 100 basis points) change represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably possible
change in interest rates.

Sensitivity analysis
The management considers that the Group’s exposure to
future cash flow risk on variable-rate bank balances as a
result of the change of market interest rate is insignificant
and thus variable-rate bank balances are not included in the
sensitivity analysis.

M EREEN B RERE (8

FIEmbE
AEBRFENERERERELETHMEK
AR S SRTT %ﬁfa(_f ﬂ¢ ETHM
FEUPRR R IRTTIER) ©

RZZZTF+_A=+—H AKEREE
IRITHESR (ST —NF  ZRIRITAER) AZH
@//wﬂrﬂ R °

AEEBRF W ER IR R E K o R
EEERTEEATISMNREFMAT 2 RHK
BenE - WHREREE RSN X
ZBE) o 100fEAEH (=T — 5 : 100[EEE)
Z“ibﬁﬁi%%ﬂ%ﬁﬁ%%ﬁﬂ%’éﬂﬁéﬁﬁZé\
}Eﬁ:ﬁ

BRREST

ERERS  AEEEMSNEEH TS
THREBER 2 R RS TTRRER Tj( it !5(
RES AL MEIETZERITE

RAMEEBERAR — T - TFFH
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (conTINUED)

45. €@ T B (&)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(CONTINUED)

Price risk

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the Group is exposed to
other price risk through its listed equity securities measured
at FVTPL and FVTOCI. The Group also invested in certain
unquoted equity securities for long term strategic purposes
which had been designated as FVTOCI.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based
on the exposure to equity price risk at the end of the
reporting period. If the price of the respective investment
in listed equity securities measured at FVTOCI had been
10% higher/lower, assuming all other variables were held
constant, the Group’s other comprehensive income (net of
tax) for the year ended 31 December 2020 would increase/
decrease by HK$929,000 (2019: HK$50,000).
of the respective investment in listed equity securities
measured at FVTPL had been 10% (2019: 10%) higher/
lower, assuming all other variables were held constant, the
Group’s the post-tax profit for the year ended 31 December
2020 would increase/decrease by HK$1,088,000 (2019:
HK$1,880,000).

If the prices

Fair value measurements of financial instruments
This note provides information about how the Group
determines fair values of various financial assets.

The Group’s equity instruments at FVTOCI and financial
assets and FVTPL are measured at fair value for financial
reporting purposes. In estimating the fair value, the Group
uses market observable data to the extent it is available.

Where Level 1 inputs are not available, the Group engages
third party qualified valuer to perform the valuation. The
chief financial officer of the Group works closely with
the qualified external valuer to establish the appropriate
valuation techniques and inputs to the model. The chief
financial officer reports the findings to the board of directors
of the Company at the end of the reporting period to explain
the cause of fluctuations in the fair value.

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2020
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45. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (conTiNuED)45.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4 A

[IN=]:

B ISR MY

For the year ended 31 December 2020

SELT A (&)

AL

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(CONTINUED)

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets that are
measured at fair value on a recurring basis

Some of the Group’s financial assets are measured at fair
value at the end of each reporting period. The following
table gives information about how the fair values of these

B R B 1Y B AR ()

FEFZEERER L FPEGBZLHEES

AFE
AEEHDEREEINE

A8 - TRIEHEEXS

BEHRRLFE

ETRMEER

$ﬁ2ﬁ

ECCERAER 2 AERT REAZR) -

financial assets are determined (in particular, the valuation %*ETFEA* s
technique(s) and inputs used), as well as the level of the fair F%”Jri” B BFER
value hierarchy into which the fair value measurements are At o
categorised (levels 1 to 3) based on the degree to which the
inputs to the fair value measurements is observable.
Fair value as  Valuation technique(s)
Fair value at hierarchy  and key input(s)
RUTASZATE ATERE RERDRIERANE
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
3% “E-0E
tZA=t-A  TZR=1-A
HK$'000 HK$ 000
Tén Fin
Financial assets
SREE
1. Equity instruments at FVTOCI 382 669 Level 3 Market approach - in this approach,
- unlisted equity security (6%, equity price to book value (PB multiple)
interestina private entity established adjusted with discount for lack of
in PRC) marketability was adopted for the
valuation of the ownership of the
investee base on PB multiple of a group
of comparable companies in the market
in the similar business.
BATES AL 2 Al 2 RATE =R mRA-EIAER RET LA
=3 FRAGE S (- ER A REEDEBIA L AR EREE
TAEEZ6%HE) BHE(TERE)  HERATNAEE
[sERMRRZ TAR BT EELE
BATERE o
- unlisted equity security (15% equity 12,000 - Level 3 Adjusted net assets approach - the
interest in a private entity established in book value of assets and liabilities of the
PRO) investee are adjusted to their fair value.
=3 FRAES (- ER ) SR BEFEEL —BRENZEER
TABEZ15%{E) BENEEEREEANTE
2. Financial assets at FVTPL 6,408 2512 Level 1 Quoted bid prices in an active markets.
- listed equity security
BATE\ER 2 REE - E-EETATEE
’J:WH&$M%
- unlisted investment 7,376 - Level 2 market price quoted from a company
engaged in asset management business
-~ LTRA 2R RE—BHFAEEEXH,ARMR
m%@&

RANMKEBRERAR — T TFFH

BER(—

Significant
unobservable
inputs
ERFURE
BARE

PB muttiple of a
group of comparable
companies in the
market in the similar
business

B L—HiE
B2H
THATHTEE

Adjusted net asset
valug of the investee

HRATZ
HRBEERE

$EJE%AQFZTQmEF%“
E=Fz

Relationship of
unobservable inputs
to fair value
TURZEAYE
HATENBR

Anincrease in the
adjusted net assets,
holding all other
variables constant
would increase the
carrying amount.

iigeae
RTS8
SEsadl
EEEREN-

Anincrease in the
adjusted net assets,
holding all other
variables constant
would increase the
carrying amount,
WEAMES
1% “ i«(ﬁ?&
ﬁE@EFﬂ
BEESEN -
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (conTINUED)

45. €@ T B (&)

Fair value measurements of financial instruments
(CONTINUED)

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets that are
measured at fair value on a recurring basis (cONTINUED)

EMTAZAVERE @

EEEEEERERNFEIBZEHEES
2P (E ()

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements FEMAFEFEZHE
Equity instruments
at FVTOCI
BATFERA
Hiv 2 AW
ZIRATA
HK$'000
TH&T

As at 1 January 2019 RZE—NF—H—H 503
Total gain in other comprehensive income Hiv 2 EWE 2 W a2 58 166
As at 31 December 2019 RZZE-—NF+=A=+—H 669
Purchased BE 11,330
Total losses in other comprehensive income Hiv 2wz EiEg (315)
Exchange adjustment M N R 698
As at 31 December 2020 A_E_ZBE+_H=+—H 12,382
Included in other comprehensive income is an amount of Hi 2 mEWEEIE315,0008 T2 BB (ZE

HK$315,000 loss (2019: HK$166,000 gain) relating to
unlisted equity securities classified as equity instruments at
FVTOCI held at the end of the current reporting period and is
reported as changes of “assets revaluation reserve”.

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and financial
liabilities that are not measured at fair value on a recurring
basis

The management of the Group estimates the fair value
of its financial assets and financial liabilities measured at
amortised cost using the discounted cash flows analysis.

The management of the Group considers that the carrying
amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded
at amortised cost in the consolidated statement of financial
position approximate their fair values.

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2020
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46. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BAMBRENE

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-T-TFI-ASt+HLFE

46. TEMBA R 2+

Particulars of the subsidiaries of the Company at 31
December 2020 and 2019 are as follows:

R-E-FER-F-NFT-A=+—BA
ARZHBATRELT -

Proportion of nominal value of

Date and place of Issued and fully paid up share capitall registered capital
incorporation/ share capital/ held by the Company
registration registered capital AAANBRAEE/ RER LA
Name of subsidiary ERRL/ R EETRAR Directly Indirectly Principal activities
[if: 2 AERLE R4 /ifEs ER ] IEEH
2020 2019 2020 2019
B0RF ZENF CBIBE CTNE
SIM Technology Group (BVI) 13 October 2004 Ordinary shares 100% 100% - - Investment holding
Limited Britsh Virgin Islands USD12,233 RARR
("BVI") LBR1223 %
“ERMETATER
AERARS
Sunrise Electronic Industry Limited 17 December 1999 Ordinary shares - - 100% 100%  Investment holding
EEETTEERAA Samoa USD2,002 RARR
“NANETZATER  EBR2002%T
ERDHS
Shanghai Sunrise Simcom? 9 November 1993 Registered capital - - 100% 100%  Manufacturing of Handsets and
HEREFRR The PRC RMB200,000,000 10T terminals business, Electronics
-WZEt-FAR  EffER manufacturing services business and
EF AE#200,0000007 Property management in the PRC
EREETRRNBRL RS
STRERBIEERE
bE
Shanghai Simcom? 5 December 2002 Registered capital - - 100% 100%  Design and development of Handsets
LERRE The PRC USD5,000,000 and 10T terminals businss in the
Z3T2ETCARR #fiER PRC
il 5,000,000%7C PR SR RARF R RS
iR
Shanghai Suncom Logistics Limited" 23 September 2003 Registered capital - - 100% 100%  Procurement, outsourcing, sales and
DREEIRETERAR The PRC USD400,000 marketing of the Group's products
ZTEEAACTZA AR and provides logistics services in the
HE 4000007 PRC
RRERE 6 HEREERSE
BRI
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BE—T-T&+-—F=-

HE"=%

For the year ended 31 December 2020
51 S HItFE

46. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL

SUBSIDIARIES (coNTINUED)

46. TEM B AT 215 (@)

Name of subsidiary

HEARER

Suncom International Holdings
Limited

SIM Technology HK Limited
ERREERARAA

Shanghai Speedcomm Technology

Limited!
HERIRRARNARAT

Max Vision Limited
AEERAF

Max Vision (Shanghai) Limited!
BEAEF (DB ARAR

Shanghai SIM Technology Limited!

EBR (L8 ARAT

Date and place of
incorporation/
registration
AL/ R
AR

12 January 2004

BVI
BERE-A12R
EBRAES

21 April 2004

Hong Kong
ZTEMEMA=T-A
B

16 November 2005

The PRC
ZEERET-ATRA
Gl

17 September 2003
Hong Kong
ZTEENATEA
B

8 December 2003

The PRC
ZEEZETZANA
GilE

2 August 2006

The PRC
ZERENAZR
e

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2020

Issued and fully paid up
share capital/

registered capital
BRTRER

s/ EhER

Ordinary share USD1
LERIET

Ordinary share HK$1
LARET

Registered capital
RMB7,500,000

AR
ARH7,500,00070

Ordinary shares HK$2
LRRET

Registered capital
USD200,000

AR
200,000%

Registered capital
RMB40,000,000

AR
ARE40,000,0007T

Proportion of nominal value of
share capital/ registered capital

held by the Company
AARFERARE/EREAZILA
Directly Indirectly
ER 53
2020 2019 2020 2019
SESRF T NF CRCEE TR
- - 100% 100%
- - 100% 100%
- - 100% 100%
- - 100% 100%
- - 100% 100%
- - 100% 100%

Principal activities

E2: 4

Investment holding

RASR

Provision of administrative services in
Hong Kong
TEEARGIRY

Investment holding

RESR

Investment holding

RASR

Procurement, outsourcing, sales and
marketing of the Group's products
and provides logistics services in the
PRC

RPERE 6 HEREEASE
EmRREMRRR

Investment holding of land use rights in
the PRC and property management
FE TRRE REARRE

AEER



46. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES (coNTINUED)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e SRR M 5

For the year ended 31 December 2020

BHE “A=tT—BHLFE

—ETFA

46. TEME A T 2 #F1F @)

Date and place of Issued and fully paid up

incorporation/ share capital/

registration registered capital
Name of subsidiary HRRL/ R BRARAR
[if: k2 AERLE R/ EhER
Shenyang SIM Technology Limited” 25 October 2007 Registered capital
EEROLE) BRAT The PRC USD10,000,000

ZESHETACTRR AR

w 10,000,005
Shenyang SIM Real Estate Limited 8 November 2007 Registered capital

(“SYRE")? The PRC USD5,500,000

RAEZ (th) GRAA ZTREET-ANR AR

Gl 5,500000£ T
Shenyang SIM Simcom* 24 July 2008 Registered capital
IERAAEE The PRC RMB30,000,000

ZTEN\FEACTRA AR

Gl ARE30,0000007
Shenzhen Simcom Technology 28 August 2008 Registered capital

Limite* The PRC RMB5,000,000

MFRERERAR ZFE\FN\AZT/\B AR

# AR5,0000007T
Simcom Holdings HK Limited 22 September 2008 Ordinary share
REREARRAR Hong Kong HKS1

“ET\ENAZTZR  EERIER

&
Shanghai iLove Limited" 27 February 2009 Registered capital
LETERESRMERRT  ThePRC USD3,000,000

ZEENECACZTEA O EMER

H 300000057

Proportion of nominal value of
share capital/ registered capital

held by the Company
AAAMERAEE/ARERZ LA
Directly Indirectly Principal activities
ER B IEEH
2020 2019 2020 2019
Z22BE “ENE ZBCBE CENE
- - 100% 100%  Investment holding of land use rights in
the PRC and property management
TP HRRE RERRRNE
HEER
- - 60% 60%  Properties development in PRC
BB ENEER
- - 100% 100%  Manufacturing of Handsets and 10T
terminals business in the PRC and
Electronics manufacturing services
business in the PRC
EPEEETR R BREERR
STHERBHEREN
- - 100% 100%  Design and development of Handsets
and 10T terminals business in the
PRC
EPEU SR RAEFRRES
Binxh
- - 100% 100%  Investment holding
RERER
- - 100% 100%  Investment holding
RERER
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46. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 46. T EM BN T 2518 (&)
SUBSIDIARIES (coNTINUED)

Proportion of nominal value of

Date and place of Issued and fully paid up share capital/ registered capital

incorporation/ share capital/ held by the Company

registration registered capital FARFERATE/ FRER LA
Name of subsidiary HRRL/ R BERTRAR Directly Indirectly Principal activities
WEARZHE REREE s/ EhER ER £ IEEH

2020 09 2020 2019
SEORF CTNF SRR OCTONR

Shanghai Xinkang Electronic 5 January 2009 Registered capital - - 100% 100%  Investment holding
Technology Limited The PRC RMB20,000,000 BERR
HEERETHEARAR! ZEENF-AAA AR
e ARE20,0000007
Goldsey Limited 31 January 2008 Ordinary shares - - 100% 100%  Investment holding
BARAT Hong Kong HK$18,000,000 RERR
ZER\E-R=+-B  ERRI8000000ET
&b
Smartwireless Technology Limited 13 February 2007 Registered capital - - 100% 100%  Design and development of Handsets
IREQRENEERAT  ThePRC RVB20,500,000 and 10T terminals business in the
ZERUECATER EMER PRC
Gl ARH205000007T KPR R AR AR RS
£
Shanghai Mobile Phone Public 21 December 2009 Registered capital - - 87.5% 87.5%  Design and development of Handsets
Testing Platform Co., Ltd.* The PRC RMB20,000,000 and [0T terminals business in the
LEFRAFALRETEER  —SENFTZA-T-R i#fEx PRC
A H ABRH20,000,0007 SR RAS TR
%
Taizhou SIM Real Estate Limited® 7 March 2013 Registered capital - - 100% 100%  Properties development in the PRC
TMRAERARAR The PRC RMB20,000,000 PR ENEER
ZE-CE-AHA Hax
H ARE20,000,0007T
Jiangsu Chenri Investment Limited* 24 April 2013 Registered capital - - 100% 100%  Investment holding
THRARARRAD! The PRC RMB50,000,000 RERR
Z3-ZEMACTRA  #hER
H ARE50,000,0007T
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46. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL

SUBSIDIARIES (coNTINUED)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e SRR M 5

For the year ended 31 December 2020
ZA=t+—HIFE

T _TFH

b 75

r
38

46. TEME A T 2 #F1F @)

Date and place of
incorporation/
registration
Name of subsidiary HRRL/ R
if: Pk REREE
Jiangsu Yunmao Internet of Things 7 June 2013
Technology Limited* The PRC
THELMMANEERAR  —3-=5/AtA
il
Shanghai Wide-Top Financial 17 July 2013
Leasing Co., Ltd.! The PRC
LERSHERERRAA! ZE-=E+ATtA
il
Alpha Apex Limited 26 October 2012
Samoa
ZE-CEHATE
ERDHE
Shanghai Yunhao Trading Limited* 28 August 2014
LEERBABRAR The PRC
ZE-MENAZTR
e
Shanghai Yunmao 10T Limited* 11 October 2014
LEEBNLEHBERAT  ThePRC
ZF-WF+AT-H
e
Shenyang Zhonghong Intel-Tech 28 October 2014
Limite* The PRC
BB RARAR! “E-RETAZTNR
e

Issued and fully paid up
share capital/

registered capital
BRTRAR

R/ EhER

Registered capital
RMB10,000,000

ER
ARE10,0000007T

Registered capital
USD17,000,000

ER
1700000057

Registered capital
usp1
HERIET

Registered capital
RMB38,500,000

Rl
AE#38,500,00070

Registered capital
RMB10,000,000

Rl
AE10,000,00070

Registered capital
RMB30,000,000

Rl
AEH30,000,00070

Proportion of nominal value of
share capital/ registered capital

held by the Company
AAAMERAEE/ARERZ LA
Directly Indirectly Principal activities
ER B IEEH
2020 2019 2020 2019
Z22BE “ENE ZBCBE CENE
- - 100% 100%  Development of internet of things system
and online-{o-offline equipment in the
PRC
EPEREBRAZIRESR
- - 100% 100%  Finance lease service in the PRC
EPERERERER
- - 100% 100%  Investment holding
RARR
- - 98.7% 98.7%  Procurement and trading of snacks in
the PRC
EPENFSRRERES
- - 100% 100%  Development of internet of things system
and online-to-offline equipment in the
PRC
EREREIREATREE R
- - 100% 100%  Development of automated test
equipment in the PRC
ERERE B NRE
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46. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL

SUBSIDIARIES (coNTINUED)

46. TEM B AT 215 (@)

Name of subsidiary

HEARER

Shanghai Simcom System Limited
ARRERAREN(DE)

BRAF

Guandong Chentuo Robot
Technology Co., Limited*
BRRRBEANBERAR

Date and place of
incorporation/
registration
AL/ R
AR

17 March 2014

The PRC
“E-PWEZA+tA
HE

11 March 2015

The PRC
“Z-1FZA+-A
il

Shenyang Jingxingcheng Automation 24 August 2015

Technology Co., Limited?
G REI B RIERAR:

Hangzhou Yunyou Trade Co.,

Limited®

FHEBEAERAT

Shenzhen Yunding Vending
Operators Co., Limited*

The PRC

HE

3 November 2015
The PRC
“E-1%+-A=H
HE

16 January 2015
The PRC

MITEREDEERERER —F-RF-ATAH

A

Shanghai Bachen Intelligent
Technology Co., Limited*
FRERERREERAR

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2020

HE

14 October 2015

The PRC
“E-%+A1EA
HE

“3-T§\A=HEA

Issued and fully paid up
share capital/

registered capital
BRTRER

s/ EhER

Registered capital
RMB20,000,000

AR
ARE20,000,0007T

Registered capital
RMB10,000,000

AR
ARE10,000,0007T

Registered capital
RMB10,000,000

Htax
AR10,000,0007

Registered capital
RMB2,000,000

Htax
ARE2,000,0007

Registered capital
RMB7,000,000

Has
ARET,000,0007T

Registered capital
RMB5,500,000

Hax
AR5,500,0007

tE0EF

Proportion of nominal value

of

share capital/ registered capital

held by the Company
AARFERARE/EREAZILA
Directly Indirectly
ER £

2020 2019 2020 2019
TAE CRSRE TR
- - 100% 100%
- - 100% 100%
- - 60% 60%
- - 100% 100%
- - 70% 70%
- - 100% 100%

Principal activities

E2: 4

Building design and construction of

smart home in the PRC
FEhER REER R

Development of automated test
equipment in the PRC
EPEREARERE

Development of automated test
equipment in the PRC
ERERE B ENRE

Trading of snacks in the PRC
EREREERES

Trading of snacks in the PRC
EREREERES

Design and development of Handsets
and 10T terminals business in the

PRC

PR ERARRETRRIRE

S
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BE-T-_TF+-_A=1t—HLHFE
46. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 46. X EME A R 2515 (@)
SUBSIDIARIES (coNTINUED)
Proportion of nominal value of
Date and place of Issued and fully paid up share capitall registered capital
incorporation/ share capital/ held by the Company
registration registered capital AAANBRAEE/ RER LA
Name of subsidiary AL/ R BRIRAR Directly Indirectly Principal activities
o INES BERLE R/ EhER ER ] IEEH
2020 2019 2020 2019
IBRF CENF CBIBE CRNE
Shanghai Pami Intelligent 14 March 2016 Registered capital - - 100% 100%  Development of automated test
Technology Co., Limited* The PRC RMB10,000,000 equipment in the PRC
PEERERREERAR! ZERNEZATImA AR EPEREE D RERE
EF ARE10,000,0007
(Guangdong Chengshida Automation 21 April 2016 Registered capital - - - 100%  Development of automated test
Technology Co., Limited* The PRC RMB10,000,000 equipment in the PRC
ERRIEERESNBERLR —F-~ENA-T-B #fER EPEREE D RERE
EF ARE10,000,0007
Ningbo Yunjing Supply Chain 24 June 2016 Registered capital - - 51% 51% Trading of snacks in the PRC
Management Co, Limited ~ The PRC RVB2,000,000 EPEitETRE5
ERERMEREEARAR 3 ENAZTBR  EfER
i ARH2,0000007
Fujiansheng Yunxiang Supply Chain 3 August 2016 Registered capital - - 100% 100%  Trading of snacks in the PRC
Management Co, Limited* ~ The PRC RMB10,000,000 kPEitETRE5
BRAEAMERERERAR —5-5/\AZR Ry
EF ARE10,000,0007
Kongtop Industrial (Shenzhen) 25 December 2003 Registered capital - - 100% 100%  Manufacturing of Handsets and 10T
Co., Limited® The PRC USD3,000,000 terminals business and Electronics
FREZ (M) ERATD ZTESETCACHRA AR manufacturing services business in
Gl 300000057 the PRC
ERER EEEFRR BB AEE
REFHERBILERES
L Wholly foreign owned enterprises (“WFOE”) registered in the PRC. 1 EFRBEEFMzIMEEERE -
2 Sino-foreign equity joint venture registered in the PRC. 2 EFRBEEFMzRINEERE -
E Re-investment in WFOE registered in the PRC. g BEFRENERBE M2 INETBE R -
4 The Group does not hold any interest in the Company upon the 2 AEBRHE FERE BB EZEZAT Y
disposal of Shanghai Jizhi. Ea#Es o
E The Company was acquired at 3 April 2019. g ZATRZE-NFHA=BHKE -

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities subsisting
at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

W EAE I A RN A E R AF E R ER
iy A (R AR R (B 7% 8
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For the year ended 31 December 2020

HE—T-T&E+— f=-

BIEE

46. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL

SUBSIDIARIES (coNTINUED)

46.

T EM BN R Z5F1E @

A majority of these subsidiaries operate in Handsets and
|IOT terminals business, Electronics manufacturing services
business, 10T system and 020 business and Property
Management. The principal activities of these subsidiaries

are summarised as follows:

Principal activities

EEXEH

Handset and |OT terminals business

F R B R R R T

Electronics manufacturing services business

B RUERSH RS
|0T system and 020 business
VIE A R BB TS
Property management

YEREER

Principal place of

of business
FTEZEMI

PRC
Y
PRC

R E
PRC

]
PRC

I

The table below shows details of non-wholly owned
subsidiaries of the Group that has material non-controlling

interests:

Place of

incorporation

and principal
Name of subsidiaries place of business
HRAAER ARRIREEEES
SYRE PRC
REF e

Individually immaterial subsidiaries
with non-controlling interests

FEFEREL BRI EANEAR

- St -3

Proportion of
ownership interests
and voting rights held by
non-controlling interests
FERER
BEREERRZRELS
2020 2019

= yika

40% 40%

Summarised financial information for the years ended
31 December 2020 and 2019 in respect of the Group’s
subsidiaries that have material non-controlling interests is
set out below. The summarised financial information below
represents amounts before intragroup eliminations.

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2020

ZEMBRABRBA I RHE TR YBER
mER  EFRERBHERER  MBER
REEZEBARMEREEE - ZF5HER
A2 EREBHIILT

Number of subsidiaries

O PELE
2020 2019
—g-%8F —T-NF
7 7

1 1

8 8

4 4

T%ﬁW$E@F%¢%ﬁEK#?M%ﬁ2
F2EWBL

(Loss) profit

allocated to Accumulated non-
non-controlling interests controlling interests
FREFEREE
(E8) &R EHE 20
2020 2019 2020 2019
23 Sy 3 CECER sy k3
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000
Tén TEr Tén TEr
(2,562) 5041 13,022 13,564
2,441 4,766
15,463 18,330

AEEHRAEAFERERS ZHEARNNEE
R CEFRT-NFTZA=+—HILF
B2 HBEERBEZEINT o TXAEZHBEER
BEE TRV RN A RIS o
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HE_Z-_TF+-_A=+—HILFE
46. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 46. TEMBE QA T 2 F15 (&)
SUBSIDIARIES (conTINUED)
SYRE
BB
2020 2019
s St 23 —E-NEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHxT FET
Non-current assets FEMENEEE 16,304 15,797
Current assets MENEE 22,921 23,410
Non-current liabilities ERBEE (43) (41)
Current liabilities mEaE (6,627) (5,256)
Total equity e AaEE 32,555 33,910
Revenue WA 510 7,610
Expenses s (7,278) (7,660)
Income tax refund REOFTISH 364 12,653
(Loss) profit for the year NEFE (518) % 7 (6,404) 12,603
Other comprehensive expense AEEEMEEAL
for the year (2,119) (284)
Total comprehensive (expense) income AEE2E FR) KRR
for the year (8,523) 12,319
(Loss) profit for the year attributable to TS IBEIEAEE (B18) /a7
— the owner of SYRE —RABEZHEAA (3,842) 7,562
— non-controlling interests of SYRE —RABE 2 IEERER (2,562) 5,041
(Loss) profit for the year REEZ (B1E) m A (6,404) 12,603
Other comprehensive expense B TR FE (G A E E A
for the year attributable to NG
— the owner of SYRE —RABEIZHEBA (1,271) (170)
— non-controlling interests of SYRE —RAMBFEZIFERER (848) (114)
Other comprehensive expense
for the year AFEEEMEERAY (2,119) (284)
Total comprehensive (expense) income TYSERLAFEEE
for the year attributable to (AR Watgsa
— the owner of SYRE —RAEBFEZEEA (5,114) 7,392
— non-controlling interests of SYRE —RABEREZIFERER (3,409) 4,927
Total comprehensive (expense) income rEE2EFEX) WL
for the year (8,523) 12,319
Net cash inflow from operating activities KETEBFEIRERAFRE 9,829 15,248
Net cash outflow from financing activites ~ BYE EBIFTEIR &M F5E - (62,368)
Net cash inflow (outflow) WEMAGRL) FEE 9,829 (47,120)

RANMKEBRERAR — T TFFH
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47. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AND RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

47. KRR TR R R K f

Non-current assets
Investment in a subsidiary
Amounts due from subsidiaries

Current assets

Other receivables
Financial assets at FVTPL
Bank balances

Current liabilities
Amounts due to subsidiaries
Other payables and accruals

Net current liabilities

Total assets less current liabilities

Capital and reserves
Share capital
Reserves

Total equity

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2020

FRBEE
R—ENB AR ZIKE
= PNCIE

RBEE

HoA & WRIR
BAFEFABRRCSREE
RITHEER

REAE
FEAH BB X RISRIR

HAth R AR N R 5K0R

REBREFHE

REERRBRE
BARNfERE

(e

G

AR

2020 2019
—ECEF —T-NEF
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
179,803 179,803
1,223,360 1,250,048
1,403,163 1,429,851
4,876 519
6,408 22,512
365 859
11,649 23,890
11,700 31,751
2,580 1,866
14,280 33,617
(2,631) (9,727)
1,400,532 1,420,124
236,255 243,072
1,164,277 1,177,052
1,400,532 1,420,124




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BAMBRENE

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-Z-ZF+-_A=1+—HILFE

47. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION  47. AR BBHIRR R R R E (@)
AND RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

(CONTINUED)
Movement in the Company’s reserves AT EES
Share
Capital based Employee (Accumulated
Share  redemption payment share trust Special  loss)/retained
premium reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total
N EE G (BiER)/
ROGE EXEERE DEST fEithtE BHRE & @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Thn Thn Thn Thn Thn TEn Thn
At 1 January 2019 R=Z-NE-A-A 824,207 6,212 19231 - 193,848 178332 1,221,830
Loss and total comprehensive AEFEBREE
expense for the year Fx 8 - - - - - (1,701) (1,701)
Dividend paid ERRE - - - - - (24.993) (24.993)
Share options lapsed BRELN - - (190) - - 19 =
Repurchase of ardinary shares BELER (18,084) 8953 = - = (8953) (18,084)
RZE-NE
At 31 December 2019 T-A=t-H 806,123 15,165 19,041 - 193848 142875 1,177,052
Profit and total comprehensive FERRHREE
income for the year eyt - - - - - 1,442 1,442
Exercise of share options fiiERE 1 - (1) - - - -
Share options lapsed RIELN - - (486) - - 486 -
Purchase of shares and the R
share award scheme BERR - - - (3,187) - - (3,187)
Repurchase of ordinary shares BEEER (11,030) 6,818 - - - (6,318) (11,030)
i3
At 31 December 2020 T-A=t-H 795,094 21,983 18,554 (3,187) 193,848 137985 1,164,277
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For the year ended 31 December 2020

EoT-TH+— f=

HItFE

48. EVENT AFTER THE PERIOD END DATE

48. IR BHR SR

(a)

On 26 January 2021, Shanghai SIM Technology
Limited, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, entered into a framework agreement
with the People’s Government of Huangjiang Town,
Dongguan, to signify the Group’s intention to invest
an aggregate amount of RMB2,000,000,000 to
develop the Group’s own technological industrial
park in Huangjiang Town, Dongguan, thereby
consolidating the Group’s operations and maximizing
its development potential. The investment and
development will be carried out in phases according
to the development plan. It is expected that the
development will kick off in June 2021 and will be
completed by the end of 2024.

On 23 March 2021, a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, Shanghai Yunmao IOT Limited (the
“Vendor”) entered to a sale and purchase agreement
with Cheng Shuchun and Huang Xiaoyan (the
“Purchaser”), independent third parties of the Group,
to dispose 98.7% equity interest in Shanghai Yunhao
Trading Limited and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as “SH Yunhao Group”) being held the
Vendor at a consideration of RMB34,100,000.
SH Yunhao Group is principally engaged in the
procument and trading of snacks business in the
PRC. Further details of the disposal can be found in
the announcement of the Company dated 23 March
2021.

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2020

(a)

RZEZ—F—A=Z+"H ' xRAF
MEzENB AR RARRE (L8 B8R
AEIEREMETEARBFRIESR
% REAEEBEERESLARE
2,000,000,000 7T 1A SR 5e 1 = )T $E A B AR
EEESNBETER  EUBRAEASE
EmEE BEENRRBISRAL -
KA KB GIRRAET 2D -
EHRAEEE SR _E-_—F AR
B WEN - EEEAETL -

RZBEZ—F=A=+=8 " KRTHW
2EMBAR LSEEYH AR AR
AEI([BERD EAEBHNBIIE=7IE
EMRENDER(EFDIIVE & i -
URBARE34,100,000cHEEH
RENLEEERE AR AR RENE
AEl (B ESEREEE])H98.7%M%
e PEEREEFEEFRERETR
HERE SRS - FEANEFHEMNE—
TG BFREARRBEHAT ——
FZA-+=AKNRAE -



Principal Properties

AY RNV
F2ME
As at 31 December 2020
RZZE_TF+-_A=+—H
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
Group’s effective
interest in the Approximate gross Category of
Location properties floor area Usage lease
e 1) VE L
i 2 ZERERE BREEEmE A& HLER
(sg. m)
(EFHAK)
Block A, SIM Technology Building, 100% 9,373 Commercial Medium-term
No. 633 Jinzhong Road, [HES lease
Changning District, FREAFE AY
Shanghai, the PRC
B D RERSERKG633 9
EREHEIAEAE
Block B, SIM Technology Building, 100% 11,262 Commercial Medium-term
No. 633 Jinzhong Road, [EES lease
Changning District, FRERFR 4D
Shanghai, the PRC
B EERER S ERKG33 5
EARHIAEBE
An industrial complex located at 100% 20,804 Industrial Medium-term
No. 888 Shengli Road, I% lease
Qingpu District, FREATE Y
Shanghai,
the PRC
H Bl 55 B ER 888 5%
F— TR
An industrial complex, located at 100% 28,650 Industrial Medium-term
No. 37 Shenbei Road, T lease
Shenbei New District, AR EAE A
Shenyang,
Liaoning Province,
the PRC
FEIEERESG LR
HAEER37 M —E T EREE
Shop 32, Block 1, 60% 2,279 Commercial Medium-term
The Riverside Country, [ lease
location at No. 32 FRERFRAY

Shenbei Road,

Shenbei New District, Shenyang,
Liaoning Province, the PRC
FEIEEREG TR

WAL ER 325k IE AR BE 11 325K R
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RESULTS
Revenue

Profit (loss) before taxation
Taxation

Profit (loss) for the year

Attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
Total assets
Total liabilities

Equity attributable to owners
of the Company
Non-controlling interests

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2020

ES
WA

BB ATER (B1R)

B

AEREM (B1R)
T AL :
ARAEERA
SRIERRHEL

BEHER
BEE
RAaRE

NG 2PN 5

FE R

For the year ended 31 December

HE+t-A=t+-BLEFE

2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
“EREF “T—+tF “T-N\F “E-NE —ECER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THT THT FTHT TEL
2,724,390 3,258,517 2,312,230 1,281,505 1,073,218
96,500 138,796 299,646 (91,497) (56,652)
(22,067) (36,190) (84,607) 16,636 9,459
74,433 102,606 215,039 (74,861) (47,193)
77,278 111,651 238,012 (76,938) (38,323)
(2,845) (9,045) (22,973) 2,077 (8,870)
74,433 102,606 215,039 (74,861) (47,193)
As at 31 December
W+=B=+-A

2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
“EREF i 3 “T-N\F “E-NE —ECER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THAT THT FTHT TEL
3,479,800 3,630,405 2,972,011 2,866,930 2,801,636
(1,347,253) (1,407,114) (749,572) (756,259) (653,771)
2,132,547 2,223,291 2222439 2,110,671 2,147,865
2,026,746 2,121,810 2,159,034 2,092,341 2,132,402
105,801 101,481 63,405 18,330 15,463
2,132,547 2,223,291 2,222,439 2,110,671 2,147,865




BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Ms YEUNG Man Ying (Chairman)

Mr WONG Cho Tung (President)

Ms TANG Rongrong (resigned as
Executive Director with effect
from 10 September 2020)

Mr LIU Jun (Chief technical officer)

Mr Zhu Wenhui (appointed as
Executive Director with effect
from 3 February 2021)

Independent non-executive
Directors

Mr LIU Hing Hung

Mr WANG Tianmiao (resigned
as Independent non-executive
Director with effect from
3 February 2021)

Mr LI Minbo (appointed as
Independent non-executive
Director with effect from
3 February 2021)

Mr WU Zhe

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr LIU Hing Hung (Chairman)
Mr WANG Tianmiao (resigned as
a member of Audit Committee
with effect from
3 February 2021)
Mr LI Minbo (appointed as
a member of Audit Committee
with effect from
3 February 2021)
Mr WU Zhe

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Mr LIU Hing Hung (Chairman)

Mr WANG Tianmiao (resigned
as a member of Remuneration
Committee with effect from
3 February 2021)

Mr LI Minbo (appointed as
a member of Remuneration
Committee with effect from
3 February 2021)

Mr WU Zhe

Mr WONG Cho Tung

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms CHAN Chi Yin

AUDITORS

Certified Public Accountants

Registered public interest entity
auditors

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu

LEGAL ADVISERS AS TO HONG
KONG LAWS

LCH Lawyers LLP

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Hang Seng Bank Limited
Shanghai Pudong Development
Bank

BERMUDA REGISTERED OFFICE

Clarendon House
2 Church Street

Hamilton HM 11
Bermuda

HONG KONG REGISTERED OFFICE

Unit 1206, 12th Floor,
Billion Trade Centre
31 Hung To Road
Kwun Tong

Hong Kong

SHANGHAI HEAD OFFICE

Building A, SIM Technology Building
No. 633 Jinzhong Road

Changning District

Shanghai

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR
AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Butterfield Fund Services (Bermuda)
Limited

Rosebank Centre

11 Bermudiana Road

Pembroke

Bermuda
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Pembroke
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Cofporate Information
NEIER

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE
REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER
OFFICE

Computershare Hong Kong Investor
Services Limited

Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor
Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wanchai

Hong Kong

WEBSITE ADDRESS
http://www.sim.com
STOCK CODE

2000
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